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Vision
¢ To become a first-class medium
to large bank in Hong Kong

O/

{Rtn

° REFREELRE

° BIRRAEEXRERE

c RETHERERNRRTE

e R EAEZHENEEAREE

Mission

¢ Provide better service to our customers
c.Create higher value to our shareholders

< Build up broader career path for our associates

¢ Assume full responsibilities as a corporate citizen
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Core Values of
< Integrity /

¢ Impartiality
¢ Prudence

¢ Creation
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CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA)

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“CCB (Asia)") is the
comprehensive and integrated commercial banking platform of China
Construction Bank Corporation (“CCB") in Hong Kong. Currently, CCB (Asia)
has over 50 service outlets in Hong Kong and offers a wide array of banking
products and services to customers, including consumer banking services,
commercial banking services, corporate banking services, private banking
services, treasury business and cross-border financial services, etc.

For consumer banking, in addition to providing conventional transactional,
foreign exchange and cash services, CCB (Asia) also offers deposits, loans
(including personal loans, credit cards loan, residential mortgages and
auto-financing), securities agency and investments (mutual fund and bond
trading), consolidated banking, insurance (including life insurance, general
insurance and insurance broker), MPF referral services, RMB services, credit
card, electronic banking services (online and mobile banking), cross border
services and safe deposit boxes services.

For commercial banking, CCB (Asia) provides a diverse range of financial
products and services to local mid-caps and medium-to-large corporations,
both non blue-chip listed as well as private companies, including bilateral
commercial loans, syndicated loans, project finance, property development
loans, trade finance, commercial mortgage financing, machinery loans, FX
products, as well as corporate wealth management, cash management
and deposit services. CCB (Asia) also capitalizes on the extensive branch
network of CCB to create synergy in businesses such as RMB cross-border
collaboration services including SBLC loans, LC discount, RMB deposit,
remittance and foreign exchange.

CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report
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ABOUT US

For corporate banking, CCB (Asia) provides a full range of banking
services including bilateral loans, syndicated loans, club deals, merger and
acquisition financings, trade finance, bond financings, treasury products,
cash management, deposit services and related retail products to Chinese
enterprises, multinational companies, Hong Kong blue-chip companies
and local medium-to-large corporations. Besides, CCB (Asia) also offers
comprehensive financing solutions to large state-owned enterprises and
Chinese conglomerates, including the provision of credit enhancement
service in supporting domestic companies in Mainland China to issue its
offshore corporate bond. Fully supported by CCB, CCB (Asia) launches
synergistic businesses such as entrusted payment, export account
receivable risk participation, discount against draft avalisation and more.
Other business developments of corporate banking include the aircraft
finance business and the emerging business in the Shenzhen Qianhai

Financial District and the Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone.

For treasury business, CCB (Asia) manages the bank’s bond portfolio, issues
bank debt instruments, carries out money market lending and borrowing,
bond repurchase, foreign exchange, interest rate and derivative products
proprietary trading and market making. Designated by The Hong Kong
Monetary Authority, CCB (Asia) is Primary Liquidity Provider (PLP) for
offshore RMB market in Hong Kong. In addition, CCB (Asia) provides bank
clients with treasury products sales and trading services including foreign
exchange, interest rates, derivatives and securities. Comprehensive and
integrated trading and financing solutions are offered to clients. CCB
(Asia) has established extensive treasury business relationships with banks,
corporate and institutional clients. Flexible and diversified investment,
trading, financing and hedging products are also provided to local and

overseas clients.
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CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK CORPORATION

China Construction Bank Corporation, headquartered in Beijing, is a leading
joint stock large-scale commercial bank in China. Its predecessor, China
Construction Bank, was established in October 1954. It was listed on Hong
Kong Stock Exchange in October 2005 (stock code: 939) and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange in September 2007 (stock code: 601939). At the end of
2019, the Bank’s market capitalisation reached US$217,686 million, ranking
fifth among all listed banks in the world. The Group ranks second among

global banks in terms of Tier 1 capital.

The Bank provides customers with comprehensive financial services,
such as personal banking, corporate banking, investment and wealth
management. With 14,912 banking outlets and 347,156 staff members as
of March 19, 2020, the Bank serves hundreds of millions of personal and
corporate customers. The bank has more than 200 overseas institutions
at various levels in 30 countries and regions, and subsidiaries in different
industries and sectors including fund management, financial leasing, trust,

insurance, futures, pension and investment banking.

Adhering to the “market-oriented, customer-centric” business philosophy,
the Bank is committed to developing itself into a bank with top value
Creation capability. The Bank strives to achieve the balance between short-
term and long-term benefits, and between business goals and social
responsibilities, so as to maximise the value for customers, shareholders,
society and its associates.

CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report
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ABOUT CCB

VISION

Build a world class banking group with top value creation capability.

MISSION

Provide better services to our customers, create higher value to our
shareholders, build up broader career path for our associates and assume

full responsibilities as a corporate citizen.

CORE VALUES

Integrity, Impartiality, Prudence, Creation
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CCB (Asia) originated from The Bank

of Canton which was established
in Hong Kong in 1912 by Chinese

businessmen, including Li Yuk-tong

)
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and Look Pong-shan. It was the
first Chinese-owned bank in Hong
Kong and Look Pong-shan was the

first chairman. The headquarter was

located at 6 Des Voeux Road Central, = EMEE _—" Hong Kong was occupied by
B HAREEET 65 p /

Hong Kong, which is now the Eﬁ?%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ Japan in World War Il. The bank's

flagship branch of CCB (Asia). ThelBank of @Ganton e business was suspended again.

office was located at 6 Des

Voeux Road Central

1936

RITREHEERARRIEE  MIB5FRE - ERERFXEETESE
HoORITENEESE  YR11ABAEE  ARTXHEEESSERE -

EBEREZRM  KUBRBPITRFIMBEBAT - RERNRFIGEMEVEERRIT -
Due to Great Depression, operations of the bank were suspended in 1935. Through re-

capitalization by Soong Tse-ven, the bank reopened on November 23 and was chaired
by Soong Tse-ven.

The bank expanded its business to Macau by setting up a subsidiary Bank of Canton
(Macauy), which was the first Chinese-owned financial institution registered in Macau.

1936 FERIRITIEE - WARFX(HM)
HEEEEERE

The Bank of Canton reopened in 1936. Soong Tse-ven
(forth from right) served as the Chairman of the board

()
@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report
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World War Il ended and Hong Kong was liberated. ERRATHFRIMRT -
Former staff rebuilt The Bank of Canton and its banking The Bank of Canton officially announced its
business was quickly back on track. It soon became cooperation with Security Pacific National
the largest Chinese-owned remittance and foreign Bankin 1971.1n 1988, The Bank of Canton was
exchange bank in Hong Kong in the post-war era. officially renamed Security Pacific Asian Bank.

BEAR R IRTT
Tl KL35BEF =
| (1947 4F) <
Celebration of the T RKFETEMNRITIER
35th Anniversary BABRT
of The Bank of mm The inauguration of
Canton (1947) - Security Pacific Asian
Bank

1966
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Shanghai Fire & Marine Insurance Co. Ltd. became a
subsidiary of The Bank of Canton and was renamed
Hongkong & Shanghai Insurance Company Limited later. In
2001, Hongkong & Shanghai Insurance Company Limited
merged with QBE Insurance (Hong Kong) Ltd, a wholly
owned subsidiary of QBE Group and was renamed QBE
Hongkong & Shanghai Insurance Limited.

NG .
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CCB (Asia) acquired AIG Finance (Hong Kong) and

ERRTEEHEERK L FEBETEH - was renamed China Construction Bank (Asia) Finance,
REFTEMBRITRAERBRITEEZEWE laying the solid foundation for expanding the credit
Mg - W 1993 FHBAEBRDIMRIT - B card and personal loan businesses in Hong Kong.
2001 - B BB REBRIT(TMN) - )
EEER — 5 G ommREmeos

Security Pacific Corporation merged with Bank of
America Corporation. Security Pacific Asian Bank
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of
America Corporation and was renamed Bank of
America (Asia) in 1993. In 2001, the Chinese name
of Bank of America (Asia) was changed to align
with English. AT (M) W ERER SR (B8 B HER

Signing ceremony of the acquisition of AlG Finance (Hong
Kong)

2006

REZRRTAEBERITRBERERT(EM) W2
o WHSEE R RPBIRERERT(EEM) -

China Construction Bank acquired a 100% interest in Bank of
America (Asia) from Bank of America and was renamed China
Construction Bank (Asia).

27(RM) B

B 81.(2007 F)

The inauguration of
CCB (Asia) (2007)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report
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CCB Hong Kong
Business Integration

Business integration of China Construction
Bank (Asia) and China Construction Bank

Hong Kong Branch.

i He Ceremony
The three buildings of CCB in Hong Kong st
were officially inaugurated. CCB Tower is the G amaaan
e ]
head office of CCB (Asia), located at Central;
= EikEas
CCB Centre is the mid-to-back office of CCB's ﬁﬁfzfif;;ﬁ?
entities in Hong Kong, situated in Kowloon RE - FRERZRRITES
- ) 0 b= [IL2SRN
Bay; CCB Hong Kong Training Centre is CCB's (From left to right) CCB

first offshore training site, located at Sai Wan. Centre, CCB Tower, CCB
Hong Kong Training Centre

2017
EIT(EEM) 105 BEZE

CCB (Asia) Celebrated the 105th Anniversary

R2ANBRITI05BFEMBS

KWOSth Anniversary Cocktail Reception on February 21
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TO CUSTOMERS AND SHAREHOLDERS

We are delighted to announce that the consolidated net profit after tax for China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
("CCB (Asia)") to reach HKD3,682 million for the year ended December 31, 2019, an increase of HKD107 million or 3.0%, as
compared with 2018.

Total operating income of CCB (Asia) for the year of 2019 amounted to HKD8,373 million, an increase of 1.8% as compared
with that of 2018. If including the interest income of trading advances to customers and trade bills of HKD118 million and the
hedging FX and interest rate swaps expense of HKD265 million, net interest income amounted to HKD6,096 million, a decrease
of 2.7% as compared with that of 2018. Non-interest income after excluding the aforesaid interest income and hedging expense
was HKD2,277 million, representing an increase of 16.1% as compared with that of 2018, mainly attributable to the increase
in net fees and commission income and net gains from disposal of financial instruments measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income by HKD211 million and HKD145 million respectively.

Total operating expenses rose by 2.5% to HKD3,286 million and the cost-to-income ratio slightly increased by 0.25 percentage
point to 39.3%. In 2019, the amount of impairment allowance charges was HKD758 million, representing an increase of HKD123
million year-on-year. It was mainly due to the increase in individual impairment charge of HKD217 million as a result of some
loan downgrades.

Taxation decreased by 12.1% to HKD687 million as compared with that of 2018, mainly driven by the decrease in Mainland
withholding tax as well as the increase in the impact from non-taxable income and deductible expenses.

Total consolidated assets as at December 31, 2019 stood at HKD488.3 billion, recording an increase of 1.5% from HKD481 billion
at the end of 2018. The asset structure was further enhanced with the gross advances to customers and trade bills increased
by 13.9% to HKD292.3 billion, mainly driven by the increase in bilateral loans and syndicated loans, which fully offset the
contraction of loans guaranteed by mainland branches. Asset quality continuously maintained at a satisfactory level, with the
impaired advances to customers and trade bills representing 0.29% of the total advances to customers and trade bills.

The financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at amortized costs
decreased in aggregate by 5.1% to HKD93.8 billion, which was resulted from the continuous compression of assets with lower
economic value added or lower return such as debt securities issued by banks, which fully offset the impact from the increase
in high quality liquefiable assets. On the other hand, the cash, balances with banks and central banks, placement with banks
amounted to HKD8O0 billion in aggregate, decreased by 28.3% mainly a result of utilizing funds to support loan growth. The
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss increased by 183.7% to HKD10.8 billion, mainly due to the increase
in commercial loans held for trading purpose.

CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report



TO CUSTOMERS AND SHAREHOLDERS

The liability structure was also further strengthened during the year of 2019. As at the end of 2019, customer deposits increased
by 11.19% to HKD393.5 billion, of which retail deposits increased by 3.0%. The proportion of customers deposits to total liabilities
increased by 9.5 percentage points to 94.1%. On the other hand, the proportion of wholesales funding decreased by 8.4
percentage points to 3.4%, mainly attributable to the decreases in deposits and balances of banks and other debt securities
issued by 77.2% to HKD7.9 billion and 57.6% to HKD6.1 billion respectively.

As at December 31, 2019, CCB (Asia)’s Total Capital Ratio was 18.3%; the average liquidity coverage ratio for 2019 was
240.8%; the leverage ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio as at the end of 2019 were 13.4% and 130.2% respectively. All the

aforementioned ratios were maintained at sound levels and above the regulatory requirements.

This year, CCB (Asia) has continued to leverage the parent bank’s fintech superiority to strengthen its capabilities in pursuit of
“retail first, technology empowerment” to achieve the goals of digitalization and intelligent banking, as well as provide more
convenient financial services to customers. Meanwhile, CCB (Asia) has also seized the development opportunities of the Greater
Bay Area to explore more new products and services in an effort to satisfy people’s financial needs in the Bay Area and support

Hong Kong's integration into national development of the country.

Facing challenges out of various uncertainties in 2020, we will keep driving delicacy management, strengthening risk

[

and compliance management, and taking advantage of the Group’s “Three Major Strategies” to proactively capture the
development opportunities from the Greater Bay Area, the Belt and Road and financial technology initiatives to reward our

customers and shareholders with innovation for quality growth and value creation.

Last but not least, we would like to express our sincere gratitude to the parent bank and the members of the board of directors
for their valuable advices and support over the past year. At the same time, we also thank CCB (Asia)'s management team and
all colleagues for their dedication and diligence to provide heartfelt quality services for customers and support the steady

advancement and development of the businesses.

34 h /Y

Zhang Gengsheng Zhang Jun
Chairman and Non-Executive Director Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, March 19, 2020
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

In 2019

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ZHANG Gengsheng (appointed on December 31,2019) Chairman, Non-Executive Director

ZHANG Jun Vice Chairman, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
Miranda KWOK Pui Fong Executive Director, President

MAQO Yumin Non-Executive Director

XUE Shengli Non-Executive Director

FENG Xilai @ppointed on September 20,2019) Non-Executive Director

Lord Peter LEVENE Independent Non-Executive Director

WONG Kai Man sgs, p Independent Non-Executive Director

Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen s Independent Non-Executive Director

FOK Glenn (sppointed on June 18, 2019) Independent Non-Executive Director

RESIGNED DIRECTOR

JIANG Xianzhou (resigned on December 31,2019) Chairman, Executive Director

SECRETARIES
YU Haibing Secretary to the Board of Directors
Ted YAU Ka Bo Company Secretary
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

In2019

ZHANG Gengsheng
Chairman and Non-Executive
Director

ZHANG Jun
Vice Chairman, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhang Gengsheng has been appointed as the chairman and a non-executive director of the
Bank with effect from December 31, 2019. Mr. Zhang has served as executive director of China
Construction Bank Corporation (“CCB") since August 2015 and executive vice president of CCB
since April 2013. From May 2013 to July 2018, Mr. Zhang served concurrently as chairman of CCB
Life. From December 2010 to April 2013, Mr. Zhang served as a member of senior management of
CCB. From October 2006 to December 2010, Mr. Zhang was general manager of the group clients
department (banking business department) and deputy general manager of Beijing Branch of
CCB. From March 2004 to October 2006, Mr. Zhang was general manager of the banking business
department at the head office and the group clients department (banking business department)
of CCB. From June 2000 to March 2004 (in charge of overall management from March 2003),
Mr. Zhang was deputy general manager of the banking business department at the head office
of CCB. From September 1998 to June 2000, Mr. Zhang was general manager of the Three
Gorges Branch of CCB. From December 1996 to September 1998, Mr. Zhang was deputy general
manager of the Three Gorges Branch of CCB.

Mr. Zhang is a senior economist. He obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Infrastructure Finance and
Credit from Liaoning Finance and Economics College in 1984 and an EMBA Degree from Peking
University in 2010.

Mr. Zhang has been appointed as the vice chairman, executive director and chief executive
officer of the Bank with effect from March 26, 2018, and dean of China Construction Bank
University, Hong Kong Campus since December 14, 2018. Mr. Zhang joined China Construction
Bank in 1988 and has over 30 years of banking experience. Before taking over his current position
in March 2018, he was the general manager of China Construction Bank New York Branch since
2013. Mr. Zhang worked in the International Business Department of Shandong Branch of
China Construction Bank for many years, and later served as deputy general manager of China
Construction Bank Singapore Branch, Frankfurt Branch and was in charge of the project team for
setting up the Ho Chi Minh City Branch. From September 2008 to April 2013, he served as the
deputy general manager of China Construction Bank Hong Kong Branch.

Mr. Zhang is currently the vice chairman of Chinese Banking Association of Hong Kong. He was
the vice chairman of China General Chamber of Commerce — USA (CGCC) and the chairman
of CGCC Finance Committee. Mr. Zhang is a senior economist. He graduated from Shandong
University in 1988 with a Bachelor's Degree in Operations Research and obtained a MBA from
University of Hull, United Kingdom in 1999. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA)

charterholder.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Miranda KWOK Pui Fong

President & Executive Director

MAO Yumin

Non-Executive Director

In 2019

Ms. Kwok is the president and executive director of the Bank. Ms. Kwok has been serving the Bank
for over 35 years. Prior to July 2013, when China Construction Bank reorganized its Hong Kong
business by integrating CCB (Asia) and the Hong Kong Branch, she had been the president and
chief executive officer of the Bank. Ms. Kwok is a member of the Bank's senior management and
Executive Committee that supports the overall bank management and corporate governance.

Ms. Kwok's banking career began in 1984 when she joined Bank of America, Hong Kong as a
management trainee and had worked in diversified capacities of various divisions. In 1996, she
was transferred to Bank of America (Asia) (renamed CCB (Asia) in December 2006) from Bank of
America, Hong Kong Branch, and was promoted to chief credit officer and senior vice president,
responsible for credit approval and portfolio review, special assets management, collection, credit
policies and procedures etc. She was appointed chief risk officer in 2005 to manage credit, market
and operational risk. In addition, she assumed responsibilities over compliance, internal control
and the corporate secretariat. From 2008 to 2010, she assumed the role of head of Consumer
Banking in charge of retail business, credit card and wealth management in Hong Kong and
Macau.

Ms. Kwok is the vice president of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, non-executive director
of Financial Reporting Council, the member of the EFAC Financial Infrastructure and Market
Development Sub-Committee, Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Advisory Board
as well as Air Transport Licensing Authority. Ms. Kwok graduated with an Honorable Bachelor
of Social Sciences Degree in Economics and Management from the University of Hong Kong in
1984, and graduated with honors from the Graduate School of Retail Bank Management of the
Consumer Bankers Association in the United States in July 2001.

Mr. Mao has served as non-executive director of the Bank since August 9, 2016 and is a member
of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors, the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors, the Risk Committee of the Board of Directors and the
Compliance Sub-Committee under the Risk Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Mr. Mao has over 30 years of experience in the banking and financial sector. Prior to his retirement
in May 2016, Mr. Mao was the chief executive officer and executive director of China Construction
Bank (Asia) from July 2013 to May 2016; the chief executive of China Construction Bank Hong
Kong Branch from April 2011 to May 2016; the chief investment officer of China Construction
Bank Corporation from September 2007 to March 2011; non-executive director and the chairman
of CCB (London) from January 2009 to March 2011; and executive director and the vice chairman
of CCB (Asia) from September 2007 to March 2011. Mr. Mao also served as non-executive director
of CCB International (Holdings) Limited from March 2011 to January 2017.

Mr. Mao was a non-executive director of HKBridge Financial Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 2323) from March 2017 to August 2019; and an
executive director and chief executive officer of Shanghai Ai Jian Corporation Limited from June
2006 to July 2007 (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600643). He
was the senior vice president and the executive director of Cathay International Holdings Limited
from May 2003 to June 2006 (a company listed on the London Stock Exchange, stock code: CTl).
From March 1997 to March 2003, Mr. Mao was the chief executive of China Construction Bank
Hong Kong Branch, and was the general manager of International Business Department of China
Construction Bank from May 1994 to December 1996.

Currently, Mr. Mao also holds directorships in various companies. He has served as non-executive
director of Jiangsu Zeyun Pharmaceuticals Co,, Ltd. since June 2016; independent non-executive
director of China Life Insurance (Overseas) Company Limited and China Galaxy International
Financial Holdings Limited since July 2016; and Vice Chairman and President of Macao
Development Bank since February 4, 2019.

Mr. Mao received his Bachelor's Degree in Finance from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics in 1983 and completed the Program for Management Development (the 70th
Session) in Graduate School of Business Administration of Harvard University in 1995.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

In2019

XUE Shengli

Non-Executive Director

FENG Xilai

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Xue has served as non-executive director of the Bank since June 19, 2015 and is a member of
the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Mr. Xue joined China
Construction Bank Corporation (“CCB") in July 2014, he has been appointed as Chief Learning
Officer and Executive President of CCB University since July 2019. He also acted as the general
manager of the Human Resources Department of CCB during the period from 2014 to 2019. Prior
to joining CCB, Mr. Xue had been working in the Organization Department of the CPC Central
Committee since July 1996. From July 1987 to July 1996, Mr. Xue served in various positions in the
People’s Liberation Army. He has extensive experience in human resources management and has
completed a large number of research studies in relation to CCB's human resources management
after he joined CCB. Mr. Xue graduated from Jilin University in July 1987, receiving a Bachelor of
Arts Degree in Chinese Language & Literature. Mr. Xue was awarded a Master of Laws Degree in
Politics from Peking University in June 2005, and received a Doctoral Degree in Economics with

specialization in Political Economics from Jilin University in June 2012.

Mr. Feng Xilai has been appointed as a non-executive director of the Bank with effect from
September 20, 2019 and is a member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee
of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Mr. Feng has joined China Construction Bank Corporation
("CCB") since 1984. In 2019, he was appointed as the Director and Chief Executive Officer of
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (“CCBI"). Since 2017, Mr. Feng was also appointed as the
Chairman of China Construction Bank (Brasil) Banco Multiplo S/A. Mr. Feng has more than 30
years of experience in investment and corporate banking. From 1995 to 1999, he was seconded
from CCB to China International Capital Corporation Limited (CCIC) for setting up of the sales and
trading function for fixed income and the treasury function of the company. From 2013 to 2016,
he was the CEO of China Construction Bank (London) Limited. He also supervised and managed
various departments of CCB. He served as the Deputy General Manager of Capital Trading
Department, the Deputy General Manager of the Financial Market Department, the Deputy
General Manager of the Risk Management Department, the General Manager of the Market Risk

Department as well as the General Manager of the Internal Control & Compliance Department.

Mr. Feng received a Bachelor Degree from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law. He

received a Master Degree in Finance from Renmin University of China.
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In 2019

Lord Levene has served as independent non-executive director of the Bank since September 23,
2013 and is the chairman of the Risk Committee of the Board of Directors and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank. During the period from 1998 to 1999, Lord
Levene was the Lord Mayor of the City of London, the United Kingdom. From 2001 to 2019, Lord
Levene was a director of General Dynamics UK Limited; from June 2006 to June 2012, he acted
as independent non-executive director of China Construction Bank Corporation. Before that, he
served as chairman of Lloyd's and held directorships in various other listed companies including
director of J Sainsbury plc from 2001 to 2004, and director of Deutsche Boerse from 2004 to
2005. He is the chairman of Starr Underwriting Agents Limited and also a director of Getlink
SE (a company listed in Paris, France, stock code: GET), Haymarket Group Ltd, Tikehau Capital

Lord Peter LEVENE Europe Limited and Tikehau Capital UK Limited. Lord Levene was awarded a Bachelor's Degree in
Independent Non-Executive Economics and Politics from the University of Manchester.
Director

()

Mr. Wong has served as independent non-executive director of the Bank since July 4, 2016 and
is the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors and the Risk Committee of the Board of
Directors, and the chairman of the Compliance Sub-Committee under the Risk Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Bank.

He is an accountant with 32 years of experience in auditing, investigation, initial public offerings
and computer auditing. He was an audit partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), Hong Kong,
founding head of its Capital Market Services Group and a member of PwC China/Hong Kong
management board before retiring in June 2005.

WONG Kai Man 8gs, Jp Mr. Wong is currently a member of the Financial Reporting Council and an independent non-
Independent Non-Executive ayecytive director of two listed companies in Hong Kong: SUNeVision Holdings Limited (stock
Prrector code: 1686) and VTech Holdings Limited (stock code: 0303).

Mr. Wong was a member of the working group that set up the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and its listing committee (1999-2003), and a non-executive
director of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (2009-2015). He was an
independent non-executive director of China Construction Bank Corporation (2007-2013),
Shangri-La Asia Limited (2006-2015) and Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Armada Holdings Limited and SCMP Group Limited) (2007-2016).

Mr. Wong was an Honorary Associate Professor of the School of Business, The University of Hong
Kong (2005-2018), a Council Member of The University of Hong Kong (2011-2017), the City
University of Hong Kong (2007-2012) and Lingnan University (1999-2006). He also serves on the
boards of several charities and has served on government advisory committees and statutory
bodies in the areas of land, immigration, energy, law-enforcement, education and technology.

Mr. Wong obtained his Bachelor of Science in Physics from The University of Hong Kong and
Master of Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom and a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wong was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2002, was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
2007 by the Government of the Special Administrative Region of Hong Kong. He was conferred
an honorary fellow of Lingnan University, Hong Kong in 2007, City University of Hong Kong in
2013 and The University of Hong Kong in 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

In2019

Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen
Independent Non-Executive
Director

FOK Glenn
Independent Non-Executive
Director

Mr. Auyeung has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Bank with
effect from September 8, 2018 and is the chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors and a member of the Compliance Sub-Committee under
the Risk Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Mr. Auyeung is the chairman and a non-executive director of MTR Corporation Limited
(a company listed on the mainboard of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code:
66). He is also an independent non-executive director of HSBC Provident Fund Trustee (Hong
Kong) Limited and an advisor to Nippon Life Asia Pacific (Regional HQ) Pte. Ltd (a company
incorporated in Singapore).

Mr. Auyeung has over 40 years of experience in the insurance industry in Canada and Hong Kong.
Before his retirement in June 2017, Mr. Auyeung was Chairman — Asia of the Principal Financial
Group Inc. ("PFG"), a Fortune 500 company, responsible for PFG's overall businesses in Asia.
During his time with PFG, Mr. Auyeung represented PFG and its member companies across Asia
in building and expanding PFG's relationship with clients, joint venture partners and strategic
investors, and assisting in business development across all products lines of PFG.

Mr. Auyeung also actively serves the public sector and is currently an observer of the Independent
Police Complaints Council Observers Scheme, a member of the board of directors of the Investor
and Financial Education Council under the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
("SFC") and the chairperson of the Financial Education Coordination Committee under SFC. In
addition, he is a member of the Investment Sub-committee of The Community Chest of Hong
Kong, a board member of Bo Charity Foundation (Food Angel) and a convenor of the Jockey Club
Community eHealth Care Project.

Mr. Auyeung was previously the chairman of Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy Sub-
committee on Stakeholder Coordination and Collaboration and a member of the Independent
Review Committee on Hong Kong's Franchised Bus Service. He was a member of the Public
Shareholders Group and a member of the Committee on Investment-Linked Assurance and
Pooled Retirement Funds of SFC from 2000 to 2007 and from 1999 to 2006 respectively.

Mr. Auyeung holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies (Urban and Regional Planning) Honours
Degree from the University of Waterloo, Canada He was awarded an Honorary Fellowship by the
City University of Hong Kong in 2013 and was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2018.

Mr. Glenn Fok has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Bank with
effect from June 18, 2019.

Mr. Fok is a board member of the Financial Services Development Council. He is a senior
consultant of Moelis & Company Asia Limited, a leading global independent investment bank
listed on the New York Stock Exchange. He also serves as a senior consultant to Gold Peak
Industries (Holdings) Limited, an Asian multinational industrial group. Mr. Fok is serving as a
member of the board of West Kowloon Cultural District Authority. From September 2019, he was
appointed a member of the Council of The Education University of Hong Kong. He was a board
member of The Hong Kong Philharmonic Society Limited.

Mr. Fok was formerly a vice chairman and managing director of UBS, responsible for senior client
coverage. During his 32 years of investment banking and corporate finance career, he led many
landmark initial public offerings, domestic and cross border mergers and acquisitions, complex
debt and equity issuances, corporate restructuring and re-organisation, and strategic financial
advisory transactions. Prior to joining UBS, Mr. Fok was the head of investment banking services
and joint head of corporate finance of Schroders Asia Limited. He had served as a member of the
board of Bank of America (Asia) Limited, the Securities & Futures Commission Committee on Real
Estate Investment Trusts, the board of trustee of United College of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and the Hang Seng Index Advisory Committee.

Mr. Fok holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Chemistry from Occidental College and Master of
Business Administration from University of Southern California.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

As of March 19, 2020

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

ZHANG Jun

Miranda KWOK Pui Fong
GUO Zhipeng

WU Jian

LIN Ju

MEI Ning

Benny HA Yun Sang
Kenneth WONG Kwok Leung
Patrick LEE Yuk Wun

Mimi LEE Yim Mei

Ryan YING Jianjia

Tiffany LIU Huifen

Sylvia NG Sau Wai

XIAO Jing

Simon LING Wai Chi

SU Lin

Ashley ZHANG Hong
Justin WONG Hon Yu
Charles HUANG Changging
ZHOU Tianfeng

Johnny CHUNG Tin

Grace CHOY Yuk Shun

YI Ou

GUO Jingtang

Eileen YE Lin

Christopher TSANG Hing Keung
Helen YU Haibing

Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
President & Executive Director
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CCB Nominees Limited
20/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Better Chief Limited
26/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong (SAR) Hotel Limited
26/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

CCB Securities Limited
18/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

CCB Properties (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
26/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

CCB (Asia) Trustee Company Limited
G/F, 6 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong

CCB Hong Kong Property Management Company Limited
(In Member's Voluntary Winding Up)
29/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong

CCB (Asia) Insurance Broker Limited
18/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

Diamond String Limited
11/F, Lai Sun Commercial Centre, 680 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon
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AWARDS AND HONORS

AWARD/ORGANISER

Quamnet Outstanding Enterprise Awards 2018
- Outstanding Cross-Border Financial Services
Quamnet

IFPHK Accredited Professional Planning Firm 2019
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong

IFPHK Financial Education Leadership Awards 2019
- Corporate Financial Education Leadership

(Gold Award)
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong

Financial Services Awards of Excellence 2019
- Excellent Inclusive Finance
Hong Kong Economic Journal

Caring Company 2019/20
The Hong Kong Council of Social Services

Financial Institution Awards 2019
- Bank of the Year - Outstanding Performance
Bloomberg Businessweek (Chinese Edition)

2019 Best SME’s Partner Award
The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business

HKIB Talent Development Excellence Award
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers

Talent Development Excellence Award:
Star Award Human Capital Investment
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers

PROchoice Award 2019
- Corporate Social Responsibility
Capital Weekly Magazine

FinTech Awards 2019
- Outstanding Intelligent Personal Banking Services
ET Net

FinTech Awards 2019

- Outstanding Cross-platform Investment
Application Solution

ET Net

FinTech Awards 2019
- Outstanding Big Data Application
ET Net
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a corporation firmly rooted in Hong Kong for over a century, China Construction Bank (Asia) ["CCB (Asia)"] would endeavor
to pursue business growth and fulfill its corporate social responsibility to make sustainable efforts on servicing Hong Kong,
improving people’s livelihood and promoting financial inclusion, children and youth education, public charity, as well as love
the country and love Hong Kong with great contribution in 2019.

CONTINUOUS PROMOTION OF INCLUSIVE FINANCE

CCB (Asia) has stepped up efforts to promote financial inclusion in community recent years. CCB (Asia)'s volunteer team held
“CCB (Asia) Consulting and Guide of Inclusive Finance and Banking Services” seminar for the elderly in Choi Hung Estate,
Wong Tai Sin District, in Jan 2019, to share financial knowledge and introduce banking services to senior residents and low-
income group so that they can enjoy the convenient financial and wealth management services. In August 2019, dozens of
secondary school students from underprivileged families were invited to visit the Bank and learn bank operation at CCB Centre
in Kowloon Bay. During the event, Mr. Ko Lai-chak, the silver medalist of 2004 Olympic Games, was also invited to promote
positive mindset of physical and mental health and balanced development.

Dozens of seniors were invited to participate in “CCB (Asia) Consulting and Guide of Inclusive Finance and

Banking Services” seminar at CCB Centre in Kowloon Bay to know more about the fast payment system, financial
knowledges and banking services, and more.

REERRIT (B R BR AT - 2019FF5H @
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

NURTURING FUTURE GENERATION THROUGH EDUCATION

CCB (Asia) puts strong focus to nurture the development and learning of
children and adolescent. In March 2019, CCB (Asia) and the Boys' & Girls’
Clubs Association of Hong Kong jointly organized “Children Love the Earth—
Organic Farm Experience Day" activity, where our volunteers brought
children to participate in organic farming and production of environmentally
friendly handicrafts, educating children the importance of environmental

protection and cultivating them to commit a green lifestyle.

To support the “Youth Banker Summer Study Program” organized by the
Hong Kong Chinese Banking Association, CCB (Asia) arranged a visit for
students participating in the program at CCB Centre in Kowloon Bay in July
2019, and introduced the bank history development in the past century,
career opportunities in the financial industry, and provided banking
experience at a simulated branch, and more. The program aimed at inspiring

students to think about future career planning.

From September 8 to 10, 2019, CCB (Asia) volunteer team travelled to CCB
Hope Primary School in Bijie, Guizhou Province to replace more than 5,000
books in the school library and made charitable donations. Our volunteers
also visited Xinhua Village Primary School in Bijie to donate computers,
teaching supplies, furniture and other goods to the school. From October
14 to 18, CCB (Asia) participated in the second phase of “Excellence Pursuer”
volunteer activity of CCB Head Office, providing donations to five CCB Hope
Primary Schools in Ankang, Shaanxi Province, and sharing scientific and

technological knowledge with local students.

CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

30 local secondary school students from 18
different schools participated in the "Youth Banker
Summer Study Program” to experience and learn
branch operations at CCB (Asia)’'s simulated branch.

CCB (Asia) volunteer team travelled to CCB Hope

Primary School in Bijie, Guizhou for the third year to
conduct a “Brighten the Future of Children through
Reading” activity, donating books, computers,
teachers’ uniforms, student supplies, furniture and
other goods.



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

STAFF ENGAGEMENT IN COMMUNITY SERVICES

CCB (Asia) encourages staff to give back to the society, spreading love
and care to those in need and transmitting positive energy to the
community. From July to September 2019, CCB (Asia) volunteer team
provided frequent hairdressing services to senior residents in Choi Hung
Estate, Wong Tai Sin District; on July 19, CCB (Asia) organized blood
donation activity and motivated staff to participate as donors. The
amount of blood donated on that day far exceeded the daily average
amount of blood collected in the blood donation centres, which was
greatly appreciated by the Hong Kong Red Cross.

CCB (Asia) staff actively supported the blood donation

activity to spread love to the community.

PROMOTING DISABILITY INCLUSION IN THE SOCIETY

CCB (Asia) Art Gallery provides artists with disabilities
with an opportunity to display their talents, and also

builds a valuable platform for the community to know
more about arts with the disabled.

CCB (Asia) strives to promote disability inclusion, as well as supports
artists with disabilities and diversified range of local arts. In 2019, CCB
(Asia) continued to sponsor the ADAHK development fund, supporting
potential artists with disabilities to further enhance their skills by taking

art related continuing education and training.

To further promote inclusive art, CCB (Asia) has set up an art gallery on
the ground floor of CCB Tower in Central since 2018. In 2019, “CCB (Asia)
Art Gallery” exhibited the artworks of emerging artists from Arts with the
Disabled Association Hong Kong, including Kevin Cheng's photographic
work named “Hong Kong Portrait” and Apple Tong's original painting

named “Seeking The Rainbow".

REERRIT (B R BR AT - 2019FF5H @



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

COHERING POSITIVE ENERGY TO LOVE THE COUNTRY AND LOVE HONG KONG
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On the occasion of the 70th anniversary of the founding of the

People’s Republic of China, CCB (Asia) sponsored and fully supported

the “Together Dreamer — Exhibition of 70 Years Dedicating by Hong
Kong and Macau Compatriots” held at the Hong Kong Convention and
Exhibition Centre that showcased the history of national development

and glorious milestones of the country. It demonstrated CCB (Asia), as —
RO AR SRR EEY - AR AN
. . . . WREH YEAEH | 3R R EEAEE RS EEEG
a well-established Chinese enterprise in Hong Kong has taken deep :
AF(ER@SER—8—8 S8 - SREANEER - LRSESLEEE
e . . . e AL BADERNEANENEN - RO REYS - RETE - FRRSEAARR
responsibility to strengthen social cohesion and bring positive energy B ABERA-NSMEE - MR A6 BN SRR R

contributed to the long-term prosperity and stability of Hong Kong. s apeRREERERRERERL AR AR

CCB (Asia) sponsored the “Together
Dreamer-Exhibition of 70 Years Dedicating

by Hong Kong and Macau Compatriots”
that showcased the history and future
development on the 70th anniversary of the

founding of the People’s Republic of China.

CCB (Asia) has been providing continued support in shaping Hong
Kong as the event capital of Asia by sponsoring popular events. On
Feb 5, 2019, CCB (Asia) participated in Hong Kong Tourism Board’s
“International Chinese New Year Night Parade” again on the first day
of the Chinese New Year with its “Pioneer Express” float and parade
dancers, and as the sole “Parade Route Sponsor” for the fifth consecutive

year.

CCB (Asia) "Pioneer Express” float embarked on a new

journey in Chinese New Year.

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CARING FOR OUR ASSOCIATES AND ADVOCATING THE CULTURE OF HAPPINESS

CCB (Asia) continues the Happiness Charter to advocate happiness
culture among associates this year. The “Star Department Reward
Program” was also launched to encourage different caring activities,
as well as promote interactive learning and enhance communication
among different divisions. CCB (Asia) also promoted “creative” culture
through “Smart Suggestions Scheme” that allows associates to

contribute innovative ideas. Apart from these initiatives, the Bank has

also launched a series of “Positive Energy Enhancement” measures

and training programs; deepened the implementation of “Mentoring

CCB (Asia) organized the "Going Against the Wind"
activity for associates. People with disabilities were
healthy and environmentally friendly products were distributed to  invited to share inspirational stories in the activity,

Program”; continued to organize “Caring Week” this year in which

associates. CCB (Asia) has also invited people with disabilities from  promoting disability inclusion in the society.
enterprise to act as mentor in the “Going Against the Wind" activity,

sharing his valuable experiences and passing positive energy to

associates.

CONTRIBUTING TO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

For eighth consecutive year, CCB (Asia) has supported the Earth Hour organized by the
World Wildlife Fund. Apart from switching off unnecessary lights at the time of the event,
CCB (Asia) also encouraged staff participation at home with the hope of reducing energy
consumption. Moreover, the Bank continues to sign up for the Charter on External
Lighting launched by The Environment Bureau to mitigate issues of light nuisance
and energy wastage caused by external lighting. CCB (Asia) also actively promotes its
e-banking services, such as electronic cheques and electronic bills/statements in an

EARTHHOURHK Em AT effort to reduce paper consumption.

T g nmmemen

CCB (Asia) supported the Earth Hour

2019 to care for our planet.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“the Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal
place of business at 28/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“"the Group") are the provision of a range of banking and related financial services
through the Bank’s branches and subsidiaries. Other particulars of the Bank’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating segments is set
out in Note 20 to the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the financial year ended December 31, 2019 and
the state of the Bank’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 254.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
December 31,2019 (2018: HKD Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, charitable donations made by the Group amounted to HKD439,000
(2018: HKD1,336,000).

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT AND MEDIUM
TERM NOTE ISSUED

During the year, the following notes were issued by the Bank under its Certificate of
Deposit ("CD") Programme to raise funds for general corporate purposes:

BITHH WE I AE

Consideration

Amount Issued received

Al BB LT ST EIR1T (BT ) (BT )

Class Issued under HKD’000 HKD'000
BHE BHRET 8

CDs CD Programme 8,627,270 8,615,164

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report
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OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS ISSUED

During the year, the following instruments were issued

by the Bank to raise funds

for general corporate purposes and to improve its Tier 1 Capital level in accordance
with the requirements of the Banking (Capital) Rules (Cap. 155L).

BITREE WER Y KB
Consideration
Amount Issued received
Class H=Hl (F=x) (F=mr)
UsD’000 USD’000

Undated non-cumulative subordinated REFABBNIERBERR
additional tier 1 capital instruments BIN—MEATHE 500,000 500,000

BEEITEMAE T AFBRRM B IRKMT48 -

g E 84 170 5
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BES
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EFE(EER)
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®15 » SN BN
= BR R 8BS, P
EWR
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BEATERMAE NG RXT2EE
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Details of the other equity instruments are set out in Note 48 of the financial

statement.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year, the Bank has not entered into any equity-linked agreement under

Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Cap 622D).

DIRECTORS

(a) Directors of the Bank

The directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of the report

were:

JIANG Xianzhou (Chairman)
(resigned on December 31, 2019)
ZHANG Gengsheng (Chairman)
(appointed on December 31, 2019)
ZHANG Jun (Vice Chairman)
LORD LEVENE OF PORTSOKEN Peter Keith
WONG Kai Man 88s, Jp
MAQO Yumin
XUE Shengli
Miranda KWOK Pui Fong
AUYEUNG Rex Pak-kuen
FOK Glenn
(appointed on June 18, 2019)
FENG Xilai
(appointed on September 20, 2019)

Pursuant to Clause 111 of the Bank's Articles of A

ssociation, all the directors

of the Bank shall remain in office for the ensuing year.
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EE ) DIRECTORS (covrnuen)
(a) XRITWE=E(Z) (@) Directors of the Bank (continued)
L EEABR2019F 12 A31 HEHEAR Mr. JIANG Xianzhou resigned as Chairman of the Bank on December 31, 2019.
TEER—B - IhABALEDHERRES Mr. JIANG Xianzhou confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board
SWRFAERTE AW EmHEMBHAZ and nothing relating to the affairs of the Bank needed to be brought to the
EHARENTRRETE - attention of the shareholder of the Bank.
(b) FTHEBARMNESE (b) Directors of the Bank's subsidiaries
FARBERAREE R - sREEL A KB During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. ZHANG Jun and Ms.
FRTRARRERTRLEMBRAREER Miranda KWOK Pui Fong are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the Bank.
%o RIWBRRFAREBEARAREEH Other directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries during the year and up to the date
EEREBRESDOT ¢ of this report include:
JE 88 CHOW Sai Keung
(A 2019F 9 B9 HEHE) (resigned on September 9, 2019)
EhiEER CHENG Tat Kin
=it 8 LI Sai Cheong
A LIN Ju
L= S YAN Ka Lok
(2019 8 A1 HEHE) (resigned on August 1,2019)
JE R £ YING Jian Jia
BIE KWOK Yuen Wai
CEFRARMBATF - (resigned on January 2, 2020, January 3,

20201 A28
20204 1 A3 HEHT)

2020 related to different subsidiaries)

REE Sylvia NG Sau Wai
2E LIU Lei

(FA2019F 11 A1 BEHE) (resigned on November 1, 2019)
EA PANG Yiu Hung

(72019410 A 30 BEHE)

(resigned on October 30, 2019)

EWiE WU Jian
Z R LEE Yim Mei
sk MEI Ning
ki YAQ Peng
(FA2019%F 12 A6 HEZT) (appointed on December 6, 2019)
e YIOu

(FA202051 A2 BEERT)

EERXE - ZHR
BRNERER

(appointed on January 2, 2020)

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

AT~ SREATIER AR HIEBAR - RIEME  No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
NE - AECERBERNTNERBSARERZRN  Group's business to which the Bank, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries,
ISR - 1R ARSI EAREBERIERBM  fellow subsidiaries, joint venture company or associated company was a party, and
AITEZEERHBERBEEAFIZMNRS « T8 inwhich a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
RE# - subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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ESEHRE
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, joint venture company or associated company a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Bank to hold any interests
in the shares or debentures of, the Bank or its specified undertakings or any other
body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Bank were entered into or existed during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that every director, secretary or other officer of
the Bank shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Bank against all costs, charges,
losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him in the execution and/or discharge
of his duties and/or the exercise of his powers and/or otherwise in relation to or in
connection with his duties, powers or office. The Bank has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance which provides personal protection for the
directors and management against any financial loss arising from the potential
exposures associated with supervising or managing the Bank.

COMPLIANCE WITH HONG KONG BANKING
(DISCLOSURE) RULES

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

AUDITOR

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as auditors of the Bank and Ernst
& Young were appointed by the directors to fill the casual vacancy so arising. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Bank will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the board of directors

A

ZHANG Gengsheng
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong, March 19, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e
EY::

Building a better
working world

To the members of China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 254, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summiary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conmvuep)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowances for Expected Credit Losses on Advances to Customers
The Group has adopted a forward-looking expected-loss impairment
model to recognise expected credit losses ("ECL") in respect of advances
to customers. The assessment of credit risk and the measurement of ECL
are required to be based on unbiased and probability-weighted possible
outcomes, and reasonable and supportable information at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Significant management judgement and estimates
are involved in the development and the application of complex models
and the choices of inputs in the calculation of ECL, including:

- segmentation of financial assets according to credit risk
characteristics

- criteria to determine whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred

- determination of ECL stage, estimation of probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default and discount rates

- selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their
probability weightings.

As at December 31, 2019, gross advances to customers amounted to
HK$292.3 billiion, representing 60% of total asset; and the ECL allowance
for advances to customers amounted to HK$2.7 billiion, representing
88% of the total ECL allowance on financial instruments.

In view of the significance of ECL allowance and the management
judgement and estimates involved, ECL allowance of advances to
customers is considered a key audit matter.

Please refer to Note 4(c)(xv), Note 6, Note 8(a) and Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit management
policies and procedures, including measurement and recognition
of ECL. We read the minutes of the Group’s Risk Management
Committee, Credit Committee, and Special Assets Management
Committee meetings, for the approval of the internal credit risk
ratings and the ECL model governance and monitoring.

We performed walkthroughs of credit management processes
and evaluated the Group's impairment methodology, including
management judgement in respect of the segmentation of
portfolio, the criteria on significant credit deterioration and the
measurement approach of expected credit losses. We assessed
the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the key
controls over the systems and processes of credit assessment,
loan classification, stage classification and calculation of ECL
allowances. Our testing of the loan impairment processes’
controls included, amongst others, an evaluation of the
governance in respect of the selection of economic scenarios
and the controls over data input.

For the ECL allowance as at December 31, 2019, we performed
testing on the completeness and accuracy of the data used
in ECL calculation by comparing the individual loan data to
the relevant data source on a sample basis; evaluating the
calculation logic and data processing; and, recomputing
management's calculation of the ECL allowance.

We engaged specialists in evaluating the impairment
methodology and model enhancements. We assessed the
appropriateness of the ECL model used by management in
determining impairment allowances by evaluating the key
parameters and assumptions, including ECL stages, probability
of default, loss given default, exposure at default, and probability
weighted economic scenarios, adopted in the model.

In addition for corporate lending portfolio, we adopted a risk-
based sampling approach to perform loan review procedures
in order to assess the appropriateness of management'’s
credit risk rating and ECL staging by reviewing the borrowers’
financial performance, valuation of collateral and other available
information. As part of our loan review procedures, we selected
samples of credit-impaired loans and advances and assessed
their stage 3 ECL allowance by evaluating the timing and means
of realisation of collateral, the forecast of recoverable cash flows,
the viability of recovery plans and other credit enhancements.

We also evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the Group's key controls related to disclosures
on credit risk.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS conmvuep)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Information technology - Implementation of New Generation

System - Retail Banking Module

The retail banking module of New Generation System (“NGS-Retail ~ We obtained the policies and procedures in respect of control

Banking”) was launched in January 2019 and this required migration of ~ change management process to understand the controls

financial and non-financial data from the retiring core banking system to  around the system development lifecycle, formal user

NGS-Retail Banking, and changes to the existing key controls within the  acceptance testing, management approval and deployment. We

business processes. Implementation of NGS-Retail Banking may bring  evaluated management controls over data migration and data

operational and other risks, including: reconciliation that ensure the completeness and accuracy of
financial data transferred from the retiring systems to NGS-Retail

- unauthorised changes to program and financial and non-financial Banking

data
We obtained the project documents to understand the system

- incomplete and inaccurate transfer of financial and non-financial design of NGS-Retail Banking. We performed walkthrough on

i NGS-Retail Banki
data migrated to NG5-Retail Banking key business processes being impacted by the implementation

- unauthorised access to key systems of the NGS-Retail Banking and identified relevant IT application

controls and IT dependent manual controls, which are
- improper system functionality in key business processes due to

migration issues in the system implementation

procedures with both automated and manual aspects. We
tested the operating effectiveness of those IT application
controls and IT dependent manual controls that are determined
to have a material impact on the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We further performed testing on the IT general controls, which
are internal control procedures governing change management,
access security and IT operations, of NGS-Retail Banking.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrivuep)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Tso Pui Sze.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
March 19,2020

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @



LEBESER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

EZ2019% 12 A31 AIEFE | Forthe year ended December 31,2019
(BREFRIFERRSN - LA FITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

BfsE
Note 2019 2018

MEMBA Interest income 13,700,540 13,200,735
FESLH Interest expense (7,458,540) (7,080,767)
FEWAERE Net interest income 11 6,242,000 6,119,968
FEERASBA Fees and commission income 1,920,654 1,734,973
FEBNMETE Fees and commission expense (122,478) (147,506)
FEERASWAFE Net fees and commission income 12 1,798,176 1,587,467
R e F 58 Net trading income 13 91,920 416,524
BERKRAANBERA Net gains from financial instruments designated

BHEMNESMT AREIFHE  atfair value through profit or loss 14 20,303 33,828
HERANEESEZR Net gains from disposal of financial assets

HEgHt AR EmaE measured at fair value through

K& Rb B EW TR other comprehensive income 145,397 41
HAb gzl A Other operating income 15 74,884 64,409
KEW AR Total operating income 8,372,680 8,222,237
KEBR Operating expenses 16 (3,285,994) (3,206,427)
KRIBRRMERTIZAELRF  Operating profit before impairment losses 5,086,686 5015810
TEHAE B AT IR Net charge on expected credit losses 17 (805,366) (587,980)
e RR Operating profit 4,281,320 4,427,830
HEBTFEBEWS (JB5%)  Gains/(losses) on disposal of fixed assets 2,507 (1,605)
FEMREERE BE AT Share of profit/(losses) of joint venture/associate

SwFL (%) 32,33 12,094 (22972)
S B A R ES Gain on disposal of an associate 34 26,189 -
BEDE HEATIN Impairment reversal/(charges) on joint

REREER, (5HE) venture/associate 33 47,000 (47,000)
BRBE AT F Profit before taxation 4,369,110 4,356,253
HIA Taxation 19 (687,520) (781,701)
FEEF Profit for the year 3,681,590 3,574,552
M B ARG B IS R AR 2B - The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

64/ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report



SEEEWNER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#HZE 2019912 A31 HIEFE | For the year ended December 31,2019
(BREFRIFERRSN - LA FITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

2019 2018
FERR Profit for the year 3,681,590 3,574,552
Hib 2 EK Other comprehensive income
HENESENIBEZEER Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
KIER : profit or loss:
ERAREEFAHMEEKE Debt instruments measured at fair value
WEBIA through other comprehensive income:
FHRNEERNALEEED) Changes in fair value recognised during the year 521,884 288,725
EBABREEEN AR Reclassification adjustments for
amounts transferred to profit or loss 14,172 42,194
RIBEER 2 B BiaXk Expected credit losses recognised in profit or loss 12,733 (15,511)
B2 Tax effect (85,477) (51,864)
HEFSEH/EZEFEMNIER ¢ Item that may not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
HBERBRAABE AEM Equity instruments designated at fair value
PHWHNERTA through other comprehensive income:
FARERHAABEE Changes in fair value recognised during the year 107,221 5,931
EHBRFENEEEME2ERE Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 570,533 269,475
FEXHERFERE Total comprehensive income for the year 4,252,123 3,844,027

M B AR S MBS MAR AR ED S

The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

720194 12 A 31 H | As at December 31,2019
(BREFRIFERRSN - LA FITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

(i3
Note 2019 2018

5E ASSETS
B&MAERTTRPRIBITHLET Cash and balances with banks and central banks 21 39,198,295 78,238,697
FRURITHOR Placements with banks 22 38,068,541 31,753,841
RITER Advances to banks 23 1,918,005 -
REEFNESHEER Advances to customers and trade bills 26 289,613,916 254,471,410
BEGZETRENSREE Financial assets held under resale agreements 24 782,615 1,514,983
BANEBEFEEEE Financial assets measured at fair value

ATAERRESREE through profit or loss 25 10,826,353 3,816,227
BAREBEFEEEES Financial assets measured at fair value

FPAE M2 EU A through other comprehensive income

SREE 27 75,715,720 86,744,559
RESKAGTTENEMEE Other assets measured at amortised cost 28 18,072,831 12,065,832
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 29 1,830,577 2,756,470
REEDTENER Interest in a joint venture 32 1,913,865 1,955,713
NN oY Interest in an associate 33 = 69,223
BIERIEEE Deferred tax assets 35 548,379 396,042
ElE & & Fixed assets 36 2,594,611 3,200,961
EREEE Right-of-use assets 37 2,223,150 -
HEE Other assets 39 5,041,796 3,985,945
BEHAE Total assets 488,348,654 480,969,903
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A MR R R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

720194 12 A 31 H | As at December 31,2019
(BREFRIFERRSN - LABHE T ITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

MisE
Note 2019 2018

=L LIABILITIES
RITME LGS Deposits and balances with banks 40 7,876,390 32,167,403
BEPER Deposits from customers 4 393,460,941 354,129,879
O#EBE THENSRHEE Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 41 - 2,420,859
BERBRANEENEAR Financial liabilities designated at fair value

P ABERNERAR through profit or loss 43 126,699 -
BRTHMERES Other debt securities issued 44 6,148,951 14,515,909
TEeRIT A Derivative financial instruments 29 965,893 2,142,242
HEARE Lease liabilities 38 1,736,851 -
JETE BT IR Current tax payable 35 1,176,516 252269
EXERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 35 19,288 21,508
HmafE Other liabilities 45 6,572,481 7,008,032
%1EEE Subordinated debt 46 = 5833798
BEAE Total liabilities 418,084,010 418491,899
Rz EQUITY
&N Share capital 47 28,827,843 28,827,843
HMERTE Other equity instruments 48 11,712,840 7,811,732
] Reserves 49 29,723,961 25838429
BERSEE Total equity 70,264,644 62,478,004
ERNAEeE Total equity and liabilities 488,348,654 480,969,903
BFEEN2020F3 A 19 B FEL AT - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 19, 2020.
BEREE EFRFHHTEE ZHANG Gengsheng Chairman and Non-Executive Director
RE BIEFELK  HITEERITR ZHANG Jun  Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
B et B AR AR S B RS SRR VAR ED D - The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#HZE 2019912 A31 HIEFE | For the year ended December 31,2019
(BREFRIFERRSN - LA FITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Het L8 RE BE it L RE
i3 R& BHEIA WE  EfRE e R e it L]
Other Investment
Share equity General revaluation  Regulatory Other Merger  Retained
Note capital  instruments reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earings Total
20191 A1ARES  Balanceasat January 1,2019 28827843 7811732 750956  (173,930) 576966 15913 62262 24,606,262 62,478,004
WI9FERED : Changes in equity for 2019;
FREER Profit for the year = = = = = = - 3681590 3,681,590
Eh2EMeE (GRE) Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 570,533 - - - - 570,533
Ef‘x; %@Wﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 570,533 - - - 3681590 4,252,123
BEMERTR Issuance of other equity instruments 2 - 3,901,108 - - - - - - 3901108
ﬂ‘fﬂm&ﬁlﬁa"]?ﬂ Coupon paid for other equity instruments - - - - - - - (366,591)  (366,591)
EERE Regulatory reserve - - - - 73,018 - - (73,018) -
12019512 531 BVAER  Balance as at December 31,2019 28827,843 11712840 750956 396603 649,984 15913 62262 27,848243 70,264,644
#2017 E 12A318 E"]ﬁﬁ% Balance as at December 31,2017 28,827,343 7812200 750956 (562,295 2307924 15913 62202 20102632 59317435
BEX(EBHEREER|)  Impact on transition to HKFRS 9
E L7 - - - 11889 - - oA (314560)
Ro018%E1 B 1 BE&ES Restated balance as at January 1,2018
(BR) 28,827,843 7,812,200 750956 (443405) 2,307,924 15913 62262 19669182 59002875
WISFEZED Changes in equity for 2018:
B3yl Profit for the year - - - - - - - 35M55) 357455
HEp 2wl (RHE) Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 269475 - - - - 269475
FERENRESR Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 269475 - - - 3574552 3844007
BITHMESTAEMMA  Costforissuance for other
equity instruments 48 - (468) - - - - - - (468)
TREMERTANES Coupon paid for other equity instruments - - - - - - - (368:430) (368:430)
EEHE Regulatory reserve - - - - (1730959) - - 173098 -
#2018 E 12A318 E"]%ﬁ% Balance as at December 31,2018 28,827,343 7811732 750956 (173,930) 576,966 15913 62202 24606262 62478004
M B AR & M S R AR 2B © The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EZ2019% 12 A31 BIEFE | Forthe year ended December 31,2019

(BREFHIEEEASN -

LAPS®EF 757K ) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Wik

Note 2019 2018
HEEMRENREFHE Net cash outflow from operations 54(a) (53,886,630) (6,102,124)
EREBFEH Hong Kong Profit Tax paid (406) (766,131)
BB Withholding tax paid (2,900) (55,128)
REETHMAHNELSFE  Netcash outflow from operating activities (53,889,936) (6,923383)
BARRAEEFEAEE Purchase of financial assets measured at fair

AAEMZEKENEEBERE  value through other comprehensive income (64,625,830) (12,884,587)
BEANRBHREATENEMERE  Purchase of other assets measured at amortised cost (27,407,968) (2,837,820)
BRORHERANEEFER  Proceeds received from redemption and

HEE AR M E2EIRER disposal of financial assets measured at fair

PREEMGRE value through other comprehensive income 78,441,666 26,263,611
FEIRE MK AT EREM Proceeds received from redemption of other

AEMSEHIE assets measured at amortised cost 23,870,348 6,077,001
HEBE N RFTEHE Proceeds received from disposal of an associate,

(MBRZHMA) net of transaction costs 96,354 _
HEETEEMBRE Proceeds received from disposal of fixed assets 3,169 -
BAMERSE Purchase of property and equipment 36 (219,644) (191,635)
BRAERERS Dividend received from a joint venture 32 100,000 150,000
BT RFELTRERS Dividends received from listed and

unlisted investments 6,444 5,903
ERETHMARANEESFE  Netcashinflow from investing activities 10,264,539 16,582,473
BITHMERTIA Issuance of other equity instruments 3,901,350 -
FTRBTEMER T ANRA Cost paid for issuance for other equity instruments (242) (468)
EE%ERE Redemption of subordinated debt (5,882,775) -
YRR EEENFE Interest paid on subordinated debt (250,115) (249,788)
YHEMEETANER Coupon paid for other equity instruments (366,591) (368430)
BENTHAEL TS Principal portion of lease payments 38 (237,036) -
EREEEMAHNREEFE Net cash outflow from financing activities (2,835,409) (618,686)
BENBESSEMORD) /B  (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (46,460,806) 9,040,404
R1B1BMNBEEHELEEY  Cashand cash equivalents as at January 1 98,236,963 90,139,671
INEHEEE s P8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (374,512) (943,112)
R12B31 AMBRELMBEELEEY Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31 54(p) 51,401,645 98,236,963

M B AR A MBS MAR AR B

statements.

The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated financial
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LAY T 7T5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

—RER
HE2019F12A31BIEFENGATH
HEBREFHEZREBT(EMBHER
RAARITDAMSHEB RSB AL
) UERAEEREBEQFREED
¥z - AV BMREN 202053 A
1OHEESESZRMHE -

BRERGHRES

AV BHRRRRBEESTM AR
o 1 B B i P KR B B 35 S ZE R (1t
mREEaMmAERNEIKEBM RS E
A - (BAREERDMZE) RBEB AR
SR RAGH - AMBHRRBEBEB(R
AMEBIN (5 622 %) R FEE K -

BEGFMAERM T E T MEER]
ECE BB RERER) - gL ERER
SEMAITE AT S ST MRS £ REK AT
HIEATRA - s IRHABEREAZXS
ZRIMSI RS ERRESHOER - MEF
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EERIMAE ST HIRNGSMEHRERA -

mRER
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BREEEARTEDEE " BENEN @ 1%
HERBMIEFREGE B BIRARES - A
SENSHTFERRARETE  ASFE
THA1H®Z12A83181tE -

(a) FERE
HREFHEAESERESRARA
ERABERRRBELEZE
B A EMERILAFELERE
e HIELERFR  EFEE
BEEE R EERMKAEENZ S
HER  BEHREEZHN  BER
ENERERHTEA -

GENERAL INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019
comprise China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“the Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) and the Group's
interest in an associate and a joint venture. The consolidated financial
statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 19, 2020.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs"), which collectively
include all individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Bank. Note 5 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group and the Bank for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position in
order of liquidity based on the Group's intention and perceived ability to
recover/settle the majority of assets/liabilities of the corresponding financial
statement line item. The Group uses the calendar year as the accounting
year, which is from January 1 to December 31.

(@) Going concern
These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as
the directors are satisfied that the Group and parent company have
the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In
making this assessment, the directors have considered a wide range of
information relating to present and future conditions, including future
projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LA T 7L5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

3 wEE®

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

srEER
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conrinuen

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except that: (i) financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVPL") are measured at fair value; (i) financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI")
are measured at fair value; (iii) derivative financial instruments are
measured at fair value; (iv) The carrying values of recognised assets and
liabilities that are hedged items in fair value hedges, and otherwise
carried at amortised cost, are adjusted to record changes in fair value
attributable to the risks that are being hedged; (v) certain non-financial
assets are measured at its designated cost. The measurement basis of
major assets and liabilities are further explained in Note 4.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars, unless
otherwise stated, rounded to the nearest thousand, which is the
functional currency of the Group.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the
subsequent period are discussed in Note 6.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in
the consolidated statement of financial position except when HKFRS
netting criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LAY T 7T5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

3 mEER = 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conmmueD)

() FEEHRE () Local regulatory reporting
AEBENEART R RDIZRHE In preparing the capital adequacy ratios of the Group, they are
EMEEAERAE -  BERE prepared according to the basis of consolidation for regulatory
AR REERAR 2 RAEERS purposes. The main difference between the consolidation basis for
AREERAEBREAITREFRGH accounting and regulatory purposes is that the former includes the
BAR - BERARIRAEERE T Bank and all its subsidiaries, an associate and a joint venture whereas
BELTRIELEIFBRITEB 2E the latter excludes CCB Securities Limited (“CCBS"), CCB Nominees
TEHFBERARETES]D & Limited (“CCBN") and CCB (Asia) Trustee Company Limited (“CCBT")
TREA)BERRATEZITNRE which conduct non-banking related business.

ADRRGSHERERA DR
A -

TEEEGeERBEEEREDN Details of the subsidiaries which are not included in consolidation for
MEARIFENT : regulatory purposes are as follows:
BEHE R
Total assets Total equity
2019 F 20185 2019 F 20185
12A31H 12A318 12A31H 12A31H
Name of December 31, | December 31, | December31, | December 31,
DEEHW  company FEEH Principal activities 2019 2018 2019 2018
BTESF S BHEILER Securities
brokerage
business 1,075,106 897,628 621,104 605,904
BITREA  CBN SAERREARSE  Custodian and
nominee services 40,161 39,588 39,475 38,947
Bi7fsst caet FERRFEAES  Tusteeand
custodian services 115,304 73,962 55,132 39,776
4 FESTBREBE 4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
(@) HFEMBEHREK (a) Consolidated financial statements
(i) HEBARE (i)  Subsidiaries
Sy NP RN S E B2tk ey Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
FIEXE(BEERIbER) - which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
EREEARHEIRE F K when the Group has the power over the activities of the entity,
B RBRSEWREFE and is exposed to, or has the rights to the variable returns from
MARRE B M = A Al E = 3R - its involvement with the entity, and has the ability to affect
WEBRNEREEKREE those returns through its power over the activities of the entity.
Mg EHRD RS ER - Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
REE AR BTG IR E = control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
B AEBRESHEIREE from the date that control ceases.

REEIESIZ BREZERMAA
B RERAERIKE TR
22 BEEE A6 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LA T 7L5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4 FEEHBRBED
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BEEMOEEFAEAR -

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(a) Consolidated financial statements (continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries (continued)

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so
that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in
deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting
rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant
activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements.
The Group is considered to consolidate another entity if, in
addition to ongoing involvement with the entity, it had a key
role in establishing the entity or in bringing together relevant
counterparties so the transaction that is the purpose of the
entity could occur. The Group is generally not considered to
consolidate another entity if the only involvement with the
entity is merely administrative.

The financial results and performance of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases.
When preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Group makes necessary adjustments on the accounting period
and accounting policies of subsidiaries to comply with those of
the Group.

Intragroup balances and transactions, and any profits or losses
arising from intragroup transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

When the Group ceases to have control any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRAFRIRERASN -

4 FESTHREBE s
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(ii)

B HwEk(E)

BB LA (%)
EARTHREEMBHRRRA
REE R 7%&§m&&$ﬂ
ERERK(IE) R

BEATHAELEEHY
i NCIEE RN SE T S el
EAFENDE ERATER
EE IR E L EN M B ML E
BEBSERROES - BX
eSSl E EE M — i
HEZEGIELIRER TE -

RECENLTHEHE —THHM
1B SR AR 1 A £ By 22 8275 R4
B2k - @F%%@Hmé
RENMEB D BRARLE
RELRE - KREHIZER
TR A RN EHRARHE
BB EMIES > B %
ZHH RSV AEREEZ
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁmﬁﬁﬁwﬂ
RERKBEE BN ZIEHIHE
M2 EEREN —BRBRTE
REBFE - BBAHAERH
HERRE - NEBEEE ML
RERHIREEDRE -

R B P ET - S AN
BELENREREDER
B REERE  REEME
BENRERRAEIGE
R WENREEBRRARE
Frifit 2k € XM FE
EERBROESHFELAE

HB AR L EABNHE
FRAREMEEEE BTE

BETRER -

AT ILHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(a) Consolidated financial statements (continued)

(M)

(ii)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Subsidiaries (continued)
In the Bank's statement of financial position, its investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Associates and joint arrangements

An associate is an enterprise in which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policy decisions.

Joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control. The classification of a joint
arrangement as a joint operation or a joint venture depends
upon the rights and obligations of the parties to the
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control over an economic activity, and exists only when
the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
the control. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.

Interests in associates or joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.
Under the equity method, the interest in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of
the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's
share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the
acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint
venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is not tested for impairment separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LA T 7L5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4 FESHHEE#EME») 4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(a) #HREMBKHRERE) (@) Consolidated financial statements (continued)
(i) BELGHNEELFELH (i)  Associates and joint arrangements (continued)

(%)
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The consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the Group's
share of the results of operations of the associate or joint
venture. Any change in OCl of those investees is presented
as part of the Group's OCI. In addition, when there has been
a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or
joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an
associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss outside operating
profit and represents profit or loss after tax and noncontrolling
interests in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting
policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its
investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting
date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence
that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired.
If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then
recognises the loss in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(a)

(b)

(c)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Consolidated financial statements (continued)
(i)  Associates and joint arrangements (continued)

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Translation of foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition, translated
into the functional currency at the spot exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the spot exchange rates at that date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in “Net trading income”. Non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured
at historical cost are translated into functional currency using the
spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are translated using the spot exchange rates at the dates the fair
values are determined; exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as trading income, except for
the differences arising from the translation of financial instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, which
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Financial instruments

(i)  Initial recognition
All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position, when and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Initial recognition (continued)

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition
depends on their contractual terms and the business model for
managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially
measured at their fair value, except in the case of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVPL, transaction costs
are added to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables
are measured at the transaction price.

Accrued contractual interest from financial assets and liabilities
are presented as “Other assets” and “"Other liabilities” separately
in the consolidated financial statements.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial instrument
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial instrument. Transaction
costs for financial instruments carried at FVPL are expensed
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the
business model for managing the assets and the asset's
contractual terms, measured at either:

- Amortised cost

- Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI”)

- Fair value through Profit or Loss ("FVPL")
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Measurement (continued)

The Group classifies and measures its derivative and trading
portfolio at FVPL. The Group may designate financial
instruments at FVPL, if so doing eliminates or significantly
reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies.

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial
guarantees, are measured at amortised cost or at FVPL when
they are held for trading and derivative instruments or the fair
value designation is applied.

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost

The Group measures most loans and advances to banks and
customers and some debt securities, which are measured at
amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding.

Business model assessment

The Group determines its business model at the level that best
reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its
business objective:

- The risks that affect the performance of the business
model and, in particular, the way those risks are
managed;
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collected.

The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also
important aspects of the Group’s assessment. The business
model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios
without taking “worst case” or “stress case” scenarios into
account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a
way that is different from the Group's original expectations,
the Group does not change the classification of the remaining
financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates
such information when assessing newly originated or newly
purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process the Group assesses
the contractual terms of the financial asset to identify whether
they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value
of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over
the life of the financial asset.

The most significant elements of interest within a lending
arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value
of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the
Group applies judgement and considers relevant factors such
as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and
the period for which the interest rate is set.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
(continued)

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de
minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do
not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such
cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVPL.

Derivatives
A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all
three of the following characteristics:

- Its value changes in response to the change in a specified
interest rate, equity price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or
credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case
of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to
the contract;

- It requires no initial net investment or an initial net
investment that is smaller than would be required for
other types of contracts expected to have a similar
response to changes in market factors; and

- [t is settled at a future date.

The Group enters into derivative transactions with various
counterparties. These include interest rate swaps, currency
swaps, equity swaps, foreign exchange contracts and options
on foreign currencies. Derivatives are recorded at fair value and
carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities
when their fair value is negative. The notional amount and fair
value of such derivatives are disclosed separately in Note 29.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in “Net
trading income”. Hedge accounting disclosures are provided in
Note 30.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(v)

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An
embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that
otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified
according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or
rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided
that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a
party to the contract. A derivative that is attached to a financial
instrument, but is contractually transferable independently
of that instrument, or has a different counterparty from that
instrument, is not an embedded derivative, but a separate
financial instrument.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset,
then the Group assesses the entire contract for classification
and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded
derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

- Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contract;

- A separate instrument with the same terms would meet
the definition of a derivative; and

- The hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(v)

(vi)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Embedded derivatives (continued)

The Group presents the structured deposits, which contain
both deposit and derivative components, as “Financial liabilities
designated at FVPL" in the consolidated statement of financial
position since they are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis. Reassessment only occurs
if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss category.

Financial instruments held for trading

The Group classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held
for trading when they have been purchased or issued primarily
for short-term profit-making through trading activities or form
part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of
short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities
are recorded and measured in the consolidated statement
of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in “Net trading income”. Interest and dividend
income or expense is recorded in net trading income according
to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has
been established.

This classification is included debt securities and trading loans
with customers that have been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
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() &WMTEE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(vii) #RAEEEHRZE (vii) Financial instruments measured at fair value through
ABmp2@T A profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are
those that are not held for trading and have been either
designated by management upon initial recognition or are
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under
HKFRS 9. Management only designates an instrument at FVPL
upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria is
met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis:

- The use of the designation removes or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch; or

- When a group of financial assets and liabilities or a group
of financial liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on the fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy;
or

- The liabilities contain one or more embedded derivatives,
unless they do not significantly modify the cash flows
that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is
clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument
is first considered that separation of the embedded
derivative(s) is prohibited.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @



A MR AR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LAY T 7T5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4 FESTHREBE s

() &WMITEE)

vii) AL EEELREE
ABHE@MITAE)
BRAREEFEEEZEHHA
BaemEENSREEN
’A‘Mﬁ{ﬁua)\,&?é}ﬁﬂ%ﬁkﬁi
oo RABES ibaJr)\%E;ﬁT%
m BEXAEEAEEER
BE) ¥ 5 #HEQMTE#
ERHEFEHFABENEEE
EMRREEZEGRIN - 1LIE
’&/‘M BEEZmBHMEEI

wmABFEERET T8
FHOEEER - mElIMER
BARBEIEEHEEIFA
B R & E TR F) 265 A
ARFEAR - AR EER
SERHEZEHFTABENERT
BEAMKRBIRATE R EE
EREAI L& WA IFTA
RAEmE e

wiii) HLAEEFEAEEE
ABRMEEKEHIESET A
& [ B B LA (B R 4 By
AEEBBEEILESBARA

REEFEREZHIT AL
2R

- NEmMEHBELREMN
HETREERERH

BENEBEARED
TAE: &

- EREENSRGERT
BEARSIFE A

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

Financial instruments (continued)
(vii) Financial instruments measured at fair value through

profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recorded in profit or loss with the
exception of movements in fair value of liabilities designated
at FVPL due to changes in the Group's own credit risk. Such
changes in fair value are recorded in the own credit reserve
through OCl and do not get recycled to profit or loss. Interest
earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVPL
is recorded using the contractual interest rate. Dividend income
from equity instruments measured at FVPL is recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as “Other operating
income” when the right to the payment has been established.

(viii) Debt instruments measured at FVOC/

The Group classifies debt instruments at FVOCI when both of
the following conditions are met:

- The instrument is held within a business model, the
objective of which is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI
test.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)
(viii) Debt instruments measured at FVOCI (continued)

(ix)

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value
recognised in OCl. Interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the same manner as for other assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECL calculation for debt instruments
at FVOCI is explained in Note 4(c)(xv). On derecognition,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in OCl are
reclassified from OCl to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Equity instruments designated at FVOC/

Upon initial recognition, the Group occasionally elects to
classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity
instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of Equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled
to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as “Other operating income” when
the right of the payment has been established, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part
of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are
not subject to an impairment assessment.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @



A MR AR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRAFRIRERASN -

4 FESTHRBE»

() &®WMIAE)

x) EHE - BBEERNARIER
BAH
AREBMBITERRZ - WHER
REAMIEEAGE

KIEMERAHENEAERE—
AR o RIBZEAR - AN5H
WBEEARFHARNZEREA
BHETERNER - HBE5E
REREL  ELERMATE
HizAIBAERNHBER -

ERENERRRTISENIR
o EFBER  EREME
EERENEEAREET
FRAZAMBRRNKRA - 5L
TEMNBEREEANEBRER
TEEEREBRERE2H &

& o

B ERARARBEEIC YK
RE)RVBHRETP(CEHES
W) FIETERR - F1iRFERIE
AEBESEERTHAEBMU
THAERFEN S AR EELRE
2R P E RN 2 E
ERHIFES2 MTBERE RIB A
BHREETE -

YR REEERARNLZER
EREEBRERTERRIF
BENASBNFRE] -

AT ILHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(x)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Letters of credit, financial guarantees and undrawn
loan commitments

The Group issues letters of credit, financial guarantees and
other credit commitments.

Undrawn loan commitments and letters of credits are
commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan with
pre-specified terms to the customer. Similar to financial
guarantee contracts, these contracts are in the scope of the ECL
requirements.

The nominal contractual value of financial guarantees, letters of
credit and other credit commitments, where the loan agreed
to be provided is on market terms, are not recorded on in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The nominal
values of these instruments together with the corresponding
ECL are disclosed in Note 52.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements (within Provisions) at fair value, being the premium
received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liability
under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and an ECL
allowance as set out in Note 52.

The premium received is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as “Net fees and commission income”
on a straight line basis over the life of the guarantee.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Financial assets held under resale agreements and
financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions
where the Group acquires financial assets which will be
resold at a predetermined price at a future date under resale
agreements. Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
are transactions where the Group sells financial assets which
will be repurchased at a predetermined price at a future date
under repurchase agreements.

The cash advanced or received is recognised as amounts
held under resale or sold under repurchase agreements in
the consolidated statement of financial position. Assets held
under resale agreements are not recognised. Assets sold under
repurchase agreements continue to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The difference between the purchase and resale consideration,
and that between the sale and repurchase consideration, is
amortised over the period of the respective transaction using
the effective interest method and is included in interest income
and interest expenes respectively.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent
to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of,
or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

Other equity instruments

Securities, including Additional Tier 1 Capital instruments,
which carry a discretionary coupon and have no fixed maturity
or redemption date are classified as "Other equity instruments’”.
Interest payments on these securities are recognised as
distributions from equity in the period in which they are
declared.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

Financial instruments (continued)
(xiv) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset if the part being
considered for derecognition meets one of the following
conditions: (i) the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the financial asset expire; (ii) the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of the financial asset have been
transferred and the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or (iii) the Group
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the
financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay
the cash flows to the eventual recipient in an agreement that
meets all the conditions of transfer of cash flows and transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

- The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset; or

- The Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the
transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety
to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the
transfer.
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() &WMTEE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xiv) A& LEFEFR (4E) (xiv) Derecognition (continued)
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When the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control
of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement, in which case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset derecognised and the consideration received and
the cumulative changes in fair value previously recognised
in investment revaluation reserve are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any cumulative
changes in fair value previously recognised in equity investment
securities designated as FVOCI is not recognised in profit or loss
on derecognition but recognised in OCI.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, but retains
control, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset. If
the Group has not retained control, it derecognises the financial
asset and recognises separately as assets or liabilities any rights
and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

Financial instruments (continued)
(xiv) Derecognition (continued)

The financial liability is derecognised only when: (i) the
underlying present obligation specified in the contracts is
discharged, cancelled or expired; or (i) an agreement between
the Group and an existing lender to replace the original
financial liability with a new financial liability with substantially
different terms, or a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and recognition of a new
financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any cumulative
changes in fair value of financial liabilities designated under the
fair value option that are attributable to a reporting entity’s own
credit risk are recognised in OCl and these amounts are not
transferred to profit or loss upon derecognition.

(xv) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises expected credit losses ("ECL") for loans
and advances to banks and customers, non-trading reverse
repurchase agreements, other financial assets held at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, and certain loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts.
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() &WMTEE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xv) EHEELREE) (xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to
arise over the life of the asset (“lifetime ECL"), unless there has
been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected
credit losses (“12-month ECL").

The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that represent
the ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both lifetime ECL and 12-month ECL are calculated on either an
individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature
of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Group
has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end
of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the
remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Group's ECL are grouped into
Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and Purchased or originated credit
impaired ("POCI"), as described below:

Stage 1: When financial assets are first recognised, the Group
recognises an allowance based on 12-month ECL.
Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit
risk has improved and the financial assets have been
reclassified from Stage 2.
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Financial instruments (continued)

(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Stage 2:

Stage 3:

POCI:

When financial assets have shown a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the Group
records an allowance for the lifetime ECL. Stage 2
financial assets also include facilities, where the credit
risk has improved and the financial assets have been
reclassified from Stage 3.

Financial assets considered credit-impaired. The
Group records an allowance for the lifetime ECL.

POCI assets are financial assets that are credit
impaired on initial recognition. POCI assets are
recorded at fair value at original recognition and
interest income is subsequently recognised based
on a credit-adjusted EIR. The ECL allowance is only
recognised or released to the extent that there is a
subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding

amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial)

derecognition of the financial asset.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired

The Group determines that a financial instrument is
credit-impaired and in stage 3 satisfies the criteria
described in Note 8(a)(x)(3).

Interest income is recognised by applying the EIR to the
amortised cost amount, i.e. gross carrying amount less
ECL allowance.

For loss provision measured at the amount equivalent
to the lifetime expected credit losses of the financial
instrument previously, if, at the end of the current
reporting period, the financial instrument is no longer
having significant increase in credit risk since the initial
recognition, the Group measures its loss provision based
on the amount of its expected credit losses for the next
12 months, and the reversal of the loss provision arising
from it is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the current reporting period.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss on financial assets decreased and the decrease
in expected credit losses, the previously recognised
impairment loss was reversed. The amount of the reversal
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset that exceeded the amortised cost
at the date of the reversal had the impairment not been
recognised.
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since initial recognition based on the assessments
described above. Except for renegotiated loans, financial
instruments are transferred out of stage 3 when they
no longer exhibit any evidence of credit-impairment
as described above. Rescheduled loans that are not
POCI will continue to be in stage 3 until certain specific
conditions are met by the end of the observation
period of normally 6 months, with the approval from
management.

Significant increase in credit risk

An assessment of whether credit risk has increased
significantly is performed at each reporting period by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring
over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The
assessment explicitly or implicitly have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk, taking into account
reasonable and supportable information, including
information about past events, current conditions and
future economic conditions. The assessment is unbiased,
probability-weighted, and to the extent relevant, uses
forward-looking information consistent with that used in
the measurement of ECL. The detail is described in Note

8(a)x)(1).
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk

ECL resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (“12-month ECL") are recognised for
financial instruments that remain in Stage 1.

Measurement of ECL

The assessment of credit risk, and the estimation of ECL,
are unbiased and probability-weighted, and incorporate
all available information which is relevant to the
assessment including information about past events,
current conditions and reasonable and supportable
forecasts of future events and economic conditions at
the reporting date. In addition, the estimation of ECL
should take into account the time value of money.

In general, the Group calculates ECL using three main
components, PD, a loss given default ("LGD") and the
exposure at default ("EAD").
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

The 12-month ECL is calculated by multiplying the
12-month PD, LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated
using the lifetime PD instead. The 12-month and lifetime
PDs represent the probability of default occurring over
the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of
the instrument respectively. The EAD represents the
expected balance at default, taking into account the
repayment of principal and interest from the balance
sheet date to the default event together with any
expected drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD
represents expected losses on the EAD given the event
of default, taking into account, among other attributes,
the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of money.

The ECL for stage 3 financial assets is determined on an
individual basis. At the end of each reporting period, the
Group recognises the amount of the change in lifetime
expected credit losses as an impairment loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group's method of measuring expected credit losses
of financial instruments reflects the following elements:
(i) unbiased weighted average probability determined by
the results of evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
(i) time value of money; (iii) reasonable and evidence-
based information about past events, current conditions,
and future economic forecasts that are available at no
additional cost or effort at the end of the reporting
period.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Debt instrument measured at FVOCI

The ECL for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not
reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position, which
remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the
allowance that would arise if the assets were measured
at amortised cost is recognised in OCl as an accumulated
impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to
profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognised in OCl is
recycled to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the
assets.

Loan commitments and letters of credit

When estimating lifetime ECL for undrawn loan
commitments, the Group estimates the expected portion
of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over
its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present
value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan
is drawn down, based on a probability-weighting of the
scenarios. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at
an approximation to the expected EIR on the loan.

For credit cards and revolving facilities that include both
a loan and an undrawn commitment, ECL is calculated
and presented together with the loan. For loan
commitments and letters of credit, the ECL is recognised
within “Other liabilities”.
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statement of profit or loss, and the ECL provision. For
this purpose, the Group estimates ECL based on the
present value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls
are discounted by the risk-adjusted interest rate relevant
to the exposure. The calculation is made using a
probability-weighting of the scenarios. The ECL related
to financial guarantee contracts are recognised within
"Other liabilities”.

Rescheduled loans

Loans are identified as rescheduled and classified as
credit-impaired when the contractual payment terms
are modified due to significant credit distress of the
borrower. Rescheduled loans remain classified as credit-
impaired until certain specific conditions are met by the
end of the observation period of normally 6 months,
with the approval from management.
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() &WMTEE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xv) ﬁmﬁ’ﬁ/ﬁﬂ? BB () (xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
FHERE) - Rescheduled loans (continued)
WIRA Mm% A loan that is rescheduled is derecognised if the existing
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substantially different terms or if the terms of an existing
agreement are modified such that the rescheduled
loan is a substantially different financial instrument. Any
new loans that arise following derecognition events in
these circumstances are considered to be POCI and will
continue to be disclosed as rescheduled loans.

Write-off

When the Group determined that a loan had no
reasonable prospect of recovery after the Group had
completed all the necessary legal or other proceedings,
the loan was written off against its allowance for
impairment losses. If in a subsequent period the loan
written off was recovered, the amount recovered will be
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss through impairment losses.
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() &WMITEE) () Financial instruments (continued)
(xv) ﬁmﬁ’ﬁEﬂ? JBl1E (42) (xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

ATEEAERBELANH - Period over which ECL is measured

&

TEHEREXESRE Expected credit losses is measured from the initial
EVIRERREE 5 recognition of the financial asset. The maximum period
EEHEABANER considered when measuring ECL (be it 12-month or
HMERE(TtmeE+=M[A lifetime ECL) is the maximum contractual period over
8 HA {5 FA 18 K 2 17 4B 27 which the Group is exposed to credit risk. Where the
EHERBEXR)ARERE financial instrument includes both a drawn and undrawn
EAEEFEERARNSZE commitment and the contractual ability to demand
EREAR - fﬁ]@ BmTA repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment does
BIEE R ER &R 1R UK not serve to limit the Group's exposure to credit risk to

the contractual notice period, the contractual period
does not determine the maximum period considered.
Instead, ECL is measured over the period the Group

BAHBEARENEE remains exposed to credit risk that is not mitigated by
FU‘A : H'JG %) B fE 30 credit risk management actions. If the Group cannot
HRERZEHR - £ separately identify the ECL on the undrawn commitment
15 /R—F - BHIE A component from those on the drawn commitment,
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the ECL on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To

EEREREIRITEINE the extent that the combined ECL exceed the gross
BEHE E‘ﬁ [ B2 &) EA carrying amount of the loan, the ECL are recognised as a
TR MAKEKRES provision.
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Forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information in
the measurement of ECL. The mechanism of the model
incorporation is discussed in Note 8(a)(x)(5).
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As a part of its risk management, the Group has identified a
series of risk categories with corresponding hedging strategies
using derivative instruments.

Transactions that are entered into in accordance with the
Group's hedging objectives but do not qualify for hedge
accounting, are referred to in these financial statements as
economic hedge relationships.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging
relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements
(including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and
how the hedge ratio is determined).

A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it
meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

- There is “an economic relationship” between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument.

- The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the value
changes” that result from that economic relationship.

- The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same
as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to
hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Disclosures of the Group's hedge accounting are set out in
Note 30.
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In accordance with its wider risk management, it is the Group's
strategy to apply fair value hedge accounting to keep interest
rate sensitivities within its established limits. Applying fair value
hedge accounting enables the Group to reduce fair value
fluctuations of fixed rate financial assets as if they were floating
rate instruments linked to the attributable benchmark rates.
From a hedge accounting point of view, the Group designates
the hedged risk as the exposure to changes in the fair value
of a recognised financial asset or liability that is attributable to
a particular risk and could affect profit or loss. The Group only
hedges changes due to interest rates, which are typically the
most significant component of the overall fair value change.

In accordance with its hedging strategy, the Group matches
the principal of the hedging instruments to the principal of
the hedged items. The Group uses pay fixed/receive floating
interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed rate debt instruments.

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumulative
change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as “Net trading
income”. In addition, the cumulative change in the fair value of
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as “Net trading
income”, and also recorded as part of the carrying value of
the hedged item in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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() &WMTEE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xvi) EREF (&) (xvi) Hedge accounting (continued)
RIBEER(E) Fair value hedge (continued)

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised
cost, the adjustment to carrying value is amortised through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the remaining
term of the hedge using the effective interest rate method.
Effective interest rate amortisation may begin as soon as an
adjustment exists and shall begin no later than when the
hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair
value attributable to the risk being hedged. If the hedged
item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in
cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with
a recognised asset or liability (such as all or some future interest
payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast
transaction that could ultimately affect profit or loss.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of hedging
instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity in the “cash flow hedge reserve”. The
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the “Net
trading income” of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss
in the same periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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Cash flow hedge (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or the hedge
designation is revoked or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss on
the hedging instrument existing in equity at the time remains
in equity and is reclassified to profit or loss when the forecast
transaction ultimately occurs. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss existing
in equity is immediately transferred to profit or loss.

(xvii) Fair value measurement

If there is an active market for financial instruments, the fair
value of financial instruments is based on the prices within the
bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances, and without any deduction for transaction costs
that may occur on sales or disposals. A quoted price is from an
active market where price information is readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, industry group or pricing
service agency and that price information represents actual and
regularly occurring orderly transactions.

If a quoted market price is not available, the fair value of the
financial instruments is estimated using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques applied include the price used by market
participants in an orderly transaction, reference to the fair value
of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models. The Group selects
valuation techniques that are commonly accepted by market
participants for pricing the instruments and these techniques
have been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices
obtained in actual market transactions. Periodically, the Group
reviews the valuation techniques and tests them for validity.
Detail of fair value measurement is described in Note 9.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(0

(d)

Financial instruments (continued)

(xviii)Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when the Group has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and the transactions are
intended to be settled on a net basis, or by realising the asset
and settling the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are assets held by the Group for the conduct of business
and are expected to be used for more than one year. Construction in
progress is the property and equipment under construction, which is
transferred to fixed assets when ready for its intended use. Right-of-
use assets are presented together with fixed assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position refer to the accounting policy in Note
4(e).

(i) Cost

Fixed assets are initially recognised at cost. The cost of a
purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price, related
taxes, and any directly attributable expenditure for bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. The cost
of a self-constructed fixed asset comprises those expenditures
necessarily incurred for bringing the asset to working condition
for its intended use.

Where the individual components of an item of fixed asset
have different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group
in different patterns thus necessitating use of different
depreciation rates or methods, they are recognised as separate
fixed assets.
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Types of assets

Cost (continued)

Subsequent costs, including the cost of replacing part of an
item of fixed assets, are recognised in the carrying amount of
the item if the recognition criteria are satisfied, and the carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Expenditures
relating to ordinary maintenance of fixed assets are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write-off to profit or loss the cost
of items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. Impaired fixed assets are depreciated net of accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided on construction
in progress.

The estimated useful lives of respective fixed assets are as
follows:

FEEHERFR

Estimated useful lives

- ERAEREAEMNHELH

- Leasehold land classified as Right-of-use asset

- EEYERIBACAREENEELH L)
- Buildings (over interests in leasehold land classified
as Right-of-use asset)

- BREEMmEEE

- Leasehold improvements in owed properties
- HEEEwEEe

- Leasehold improvements in rented premises
- RAKR®B

- Furniture and equipment

- ERAERREENRE

- Equipment classified as Right-of-use asset
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FerHEH

the unexpired term of lease

SOFRFIHBEEHR(AME 2 BEEE)

shorter of 50 years or according to the remaining lease terms

7EAFAEERHARE 2 BEEE)

shorter of 7 years or according to the remaining lease terms

7ESFMEERARE 2 BEREE)

shorter of 7 years or according to the remaining rental period
3Z6F

3-6years

HEH M FI1FE10F

period of lease term, ranging from 1 year to 10 years

The Group reviews the estimated useful life and the
depreciation method applied at least once a financial year.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(d) Fixed assets (continued)
(iii) Disposal
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a
fixed asset are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the fixed asset
and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

(e) Lease
(i)  Lease (Applicable before January 1, 2019)

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or
contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement
and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset.

As a lessee

Leases that do not transfer to the Group substantially all of the
risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items
are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised
as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental
payable is recognised as an expense in the period in which they
itisincurred.

As a lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all of
the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income is recorded as earned based on
the contractual terms of the lease in profit or loss. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.
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(e) Lease (continued)

(ii)
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Lease (Applicable from January 1, 2019)

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset.

As a lessee

The Group previously classified leases as operating or finance
leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred
significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the underlying asset to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the
Group recognises “Right-of-use assets” and “Lease liabilities” for
most leases i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet.

The Group decided to apply recognition exemptions to
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of
the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The Right-of-use assets are presented within Note
37 and are subject to impairment in line with the Group's policy
as described in Note 4(h).
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(e)

(f)

Lease (continued)
(i)  Lease (Applicable from January 1, 2019) (continued)

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises
“Lease liabilities” measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (less any lease incentives receivable),
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects exercising the option to terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

As a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Intangible assets that
have an indefinite estimated useful life are tested for impairment
annually. Intangible assets that have a finite estimated useful life are
carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Impairment losses on intangible assets are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Note 4(h).
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(9)

(h)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take
possession of assets held as collateral through court proceedings or
voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Repossessed assets
are recognised and reported in “Other assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position when the Group intends to achieve an
orderly realisation of the impaired assets and the Group is no longer
seeking repayment from the borrower.

When the Group seizes assets to compensate for the losses of loans
and advances and interest receivable, the repossessed assets are
initially recognised at fair value, plus any taxes paid for the seizure of
the assets, litigation fees and other expenses incurred for collecting
the repossessed assets. Repossessed assets are recognised at the
carrying value, net of allowance for impairment losses.

Allowances for impairment losses on non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
there is any indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash
generating unit’s ("CGU") fair value less costs of disposal ("FVLCOD")
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(h)

(i)

Allowances for impairment losses on non-financial assets

(continued)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available
fair value indicators. In addition, the Group also makes management
judgements in estimating the fair value which involve significant
unobservable inputs and were subject to substantial uncertainty. If the
actual fair value of such asset is lower than management’s estimate,
additional impairment charge would be required.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
That reduction is recognised as an impairment loss and charged to
the the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for properties
previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI. For such
properties, the impairment is recognised in OCl up to the amount of
any previous revaluation.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss of the
non-financial assets/CGUs decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior periods.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and
compensations incurred by the Group in exchange for services
rendered by employees or the termination of the employment
relationship. Employee benefits are recognised as a liability in the
period in which the associated services are rendered by its employees,
with a corresponding increase in cost of relevant assets or the
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect of discount would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present values in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

@M

()

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Employee benefits (continued)

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO")
or Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes ("MPF") that are available to
employees. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in current or prior periods.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, as the result of a past event, the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation that can be reliably estimated and
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. A provision is initially measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the risks,
uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account as a
whole in reaching the best estimate. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the best estimate is determined by
discounting the related future cash outflows.

A potential obligation arising from a past transaction or event whose
existence can only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of future uncertain events; or a present obligation that arises from
past transactions or events where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits is required to settle the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably, is disclosed
as a contingent liability unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefit is remote.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(k)

U]

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
A financial instrument issued is an equity instrument if, and only if,
both conditions (i) and (i) below are met: (i) The financial instrument
includes no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial
asset to another entity, or to exchange financial assets or financial
liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
unfavorable to the Group; and (ii) If the financial instrument will or
may be settled in the Group’s own equity instruments, it is a non-
derivative instrument that includes no contractual obligations for the
Group to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments; or
a derivative that will be settled only by the Group exchanging a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its own
equity instruments.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the fair value
of proceeds received, net of direct issuance expenses.

Financial guarantees and loan commitments

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group as the
guarantor (the “issuer”) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs when a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received)
is initially recognised as deferred income in “Other liabilities” and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with the expected credit loss model under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments or the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. Provisions are recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position if and when it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the carrying
amount of the deferred income.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

U]

(m)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Financial guarantees and loan commitments (continued)
Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the
amount of the loss allowance as described in Note 8(a)(xi). The Group
has not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market
interest rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or
issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.

Income recognition

The Group recognises revenue when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. A customer obtains control when it has the
ability to direct the use of and obtain the benefits from the good
or service. The Group recognises revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The Group applies the following
steps in its revenue recognition:

Step 1:
Step 2:
Step 3:
Step 4:

Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
Determine the transaction price;

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract; and

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a

performance obligation.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(m)

(i)

Income recognition (continued)

Interest income

Interest income and expense for interest bearing financial
instruments are recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest method. Interest income includes the amortisation of
any discount or premium or other differences between the
initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing instrument and
its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest basis.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the
financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial
instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
assets, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not ECL.
For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using
estimated future cash flows including ECL. The calculation of
the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees
and points paid or received that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
a financial asset or financial liability.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is
the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for
any ECL allowance.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for ECL allowance.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(m) Income recognition (continued)

(M)

(ii)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Interest income (continued)

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial liability
is calculated on initial recognition of a financial asset or a
financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or
to the amortised cost of the liability. The effective interest rate
is revised as a result of periodic re-estimation of cash flows of
floating rate instruments to reflect movements in market rates
of interest. The effective interest rate is also revised for fair value
hedge adjustments at the date amortisation of the hedge
adjustment begins.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then
the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the asset. The calculation of interest income does not revert to
a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income is earned from a diverse range
of services provided by the Group to its customers and is
recognised as the related services are performed.

The performance obligations, as well as the timing of their
satisfaction, are identified, and determined, at the inception
of the contract. When the Group provides a service to its
customers, consideration is invoiced and generally due
immediately upon satisfaction of a service provided at a point in
time or at the end of the contract period for a service provided
over time.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(m) Income recognition (continued)

(ii)

Fees and commission income (continued)

The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services
before transferring them to the customers.

- Fee and commission income from providing services
where performance obligations are satisfied over time

Performance obligations satisfied over time include
asset management, custody and other services, where
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs. These include fee and commission
income from services where performance obligations
are satisfied over time including asset management fee,
credit facilities fees, loan syndication fees and custody
fees.

- Fee and commission income from providing services
where performance obligations are satisfied at a point in
time

Services provided where the Group’s performance
obligations are satisfied at a point in time are recognised
once control of the services is transferred to the customer.
This is typically on completion of the underlying
transaction or service or, for fees or components of fees
that are linked to a certain performance, after fulfilling
the corresponding performance criteria. These include
fees and commissions arising from investment services,
securities and insurance brokeage services, credit card
service, remittance, settlement, loan syndication fees and
account management fees.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(m)

(n)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Income recognition (continued)

(iii) Finance income from finance leases and hire
purchase contracts
Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals receivable are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are earned.

(iv) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted equity investments is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on the date when the Group's right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from a listed equity investment
is recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Dividends on equity instruments designated at FVOCI
that clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment are presented in OCI.

Income tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
end of each reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax also
arises from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. A deferred tax
asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

Current income tax and movements in deferred tax balances are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in OCl or
directly in equity, respectively.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled
according to the requirements of tax laws. The Group also considers
the possibility of realisation and the settlement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities in the calculation.

Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable
entity. Otherwise, the balances of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities, and movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Related parties

If the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to control, jointly
control or exercise significant influence over another party, or vice
versa, or where the Group and one or more parties are subject
to common control or joint control from another party, they are
considered to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals or
enterprises. The Group's related parties include but are not limited to
the following:

(i) The Bank's immediate and ultimate parent companies;
(i) TheBank's subsidiaries;

(i) Other entities which are controlled by the Bank's immediate
and ultimate parent companies;

(iv)  Aninvestor who has joint control over the Group;
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(p) Related parties (continued)
The Group's related parties include but are not limited to the following:

(continued)

v)

(vii)

(viii)

(i)

(xiii)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

An investor who can exercise significant influence over the
Group;

Associates of the Group;

Entities under joint arrangement with the Group;

Principal individual investors of the Group, and close family
members of such individuals (principal individual investors
are the individual investors who have the power, directly or
indirectly, to control, jointly control or exercise significant
influence over another party);

Key management personnel of the Group and close family
members of such individuals (key management personnel
represent those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity,
directly or indirectly, including any director of that entity);

Key management personnel of the Group's parents and close
family members of such individuals;

Other entities that are controlled or jointly controlled by
the Group's principal individual investors, key management
personnel, or close family members of such individuals;

A post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group; and

Other entities, or any member of a Group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
the Group'’s immediate and ultimate parent companies.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivuep)

(q)

Operating segments

The identification of operating segments of the Group is on the
basis of internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Executive
Committee of the Board of Directors in order to allocate resources to
the segment and assess its performance. On the basis of the operating
segments, the Group identifies the reportable segments, using a
combination of factors including products and services, geographical
areas, regulatory environments etc., which the management has
chosen for organisation. The operating segments that meet the
specified criteria have been aggregated, and the operating segments
that meet quantitative thresholds have been reported separately.

The amount reported for each operating segment item is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision makers for the purposes of
allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance.
Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting
policies adopted for preparing and presenting the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Impacts on HKFRS 16

In these financial statements, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 Leases
for the first time. HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 “Leases”, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
"Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIO)-Int
15 "Operating Leases — Incentives” and HK(SIO)-Int 27 “Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance
leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did
not have any financial impact on leases where the Group is the lessor.
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5 EETBEMERT e 5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(a) (BERYBHREERN)E 1652 (@) Impacts on HKFRS 16 (continued)
TEE)
TRES(EBYBREERNDF 16 On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group elected to apply the practical
SR NEBEERAKENFE expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are
BRENFETECAEENRS - I leases. It applied HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously
R #AAEENSOKRA identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under
(BEAUBHMEEADE 165 - BB HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a
BCERGTEIDE 17K LB (E lease. Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 was applied
RHMBREREEEY) RES4 only to contracts entered into or changed on or after January 1, 2019.
FREREBRNANENEHNLTE
EHAEEREENEE - P -
(BEEMBRELENFE 16RERHE
EMEZRUBAR2019F1 A1B%
BT EENEL -
(i) 1ERABA (i) Asalessee
ERFEMA - REBLARE As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as operating
MEER K EABEEMRARE or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease
FHEFRB /R kB RES transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to
EAEEMNFHAN - BHEE ownership of the underlying asset to the Group. Under HKFRS
NEAKENENMENE - 16, the Group recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
IRIBCEB T B HRELERDE 16 for most leases — i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet.
5 AREEEKRHHHERR
REBEEERBEAE A
HZEHEREHEEEARBR
A o
AEBRTEHEHHEE MEE The Group decided to apply recognition exemptions to short-
BEEEHERAHPER - M term leases and leases of low-value assets. For leases of other
RECERBGTEADE 177D assets, which were classified as operating under HKAS 17, the
HRAKEMHMEENHE - Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
REBAERBERAEEER
HE&E -
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5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Impacts on HKFRS 16 (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)
(1) Leases classified as operating leases under HKAS 17

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted at the Group's incremental borrowing rate
as at January 1, 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured
at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments — the
Group applied this approach to all other leases.

The Group used the following practical expedients when
applying HKFRS 16 at January 1, 2019 to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.

- Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with similar characteristic;

- Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-
use assets and liabilities for leases with less than
12 months of lease term;

- Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application;
and

- Used hindsight when determining the lease term
if the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.
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5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Impacts on HKFRS 16 (continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (continued)
(2)  Leases previously classified as finance leases

The Group did not change the initial carrying amounts
of recognised assets and liabilities at the date of initial
application for leases previously classified as finance
leases. Accordingly, the carrying amounts of the right-
of-use assets and the lease liabilities at January 1, 2019
were the carrying amounts of the recognised assets and
liabilities measured under HKAS 17.

As a lessor

The Group is not required to make any adjustments on
transition to HKFRS 16 for leases in which it acts as a lessor,
except for a sub-lease. The Group accounted for its leases in
accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial application.

The Group applied HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” to allocate consideration in the contract to each
lease and non-lease component.

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
16 leases on the Group’s financial statements and also
discloses the new accounting policies that have been initially
applied from January 1, 2019, where they are different to the
comparative figures applied in prior periods, which to be
reported continuously under HKAS17.
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5 SEETBEMERT @) 5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(@) (BERAUMEREERIF16EZ (@) Impacts on HKFRS 16 (continued)
EEE)
(i) H2019F 151 BEE (iii)  Financial impact as at January 1, 2019
E-/4

TERAOMBEECE BB ®
SEIDF1REAEBES

The following tables analyse the impact of transition to HKFRS
16 in the consolidated statement of financial position of the

AR R L - Group.
20184 20196
128318 Epk B8 118
December 31, Re- Re- January 1,
2018 classification  measurement 2019
gE Assets
REMERITR Cash and balances with banks
RRRITETE and central banks 78,238,697 - - | 78238697
BFRERITRE Placements with banks 31,753,841 - - | 31,753,841
RFEFNEHER Advances to customers and trade bills 254471410 - - | 254,471,410
BERATHEN Financial assets held under
TREE resale agreements 1514983 - - 1,514,983
BARBENEEEZE)  Finandal assets measured at fair value
FFABENEREE through profit or loss 3,816,227 - - 3,816,227
BARBENEEEZS  Financal assets measured at fair value
FAEMEEKER through other comprehensive income
EREAE 86,744,559 - - | 86,744,559
RERKATTEN Other assets measured at
HinEE amortised cost 12,065,832 - - | 12,065,832
fTEERMTA Derivative financial instruments 2,756 470 - - 2,756,470
REECENER Interest in a joint venture 1955713 - - 1,955,713
REE R RIS Interest in an associate 69,223 - - 69,223
ELEHBEE Deferred tax assets 396,042 - - 396,042
BT EE Fixed assets 3,200961 (531,581) - 2,669,380
EREEE Right-of-use assets - 531,581 1,899,988 2,431,569
HiEE Other assets 3,985,945 - - 3,985,945
EELE Total assets 480,969,903 - 1899988 | 482,869,891
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5 SEBERMERT @ 5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
() (BRMBEHREEAIE165 2 (@) Impacts on HKFRS 16 (continued)
HEE)
(i) R2019F 151 HHEIBE (iii)  Financial impact as at January 1, 2019 (continued)
&(Z)
20184 20195
124318 BN EiE 1A1H
December 31, Re- Re- January 1,
2018 classification  measurement 2019
=1 Liabilities
RITNEFNET Deposits and balances of banks 32,167,403 - - | 32,167,403
OIEE S T HEMN Financial assets sold under
TREE repurchase agreements 2,420,859 - - 2,420,859
EFPER Deposits from customers 354,129,879 - - | 354,129,879
BRTHEMERESR Other debt securities issued 14,515,909 - - | 14,515,909
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 2,142,242 - - 2,142,242
HEBE Lease liabilities - - 1954,697 1,954,697
[EfTE BTE Current tax payable 252,269 - - 252,269
ELEHBAE Deferred tax liabilities 21,508 - - 21,508
HEmEE Other liabilities 7,008,032 - (54,709) 6,953,323
BEEE Subordinated debt 5,833,798 - - 5,833,798
BEAE Total liabilities 418,491,899 - 1899988 | 420,391,887
R Equity
(&N Share capital 28,827,843 - - | 28,827,843
Hiigm TR Other equity instruments 7,811,732 - - 7,811,732
B Reserves 25838429 - - | 25838429
BReE Total equity 62,478,004 - - | 62,478,004
ERNEEAE Total equity and liabilities 480,969,903 - 1899988 | 482,869,891

RiEEE(E B YR

)

[ A

F165 T - NEBEREIH
2431569 L (E R IEE E &

1,954,697 TR EBEE ©

Rt 2HEARER - AEEMN
201941 A1 B HVIE & (& 3K F

RITRAERK
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On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group recognised an additional
$2,431,569 of right-of-use assets and $1,954,697 of lease
liabilities.

When measuring lease liabilities, the Group discounted lease
payments using its incremental borrowing rate at January 1,

2019.
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(b)

(BBMBREER)DF 16582

SEE)
(iii) R2019F 151 HHEBE
169

R2019F1A1ENHEEEE
ERA2018F 12 A3 MK L
FAEAEMBIRMDT

TEERA S RFRIFFEN 20185
12331 B EHERE

F20194F1 B 1 H Y IN%E
T e E KRR

M2019F1 A1 HEREANEESE

RIFRZNREHERGE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(@) Impacts on HKFRS 16 (continued)

(iii)  Financial impact as at January 1, 2019 (continued)

The lease liabilities as at January 1, 2019 can be reconciled to
the operating lease commitments as at December 31, 2018 as
follows:

Operating lease commitment at December 31, 2018
as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements 2,331,604

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate
at January 1,2019 3.82%

Lease liabilities and discounted operating lease
commitments recognised as at January 1,2019 1,954,697

EREBRVERERBEEZE
g)-REFBETE
ERBEESETEEAEZMEE
(BB ERDERRIAEH I
JERF  ZREEEMSHENEE
BepgNERANEBSELNE
NRBEINIR RS ERE - )8
AREeFEENMETHKFEREN
MEME BB ELK -

AEBREREHEREETHEEN
Wird ERNHEE-EBXZEH
T EERE B —EEE - AHRA
BEE AFH TRBI N HETE MEARIR ST BV T
e

(b) Impacts on HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when
tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS
12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope
of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The Group determines whether to consider each uncertain tax
treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax
treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @



A MR AR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LAY T 7T5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

5 EFBEMNER )

5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

by EREBRUMEREREBERE
2) -REFEBHRTEE)
A& EE R EAHERIEE SR
TEHTREL AR AEEEE
MHNBBRREPES  FFHT
ZRERRHRANBRRELY
2 RMWZDEBR NEEZEH
ERTFETEENTREGRR - LR
EEEETEERBENTRERR - &
THNAKEETRBEE BERAOM
BRARIMBRGERBEEERTE
BREOMG MBI EEER
BUBBKFE  AEERBEEMRY
ARMEETEMTET  HENB
FBR(EEHMBARNBREEFS)
RAGESHREBEHBER - ZBE
HAKENGEMBHRRIBTE -

6 BARIEEERAE

AEBFHEXET —EARSHEENA
BEREEENGFMER - GEtAEe
REELERMEMEAR(BRERLER
THRBAAIEHRRE IR ) EITHE
Al e TXIIHMTREEEMAEREE
ENERGF A NEFHE - MR
1TEEE - T B R R RR R AR
THREMNTE BRERTEFTFEHN
TR fERHETTE AT

(CONTINUED)
(b) Impacts on HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23 (continued)

The Group applies significant judgement in identifying uncertainties
over income tax treatments. Since the Group operates in a complex
multinational environment, it assessed whether the Interpretation
had an impact on its consolidated financial statements. Upon
adoption of the Interpretation, the Group considered whether it has
any uncertain tax positions, particularly those relating to transfer
pricing. The tax filings of the Bank and the Group's subsidiaries in
different jurisdictions include deductions related to transfer pricing
and the taxation authorities may challenge those tax treatments. The
Group determined, based on its tax compliance and transfer pricing
study, that it is probable that its tax treatments (including those for
the subsidiaries) will be accepted by the taxation authorities. The
Interpretation did not have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to changes in
essential estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, are set out below. The effects of changes to either the
key assumptions or other estimation uncertainties are presented below if it is
practicable to determine. It is possible that actual results may require material
adjustments to the estimates referred to below.
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6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (conminuep)

(a)

Measurement of ECL allowances for financial assets

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowances for financial
assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires
the use of complex models and significant assumptions, as the credit
risk exposure varies with changes in future economic and market
conditions, credit behavior (e.g.,, the likelihood of customers defaulting
and the resulting losses), expected cash flows and the passage of time.
The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further
estimations as to the likelihood of defaults occurring, of the associated
loss ratios and of default correlations between counterparties.

The Group measures credit risk using Probability of Default ("PD"),
Exposure at Default (‘EAD") and Loss Given Default ("LGD"). This is
similar to the approach used for the purposes of measuring expected
credit losses under HKFRS 9. Explanation of the inputs, assumptions
and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is further detailed
in Note 8(a), which also sets out key sensitivities of the ECL to changes
in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the

associated ECL; and

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes
of measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by
the Group in the above areas is set out in Note 8(a)(x).
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JUDGMENTS (convmivuen)

(b) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and unused tax credits are
recognised and the determination of the amount to be recognised
requires significant management judgement. Deferred tax asset on
unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits. For deferred tax assets on unused tax credits,
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of available
tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax assets
recognised.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED THAT ARE RELEVANT TO THE
GROUP BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs and HKASs
that have been issued that are relevant to the Group but are not yet effective,
in preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these is
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group:

HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and HKAS 8
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors”

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement
of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users. The application of these amendments
is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and no
early adoption is made by the Group.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED THAT ARE RELEVANT TO THE
GROUP BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (conmvuen)

HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set
of activities and assets to be considered as a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The application of these
amendments is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January
1,2020 and no early adoption is made by the Group.

HKAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” and
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The effective date of these amendments is to be
determined.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED THAT ARE RELEVANT TO THE
GROUP BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (conrivuep)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 “Interest Rate

Benchmark Reform”

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 includes a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships
that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging
relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainties about the
timing and or amount of benchmarkbased cash flows of the hedged item or
the hedging instrument.

As a result of interest rate benchmark reform, there may be uncertainties
about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the
hedged item or the hedging instrument during the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative
nearly risk-free interest rate. This may lead to uncertainty whether a forecast
transaction is highly probable and whether prospectively the hedging
relationship is expected to be highly effective. The application of these
amendments is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2020 and no early adoption is made by the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group derives the majority of its revenue from managing risk from
customer transactions. Effectively assessing and managing all types of risk is
central to the success of the Group. Apart from a prudential risk culture, the
Group has established risk governance, structure, risk management processes
including policies and procedures for the identification, measurement,
control and monitoring of credit, liquidity, operational, market and capital
risks, by means of which risk and return are evaluated with the goal of
producing sustainable revenue and reducing income volatilities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrinuen)

The Board of Directors of the Bank, with the assistance of the Risk Committee,
provides effective oversight over the affairs of the Group, the governance
framework and practices through delegation of authority to the functional
committees and the senior management. The Risk Committee shall review
regularly the Group's Risk Appetite Statement and recommend for the
Board's approval. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for overseeing all
lines of businesses within the Group, supported by the Executive Committee
of the Board of Directors comprising the senior management members.
In addition, led by the senior management members, the functional
committees including the Risk Management Committee, the Asset and
Liability Committee ("ALCO"), the Information Technology Committee, Credit
Committee, and Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee
approve policies and procedures formulated by various working committees
and functional management to identify, analyse, manage and control credit
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and capital risks through the
use of reliable and up-to-date management and information systems.
Policies and procedures are updated on an ongoing basis to reflect changes
in markets, products and industry best practices. The internal auditors also
perform risk-based audits to ensure the soundness of the governance and
compliance with the relevant policies and procedures.

The Group has established policies and procedures to govern the launch of
new products and services. A functional committee, Product Innovation and
Approval Committee, is delegated by the Executive Committee of the Board
of Directors to review and approve new product and service. Comprising of
management members from key functional areas, the functional committee
convenes meetings to assess and discuss product proposals of the Group.
This aims to ensure that risks are properly identified and effective control
measures are in place to mitigate any risks involved prior to the roll-out of
any new products or services.

(@) Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or counterparty’s
inability to meet its obligations. Credit risk exists in the Group's loans,
leases, credit cards, trade finance and treasury transactions. There is
also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial arrangements such as loan
commitments, trade-related contingencies and transaction-related
contingencies.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(a)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has appointed the intermediate holding company, China
Construction Bank Corporation, as its credit adviser. Risk Management
Division is responsible for providing centralised management and
control of different types of risks including credit risk. Whereas credit
approval matters are handled by the Credit Division. Both divisions
are independent of the business units, and supervised by the Deputy
Chief Executive overseeing Risk Management. In addition, functional
committees, namely Risk Management Committee and Credit
Committee are set up under the Executive Committee and the Risk
Committee to provide guidance in the respective risk areas. The Risk
Management Committee is a central forum for overseeing the Group's
overall asset quality as well as resolving all the important risk or
governance issues on credit risk, operational risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk, strategic risk and reputation risk. It is chaired
by the Deputy Chief Executive overseeing Risk Management or the
Chief Risk Officer (also the Head of Risk Management Division), and
the other members are the Head of Legal and Compliance Division,
the Head of Finance Division, the Deputy Head of Risk Management
Division supervising Operational Risk and the Head of Market Risk.
The Credit Committee is responsible for loan quality maintenance,
authority delegation, credit related policy-making and maintenance,
credit approval and credit risk management issues. It is chaired by
the Deputy Chief Executive overseeing Risk Management or the
Chief Risk Officer (also the Head of Risk Management Division), and
the other members are Head of Credit Division, Deputy Head of Risk
Management Division and designated individual credit approver(s).

Overall, credit risks of the Group are managed through the following
processes:

- Ensuring the Group's risk profile is in line with the risk appetite
and strategies set by the Bank;

- Establishing credit policies and procedures of the Group and
issuing lending and monitoring guidelines to credit officers and
business units. Credit policies and procedures are constantly
revisited and updated whenever warranted to accommodate
portfolio development, market changes and regulatory
requirements;
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivvep)

(@) Creditrisk (continued)

Making appropriate lending authority delegation via the
Credit Committee according to the risk, size and nature of the
transactions;

Maintaining the internal risk rating system for measurement of
credit risk exposures. The Group adopts a two dimensional risk
rating methodology for the corporate portfolio, for which risk
ratings are assigned to the obligor and facility separately. This
system provides granularity in the rating scale and hence more
refined risk differentiation for better risk and reward analysis and
enhanced risk quantification. For a certain part of the consumer
portfolio, in-house scoring models are also adopted to measure
the credit risk involved;

Monitoring and controlling large exposures, connected lending,
product and industry concentration based on established
policies and internal risk limits to ensure prudent credit
decisions are made and that the Group complies with statutory
requirements and supervisory guidelines;

Monitoring criticised loans and managing recoveries of
problem assets. Collection and problem asset management
are separately handled by specialised teams with the relevant
experience and expert knowledge;

Assessing ECL allowances regularly to ensure the adequacy of
impairment allowances;

Managing and monitoring the Group's loan quality;

Supervising the stress-testing programme to provide a forward-
looking assessment of the Group's risk exposures under stressed
conditions, and enable the Group to project tail risks on a bank-
wide basis, to quantify such potential losses and the impact on
the Bank in terms of profitability, liquidity and capital adequacy;
and
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(a)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Co-ordinating and driving credit related initiatives throughout
the Group to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements.

Credit risk for advances

In addition to underwriting standards, the Group manages
credit risks through an effective and prudent credit approval
process. In making credit recommendations and decisions,
only officers with appropriate banking experience and product
knowledge are delegated with credit approval authorities.
There is a post-approval review process to ensure quality of
the credit decisions made, to identify negative trends which
need attention or actions, and to ensure adherence to existing
policies and procedures.

In the approval process, the credit officers assess the purpose
and structure of the loan, the ability of a particular borrower or
counterparty to service the proposed facilities, as well as the
nature of the underlying collateral where applicable. Credit
approval guidelines are issued from time to time to enhance
the credit acceptance process as appropriate.

The Group categorises its loans and leases into either consumer
or corporate and commercial credits and monitors their risks
separately as discussed below:

- Consumer credits are grouped by products and their
risk attributes for purposes of evaluating credit risk, and
on-going monitoring of asset quality. Standard credit
underwriting criteria are established and exceptional
approvals for deviations from such criteria are required
and monitored; and
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivvep)

(@) Creditrisk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk for advances (continued)
- Corporate and commercial credits are evaluated for
customers' default risk, taking into consideration the
related credit enhancements. To support the credit
assessment, internal risk ratings will be assigned to
customers. These risk ratings are monitored regularly
and updated upon any changes in the borrower’s or
counterparty’s financial position, repayment ability and
the related credit enhancements.

Credit risk for treasury transactions

The credit risk of the Group's investment in debt securities
and treasury hedging transactions is managed by the use
of both internal and external credit ratings and credit limits
set on individual counterparties. Internal and external credit
ratings, and news on each counterparty are closely tracked and
monitored.

Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit risk
involved in extending loan facilities to customers. These
transactions are therefore subject to the same credit approval,
portfolio maintenance and collateral requirements as for
customers applying for loans.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group obtains collateral in respect of loans advanced to
mitigate the credit risk of the transactions and has established
policies and guidelines on the eligibility and valuation of
collateral and other credit enhancements. However, the
approval of credits will be based on the assessment of debt
servicing ability rather than solely dependent on collateral
or other credit enhancements. The main collateral types and
credit enhancements include charges over properties, standby
letters of credit issued by banks, securities, deposits, account
receivables, vehicles and guarantees.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Risk concentration

The Group sets various risk limits to control exposure
to countries, individual counterparties, industries, intra-
group exposures and loan portfolios to avoid excessive risk
concentration.

Credit review and audit

The internal auditors conduct periodic reviews and
independent audits of the Group's credit portfolio and credit
risk management process. The purpose is to ensure due
compliance with established credit policies and procedures,
and to evaluate the effectiveness of the credit management
process and control mechanism. The results of these reviews
and audits are regularly reported to the Audit Committee at the
Board of Directors level for effective oversight and monitoring.

(vii) Maximum exposure

2019 2018
FEMBRARATEEE Creditrisk exposures relating to
HEERINT : assets in consolidated statement of
financial position by class are as follows:
REMERITR Cash and balances with banks
P RIRITRIAETT and central banks 39,198,295 78,238,697
TR RUIE Placements with banks 38,068,541 31,753,841
RITER Advances to banks 1,918,005 -
HERE AN Financial assets held under
EHEE resale agreements 782,615 1,514,983
EFERNESHER Advances to customers and trade bills 289,613,916 254,471,410
BAREEFEEEE Financial assets measured at fair value
ATAEENEREE through profit or loss 10,826,353 3,816,227
BAREBEFEBEEH Financial assets measured at fair value
FFAHAMEEKER through other comprehensive
TRIEE —BEHRE income — debt investments 75,560,630 86,696,690
BB HBKAFTERN Other assets measured at amortised cost
HihEE 18,072,831 12,065,832
PTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 1,830,577 2,756,470
HEthEE Other assets 4,965,443 3,872,541
FEMBMRRKINEE Credit risk exposures relating to items not
HEEREINT : included in consolidated statement
of financial position are as follows:
B IS R Financial guarantees 5,764,463 10,033,760
ERAHEEEMEE Loan commitments and other
HARA R R credit related commitments 86,587,680 78,594,028
573,189,349 563,814,479
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8 SREREREw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmmuen)

(a) FERRRGE) (@)  Creditrisk (continued)
(vii) RAEEFIEE) (vii) Maximum exposure (continued)

FRIIRPA2019512 8318
2018128318 KEE
ETNERAMDLREE IR
W FEEE IR EMN
EMISEEEBER TREANGE
BERRBHO - HREEBERX
WHEE - Falt BB RO ER
BREFE SR ER
B EERBHSAMA RS
B ERKBITEREAESX
NEHmAEEE - HRE &
#UARESZEAEREBRAT
AIEEE SR B AE B AR B
KAREEMEEARE  EE
[Efs K & AR i O A B &
ERBENEFT AL E
B o

EEmBERE  BHm KA
B

AEENAZEEA RIE B
EEEBMEENEERR -
AJ 58 BRI THDE BB A L
B R E M - AU A R
i B REMT AR R
EHHEMIBEREE

The above table shows the maximum credit risk exposure to
the Group as at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
without taking account of any collateral held, master netting
agreements or other credit enhancements attached. For on-
balance sheet assets, the exposures set out above are based
on net carrying amounts. For letters of guarantee issued, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that
the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are called
upon. For loan commitments and other credit related liabilities
that are irrevocable over the life of the respective facilities or
revocable in the event of a significant adverse change, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is disclosed as the full amount
of the committed facilities sought on these balances.

Credit risk mitigation, collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group uses a variety of techniques to reduce the credit
risk arising from its lending activities. Enforceable legal
documentation establishes the Group's direct, irrevocable and
unconditional recourse to any collateral, security or other credit
enhancements provided.
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TERRESBEENER > 2
ARAAREMFAEERRZ
HWEREMBEE

FESRITEVAETF R AF IR TT
K H A & RS RO SR

Cash and balances with banks
and central banks and
placements with banks

RITERK

Advances to customers
and trade bills

EERR T HENSREE
Financial assets held under
resale agreements

BRAnBEFEAHEEHTA
Hihzmbamn e i E

Financial assets measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

WEBRRATTENEMEE

Other assets measured at
amortised cost
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(@) Creditrisk (continued)
(vii) Maximum exposure (continued)
The table below describes the nature of collateral held and their
financial effect by class of financial asset:

AZSHFHME - HERE
EFEMm -
These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these balances.

BAE-REASBERRE - WEEF R

AZSEFEOME - b ERER
EREMS -

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the

AEE-RERRBERRE - hFEF R

counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these balances.

BREEFPHEFINRETEPNERBETR  SELMAD SEEM
DB - EHRREECREETTYE Bt - ZKEEEE_T%%E%E@
BRERE &ﬁﬁfm% Hi R EEEEZERIOER - HEEERR
MEFEREESMAENREE BRI B ERMTL2

These exposures are secured, partially secured or unsecured depending on the
type of customers and the products offered to them. Types of collaterals include
residential properties, other properties, standby letters of credit acceptable to
the Group and bank deposits, etc. Other credit enhancements mainly represent
recognised guarantee. Analysis of gross advances to customers covered by
collateral is listed in Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information Note 2.

LR AE R B EARY - EARERSEBUT B R
%o mEEBITE —RERABERRE -

These exposures are secured. Types of collaterals include securities issued by
government and policy banks. These issuers are generally considered to be low risk.

MIRTTEITHOE

BUBFNAAEECRREEERR - &
BERXHHTFIRMEMS -

The fair values of these securities have reflected the credit risk. No collateral is

—RBERT I EERKERKET

sought directly from the issuer or the counterparty.

BUBFNBERRACDRBREEERR - £
AR SEFRAEAR -
The amortised costs of these securities have reflected the credit risk. No collateral is
sought directly from the issuer or the counterparty.

—RIERT T EERZFRET
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8 SREREREw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmmuen)

(a) EERRE) (@) Credit risk (continued)
(vii) BAEBEEEE) (vii) Maximum exposure (continued)
TES®MIA ERMTHERSGHFEBAFELEENERR - REENEMHE  FEE
EXzaBERR R —RZEFNITEEERAGBET RS -
Derivative financial instruments Master netting agreements are typically used to enable the effects of derivative

assets and liabilities with the same counterparty to be offset if both the Bank and
the counterparty elect to settle on a net basis or in the event of default of either

party.
A BB KAGE %A BERAGEHEKE D LEEE RN FES2 - HREFER BT
AEGEBURR AR  AEESTEEEEAZEELERZELE  BEF

SZHOEEE - Bt BLABRHAEET@ESLERNEERR - fH
AT EGHBURR A ERRBIEERE - FRARIERAMETFAER
HEEFMMNAE RETPNENREHRTEFPNERBIARAESRE
R SO EMEER -
Contingent liabilities The components and nature of contingent liabilities and commitments is disclosed
and commitments in Note 52. Regarding the commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to withdraw the
credit line in case the credit quality of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these
commitments do not expose the Group to significant credit risk. The exposure on
commitments that are not unconditionally cancellable including letter of credit,
letter of guarantee issued and other loan commitments and credit related liabilities
are secured, partially secured or unsecured depending on the type of customers
and the products offered to them.

(viii) 2B EEmiFHE A m (viii) Collateral and other credit enhancements held
REMBEEER against financial assets
EFEAREZERK Advances to customers and trade bills
R2019F 128318 BB % As at December 31, 2019, the estimated fair value of the
FIFERTERERERNER collateral and other credit enhancements held against lifetime
EREZEFERLEZREM ECL credit-impaired advances to customers and trade bills is
FAMEMGREMIGERE $324,363 (2018: $549,723).

B fE 5 A BB 5324363 7T
(20184 : 549,723 JC)

ERMEIZEEFEYE - T Collateral mainly includes residential properties, commercial
EYERTE o and industrial properties and automobiles.

BE G MR 2 EE Financial assets held under resale agreements

REEHE THEREEMR Detail of the fair value of the collateral held against the financial
BEMEHRAR  EAREBEFE assets under resale agreements described in Note 55.

BAMIRESS -
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
(viii) Collateral and other credit enhancements held

(ix)

against financial assets (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

The International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“ISDA")
Master Agreement is our preferred agreement for documenting
derivatives activity. It provides the contractual framework
within which dealing activity across a full range of over the
counter ("OTC") products is conducted, and contractually binds
both parties to apply close-out netting across all outstanding
transactions covered by an agreement if either party defaults
or another pre-agreed termination event occurs. It is common,
and the Group's preferred practice, for the parties to execute
a Credit Support Annex (“CSA") in conjunction with the
ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed
between the parties to mitigate the counterparty risk inherent
in outstanding positions. The majority of our CSAs are with
financial institutional clients.

Repossession of collateral
During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession
of collateral with the carrying amount as follows:

T
2019 2018
EHmME Nature of collateral
FEME Residential properties 6,150 -
HEMEE Other assets 1,148 369
7,298 369
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivvep)

(@) Creditrisk (continued)

(x)

Expected credit loss measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment
based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as
summarised as below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified under Stage 1 and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group. If a significant increase
in credit risk (“SICR") since initial recognition is identified, the
financial instrument is moved to Stage 2 but is not yet deemed
to be credit-impaired. If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to Stage 3.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at the
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that result from possible default events within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stage 2 or 3 have their ECL measured
based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis. A key
and fundamental concept in measuring ECL in accordance
with HKFRS 9 is that forward looking information should be
considered. Separately, for purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, since those financial assets are credit-
impaired on initial recognition, their ECL is always measured on
a lifetime basis.

The financial instruments are measured internally by their
internal credit ratings ranging from 1 to 19 based on the
borrowers’ repayment ability and likelihood of individual
counterparties being default. Then, as part of internal key
management reporting, the Group maps the internal credit
ratings by their credit quality at Stage 1 (Normal), Stage 2
(Special-mentioned), Stage 3 (Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss)
respectively.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(a)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Credit risk (continued)
(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credlit risk (“SICR")

When determining whether the risk of default on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analyses,
based on the Group's historical experience, expert credit
assessment and forward-looking information.

The Group uses four criteria for determining whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk:

- Notch downgrade;

- Special Mention;

- Quialitative indicators; and

- A backstop of 30 days past due.

For notch downgrade the objective of the assessment
is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred for an exposure by comparing the credit
ratings of corresponding obligor between two dates, i.e.
the reporting date and the initial recognition date of the
exposure (“Notch Difference”).

The Notch Difference is estimated for each obligor at the
reporting date, whenever it exceeds the relative notch
difference threshold, SICR is identified. The average notch
downgraded of each obligor to be identified as SICR is 5.
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(@ FERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) FEREHABXTE(E) (x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)
(1) 1EEmEEZEENE) (1) Significant increase in credit risk (“SICR") (continued)

EMHIEE Qualitative Indicators

MEERAETBEEEE If the borrower is on the watch list and meets one or

AR —{Esk % more of following criteria:

EIFE1R -

- FERANZ®8FL —  Significant increase in credit spread;
F s

- ERALRES- - Significant adverse change in business, financial
Hﬁﬁifﬂ/i,ﬁ%/ﬁf and/or economic conditions in which the
S E KR & borrower operates;
1t :

- [EBERALEELN - Actual or expected significant adverse change in
ERGEHNERKR operating results of the borrower; and

AR &

- HRABHURMEN ~  Early signs of liquidity problems such as delay in
FH R - flaarE servicing of trade creditors/loans.
RERRERER
BIREH] -

rEEEBFHEAN The assessment of SICR is performed on an annual basis

FEcm I EEESE at a portfolio level for all financial instruments held by

HAHEEERRBESR the Group. In relation to wholesale financial instruments,

BHEBEEM - HRHE where a watch list is used to monitor credit risk, this

BHESBMIA KEE assessment is performed at the counterparty level on

ﬁﬁﬁ BEEBEEEER a periodic basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are
CWERSEFE monitored and reviewed on an annual basis.

ﬂm%%ﬁ AR
:&E'J EER B EEEL M
CORERES R RS v
E’Fﬁﬁ\ WEM -
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(a)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Credit risk (continued)
(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

@)

3

Backstop

A backstop is applied and the financial instrument
considered to have experienced a significant increase in
credit risk if the borrower is more than 30 days past due
on the contractual payments.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for
any financial instruments in the years ended December
31,2019 and December 31, 2018.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default
and credit-impaired, when it meets one or more of the
following criteria:

- Borrower is more than 90 days past due on its
contractual payments;

- Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- The Group, for economic or legal reasons and
in relation to the borrower's or issuer’s financial
difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession
that the Group would not otherwise consider;

- Restructure of the borrowing terms as a result of
deterioration of the financial position;
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(@ FERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) FEREHABXTE(E) (x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)
(3) EHREZFELEHEE (3)  Definition of default and credit-impaired assets
BENTE(E) (continued)
B AR AT e 3 B It becoming probable that the borrower will enter
SOETHMBP B E bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
4
KR5S ERE Significant decrease in market value of the
B ERIEEBERS collateral and the repayment ability of borrowers
NIERBE AR are in doubt;
AEBHAZEEEKR Disappearance of an active market for financial
MR - Zew assets because of significant financial event of
BEMEEMISE borrowers;
BHETERRS
ABENSIERET Observable data indicating that there is a
ZEENRERE measurable decrease in the estimated future

cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the Group,
including adverse changes in the payment status
of borrowers in the Group, an increase in the
unemployment rate in the geographical area of
the borrowers, a decrease in property prices in
the relevant area, or adverse changes in industry
conditions that affect the borrowers in the Group;

Significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the borrower or issuer;

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment below its cost; and

Other objective evidence indicating there is an
impairment of the financial asset.
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(a)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Credit risk (continued)
(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

3

“)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets
(continued)

The criteria above have been applied to all financial
instruments held by the Group and are consistent with
the definition of default used for internal credit risk
management purposes. The default definition has been
applied consistently to model the Probability of Default
("PD"), Exposure at Default ("EAD") and Loss Given
Default ("LGD") throughout the Group's expected loss
calculations.

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") is measured on either
a 12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether
a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since
initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to
be credit-impaired. The Group will account for expected
credit losses within the next 12 months as Stage 1 and to
recognise lifetime expected credit losses as Stage 2 when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Lifetime ECL will be also recognised
for credit-impaired financial instruments as Stage 3. ECL
are the discounted product of the PD, EAD and LGD,
defined as follows:
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivvep)

(@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

“)

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (continued)

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting
on its financial obligation.

EAD is based on the amounts the Group expected to be
owed at the time of default.

LGD represents the Group's expectation of the extent
of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of
counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability
of collateral or other credit support. LGD is expressed
as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of
default (EAD).

The 12-month ECL is determined by projecting the PD,
LGD and EAD for each individual exposure or collective
segment. These three components are multiplied
together. This effectively calculates an ECL for coming
12-months, which is then discounted back to the
reporting date. The discount rate used in ECL calculation
is the original effective interest rate or an approximation
thereof. The lifetime ECL is developed by summing all
ECL throughout the expected lifetime of the financial
instruments. The expected lifetime is determined by
historical data for revolving products or actual remaining
tenor for instalment products.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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8 SHEREREw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (covmmuen)

(@ FERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) FEREHEX.GTEE) (x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)
(4) FTEFRREHEX (4)  Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and

28 HRRAGE M estimation techniques (continued)
HIH A (4E)
HRBEREEER &K For revolving products, the exposure at default is
SEFEADIENE RS predicted by taking current drawn balance and adding
B EMERE®R RS a "credit conversion factor” or “Utilisation Rate”, which
K[ F A & 5T R IR allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining
BN FORTERE L limit by the time of default. These assumptions vary by
[B B A HE - S G TERE product type based on analysis of the Group’s historical
BAORKFBREEERNR default data.

RREHE - EREEHN
BROBEBEIN BLER
REERBIMmAMRA

BB

AEERBUHZEEY The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based
& B W /) A = 2R B E on the factors which impact the recoveries made post
+ =18 A &2 & 17 4& B default. These vary by product type.

MEHBLR - TRAE
SERMENALES

FiENER

-  HRERER X - For secured products, this is primarily based on
SEE ZRBEMA collateral type and projected collateral values,
miEA REA M historical discounts to market/book value due to
TEHAEE - ®Flh forced sales, time to repossession and recovery
E K/ FE £ 970 costs observed; and
&~ [O] Yo B R e A]
BR 22 EI ) W [B1 A AR
EWMTENEX
Rk

- HRIFEERED - - For unsecured products, LGDs are typically set at
AR ETRETKA product level due to the limited differentiation in
ARl EEERE recoveries achieved across different borrowers.
PR - PTIAZREREE These LGDs are influenced by collection strategies,
BEEREERTE including contracted debt sales and price.

BHBRE - %8
MBREZF @I
REEHFE - bat
Bl Y SR G B4R R
BERAT B R (EIE -
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivvep)

(@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

“)

)

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (continued)

Forward-looking economic information is also included
in determining the 12-month ECL and lifetime ECL.
These assumptions vary by product type.

There have been no significant changes in estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during the
reporting period.

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL
models

The calculation of ECL incorporates forward-looking
information. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact
on the PD and LGD vary by financial instrument.
Expert judgment has also been applied in this process.
Forecasts of these economic variables (the "base
economic scenario”) are provided by the external
economic data provider on a monthly basis and provide
the best estimate view of the economy over next five
years. After five years, to project the economic variables
out of the full remaining lifetime of each instrument,
a static approach has been used. The impact of these
economic variables on the PD, EAD and LGD has been
determined by performing statistical regression analysis
to understand the impact change these variables have
had historically on default rates and on the components
of LGD and EAD.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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(a)
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Credit risk (continued)
(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

)

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL
models (continued)

In addition to the base economic scenario, the Group
also adopt other possible scenarios, upside and downside
economic scenarios, along with scenario weightings. The
scenario weightings are determined by a combination
of statistical analysis and expert credit judgement, taking
account of the range of possible outcomes each chosen
scenario is representative of. The assessment of SICR is
performed using the Notch Difference under each of the
base and the other scenarios, along with qualitative and
backstop indicators. This determines whether the whole
financial instrument is in Stage 1, Stage 2 or Stage 3 and
hence whether 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL should
be recorded. Following this assessment, the Group
measures ECL as either a probability weighted 12-month
ECL (Stage 1) or a probability weighted lifetime ECL
(Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted ECLs are
determined by running each scenario through the
relevant ECL model and multiplying it by the appropriate
scenario weighting. In 2019, the average weight of
upside, base and downside scenarios are 0.05, 0.68 and
0.27.(2018:0.15,0.51 and 0.34)
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8 SREREREw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmmuen)

(@ FERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) FRIEHE,EE) (x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)
(5) FEAEHEXELSE (5)  Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL

TERY BT RE [ B A7 (48
EEERORR

R2019F12A31HK
2018128318 AR
TEEfEAIERMEEHE
ZREREZMHRRR
MR LLNEFD A2

models (continued)
Economic variable assumptions

The most significant period-end assumptions of these
economic factors used for the ECL estimate as at
December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are set
out below. The variables are the average of probability
weighted values between Years 2019 - 2023 and

2019F E2023F 2@ & between Years 2018 - 2022 respectively:
2018 Z= 2022 F 2 FE KY
BEE R FHME -
R2019 % 20184
12HA31H 12A31H
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
BB A E (A K % Hong Kong GDP Growth Rate +2.38% +2.96%
EBEEWHEEIRIEH Hong Kong Residential Property Price Index +0.82% +0.44%
BRKREX Hong Kong Unemployment Rate 3.97% 4.44%
BURE DT Sensitivity analysis
BEREEWEERBER The Hong Kong Residential Property Price Index has

ERFERMERAKX
MEBEREBERH  %ZK&
P =B BURRE AT an

been identified as the significant economic variables
affecting ECL and the sensitivity of this economic factor
has been demonstrated as below:

T~
EHERERERNEE
Change in ECL allowances
2019 2018
EEEH House price index
T P& 10% Decrease by 10% 81,453 32,229
EF10% Increase by 10% (75,455) (29,806)

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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(a) FERRE)
(x) FRAEHE.E(E)
5) BHEHARXEZETE
FEAIFTIE I & A7 (48

E1T TITREREHE
BROBENEFSE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrinven

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)
(5) Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL
models (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for probability weighted average for
Good, Bad & Base Scenarios:

ZBURRE DT -
FEHERBXERNEE (%)
Change in ECL allowances (%)
2019 2018
B mMEFIGEZ Probability Weighted Average Sensitivity
RN
HEREEERHTE Shifting 5% probability from
HAH) 5% B E Base Scenario to Good Scenario
FIREER -1.34% -065%
HERNEEE SR Shifting 5% probability from
Eh 5o EEE| Base Scenario to Bad Scenario
TITREER +6.30% +7.91%

©) HKAET T ERKE
1

ERRAE T AFIRE
HERBRERR - K
SECKABREURR
e O ET8RE
GEIRNEN RS0l g uk)
RRAE BETOMA
o AEBEERT RS
WERM - BERES L
RSN - EEERNA
HREEL R AR - AN
SE2BAM,INEEE
BREMARELE
e MRTEE D AR

B L LA R 6 75 15

T

TERH ML E

ERFROHER, 85
A #

EmBR (I -
WBER B
EAFR)
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(6)  Grouping of instruments for losses measured at a
collective basis

For expected credit loss provisions modelled on a
collective basis, a grouping of exposures is performed
on the basis of shared risk characteristics, such that risk
exposures within a group are considered homogeneous.
In performing this grouping, there must be sufficient
information for the Group to achieve statistical credibility.
Where sufficient information is not available internally,
the Group has considered benchmarking internal/
external supplementary data for modelling purposes.
The characteristics and any supplementary data used to
determine groupings are outlined below:

Retail - Groupings for collective measurement
Credit Rating Band/Day Past Due

Product type (e.g. residential mortgage, overdraft,
credit card loan)
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivvep)

(@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

©)

Grouping of instruments for losses measured on a
collective basis

Wholesale — Groupings for collective measurement
Credit Rating band

Customer Type & Product Type

The following exposures are assessed individually:

Retail
Stage 3 loans - Credit-impaired or repossession

Wholesale
Stage 3 facilities - Credit-impaired or repossession

The appropriateness of grouping is monitored and
reviewed on periodic basis by the Risk Management
Division.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @



A MR AR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LAY T 7T5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

8 SHEREREw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (covmmuen)

(a) EERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)

(xi) FES(EBHBEHEER)E (xi) Distribution of financial instruments to which the
9B REERY 2T A impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied, by
HIEEEZEZ(REZEH FE8(a) credit quality (in accordance with Note 8(a)(x)) and
(x) R ZEERZ 7 - by staging:

R20198124318 RELE/ 25EH
As at December 31,2019 Gross carrying/notional amount
BHER
E% )z & ik B% BE  BREE FE
Special ECL
Normal ~ mentioned Sub-standard Doubtful Loss Total  allowances Netamount
BEEBERA:  Onbalance sheet:
RESHKARTEN  Placements with and
FRRTHE advances to banks
RFTER atamortised cost
-£-K& -stage | 39,992,198 - - - - 39,992,198 (5652) 39,986,546
REHKARGTEN  Advances to customers
RFENR and trade bills at
EUES S amortised cost:
F—RE Stage 1 284,143,173 - - - - 284143173  (1,296,065) 282,847,108
ZIRE Stage 2 2,436,896 4,874,536 - - - 7,311,432 (902,050) 6,409,382
E-RB Stage 3 - - 691,228 7,013 145312 843553 (501951) 341,602
RFER Advances to customers | 286,580,069 4,874,536 691,228 7,013 145,312 292,298,158  (2,700,066) 289,598,092
F-Tk8 Stage 1 15,824 - - - - 15,824 - 15,824
FoRE Stage 3 = = = > = - - -
2528 Trade bills 15,824 - - - - 15,824 - 15,824
RESHKARGTER  Other financial assets
Hig@BEE:  measuredat
amortised cost:
ReMERT Cash and balances with
R RET banks and central
igtea banks - stage |
-E—RE 39,198,881 - - - - 39,198,881 (586) 39,198,295
EEGETEE  Financial assets held
MemaE under resale
i agreements - stage | 782,615 - - - - 782,615 - 782,615
REBKAZE  Oherassets measured at
MEREE amortised cost
-£-BR& ~stage | 18,097,696 - - - - 18,097,696 (24,865) 18,072,831
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8 ZRIEMEE 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmuen)
(a) FEERRKRE) (a) Credit risk (continued)
(xi) FESH(E B BHREERDE (xi) Distribution of financial instruments to which the
IR RMEBERN LT A impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied, by
HIEEEZ(REHES(a) credit quality (in accordance with Note 8(a)(x)) and
(x) RIZIERZ 7 (8) by staging: (continued)
R2019812/318 FEAE/ 528
As at December 31,2019 Gross carrying/notional amount
BHEA
i Bix W& ik B% BE  BREE FE
Special ECL
Normal  mentioned Sub-standard Doubtful Loss Total allowances Netamount

BEBBRA . Onbalance sheet:

(&) (continued)

F-RE Stage 1 5,015,329 - - - - 5015329 (4,364) 5,010,965

ECRE Stage 2 - 22,385 - - - 22,385 (3,462) 18,923

F=EE Stage 3 = = 1,676 104 10,657 12,437 (529) 11,908
HiEE Other assets 5,015,329 22,385 1,676 104 10,657 5,050,151 (8,355) 5,041,796

BRABEE  Financial assets measured
BEEHHA  atfairvalue though
H2EYE  other comprehensive
HepEE income - stage |
-£-ER 75,715,720 - - - - 75715720 (79,433) 75,636,287

BEEERAZ  Total gross carrying
REAE amount on

balance sheet 465,398,332 4,896,921 692,904 7,117 155,969 471,151,243 (2,818,957) 468,332,286

BEEERS . Offbalance sheet:
ERREMEE  Loansand other credit
Vil related commitments 92,352,143 - - - - 92,352,143 (251173) 92,100,970

BEEERN Total nominal amount - off
FROEEE balance sheet 92,352,143 - - - - 92352143 (251,173) 92,100,970

R2019%128  Total as at December 31,
31 AMEE 2019 557,750,475 4,896,921 692,904 7,117 155,969 563,503,386  (3,070,130) 560,433,256

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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8 SHEREREw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (covmmuen)

(@ FERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)

(xi) FES(EBHBEHEER)E (xi) Distribution of financial instruments to which the
9B REERY 2T A impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied, by
HIEEEZEZ(REZEH FE8(a) credit quality (in accordance with Note 8(a)(x)) and
) RiEZEERZ 7 - (&) by staging: (continued)

20185128318 FHAE/ 4528
As at December 31,2018 Gross carrying/notional amount
BEHER
g wx Pt i BX Bm BREE 35
Special ECL
Normal  mentioned  Sub-standard Doubtful Loss Total  allowances  Netamount
BEBERA:  Onbalance sheet:
HERNAGTER  Placements with and
FHERITIIR advances to banks
RBTER atamortised cost
-F-M8 - stage | 31,758,244 - - - - 31758044 (4403) 31753841
BRI 2R Advances to customers
RFENR and trade bills at
EUES S amortised cost:
KB Stage 1 240,561,546 939 - - - 240562485 (1,089,388) 239473097
ZRRE Stage 2 11,990,620 2,988,755 - - - 14979375 (780,326) 14,199,049
E-RE Stage 3 - 393 659381 7,148 121,801 788723 (197,179) 591,544
RPEX Advances to customers 252,552,166 2,990,087 659,381 7,148 121801 256,330,583 (2006893) 254,263,690
EatEEy Stage | 207,756 - - - - 207,756 (36) 207,720
F=RE Stage 3 - - - - 3,052 3052 (3052) -
Z5Z% Trade bills 207,756 - - - 3,052 210,808 (3089) 207,720
REHKARGTER  Other financial assets
HhemesE: measured at
amortised cost:
ReMERT Cash and balances with
R RELT banks and central
ke banks - stage 1
-E-RE 78,240,159 - - - - 78240159 (1462) 78238697
SERETRE Financial assets held
MemaE under resale
-£-B8 agreements - stage | 1,514,983 - - - - 1514983 - 1514983
REBRAGTE  Otherassets measured at
MEREE amortised cost
-£-BR& ~stage | 12,000,571 - - - - 12000571 (24739) 12065832
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8 ZRIEMEE 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmuen)
(a) FEERRKRE) (a) Credit risk (continued)
(xi) FESH(E B BHREERDE (xi) Distribution of financial instruments to which the
IR RMEBERN LT A impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied, by
HIEEEZ(REHES(a) credit quality (in accordance with Note 8(a)(x)) and
(x) RIZIERZ 7 (8) by staging: (continued)
201851231 B BHEE/ 2588
As at December 31,2018 Gross carrying/notional amount
BEER
i Bx e i B gm BREE 8
Special ECL
Normal  mentioned  Sub-standard Doubtful Loss Total  allowances  Netamount

BEEBERA . Onbalance sheet:

(&) (continued)

F-EE Stage 1 3,980,726 1 - - - 3,980,727 (4.783) 3975944

ZRE Stage 2 1,743 3534 - - - 5277 (1483) 3,79

E=-RB Stage 3 - 45 4646 1 1566 6,258 (51) 6,207
HihEE Other assets 3982469 3,580 4646 1 1566 3992262 (6317) 3985945
BAREBE  Financalassets measured

BEZHHA  atfarvaluethrough

Hi2E%E  other comprehensive

HepEE income - stage |

-2-K& 86,744,559 - - - - 86,744,559 (66,700)  86,6773859
BEEERAZ  Total gross carrying

REEE/ amount/fair value

DAEE on balance sheet 467,090,907 2993667 664,027 7,149 126419 470,882,169 (2173602) 468708567
BEBERN:  Offbalance sheet:
ERREMEE  Loansand other credit

BEEE related commitments 83,009,788 - - - - 88,009,788 (20189%) 83407892
BEEBBXS  Totalnominal amount off

HEEEAE  balancesheet 88,609,788 - - - - 88609788 (201896) 88407892
2018128 Totalas at December 31,

3 EMER 2018 555,700,695 2993667 664,027 7,149 126419 559491957 (2375498)  557,116459
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund the
increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due without incurring
unacceptable losses. This may be caused by market disruption or
liquidity squeeze whereby the Group may only unwind specific
exposures at significantly discounted values.

The purpose of liquidity management is to ensure sufficient cash
flows to meet all financial commitments and to capitalise on
opportunities for business expansion. This includes the Group's ability
to meet deposit withdrawals either on demand or at contractual
maturity, to repay borrowings as they mature, to comply with the
statutory liquidity ratio, and to make new loans and investments
as opportunities arise. To achieve this purpose, the Group adopts a
prudent risk appetite in setting liquidity risk tolerance. Risk appetite is
setin the form of liquidity risk limits and metric framework.

The Group has established a set of liquidity risk management policies
which set out the liquidity risk management framework of the Group
according to the requirements of HKMA's Supervisory Policy Manuals
“Regulatory Framework for Supervision of Liquidity Risk (LM1)" and
“sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk Management (LM2)".

Liquidity risk management framework

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for having an effective
liquidity risk management framework in place. Risk Committee ("RC")
is one of the committees set up under the Board. The duties of RC are
to approve a risk management framework that is sound and in line
with the Group’s business objectives and risk profile, to approve key
liquidity risk management policies and to ensure that the liquidity
management framework and policies are duly implemented and
maintained by the Group.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivvep)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity risk management framework (continued)

Risk Management Committee ("RMC") is set up under the Risk
Committee and the Executive Committee to oversee the Group's
overall asset quality as well as to resolve all important risk-related
or governance issues including those on liquidity risk. The RMC is
responsible for providing guidance and overseeing the Group's
liquidity risk management strategy and development; reviewing
or approving liquidity risk management policies and reviewing the
Group's liquidity risk position.

Asset and Liability Committee ("“ALCQ") is a functional committee
set up under the Executive Committee to oversee the liquidity risk
management in light of the business strategy.

Regular meetings of various committees are held to review the
compliance status of liquidity measurements and the needs for
change in strategy and policy. Daily liquidity management is
performed by the Treasury. Risk Management Division is responsible
for the daily monitoring of the liquidity limits and measurements,
and submission of regular reports of the liquidity profile to the ALCO
and RMC. Internal Audit periodically performs independent reviews
to ensure effectiveness of the Group's liquidity risk management
framework and implementation of the established policies.

Funding Strategies

The objective of the Group's funding strategy is to strive for a balance
between business growth opportunities and funding stability. The
Group seeks to maintain diversified and stable funding sources with
an appropriate mix of liabilities including customer deposits, interbank
borrowings, issuance of negotiable certificates of deposit and debt
instruments.

The annual budgeted statement of financial position of the Group,
which contains a plan for the composition of various sources of
liabilities, is approved by the Board of Directors in each calendar year.
Various considerations such as the target business growth, market
sentiment, target financial ratios and regulatory requirements would
be taken into account in the process of budgeting.
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(b)
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Funding Strategies (continued)

To manage currency mismatch and avoid over-reliance on the
currency swap market, the Group sets limits on swapped fund ratios
of major currency positions which are subject to daily monitoring. The
swapped fund ratios limit the extent of one currency’s assets being
funded by other currencies through the swap market.

The funding support provided by China Construction Bank Head
Office is one of the key sources of liquidity backstop during times of
liquidity stress.

Liquidity cushion

The extent of the Group's maturity mismatch and the sufficiency
of liquidity cushion are governed by various liquidity metrics and
measurement tools such as maturity mismatch limits and liquidity
stress test.

The marketability of the Group's liquidity cushion is periodically
reviewed in keeping with market conditions. The size of the liquidity
cushion being maintained must be sufficient to meet intraday
payments and settlement obligations on a timely basis under both
normal and stressed conditions.

Stress scenario analysis

Liquidity Stress Testing is regularly conducted to project the Group's
cash flows under stress scenarios for evaluation of the sufficiency of
the liquidity cushion. The stress scenarios cover institution-specific
crisis scenario, general market crisis scenario and combined crisis
scenario. The cash flows under each stress scenario are determined by
applying a set of prescribed stress assumptions to the Group's cash
flow projection. Customer behavioural patterns of some products
including customer deposits are applied in the stress test. The stress
test results are regularly reported to the RMC and ALCO. The definition
of liquidity cushion being held by the Group is consistent with the
definition of High Quality Liquid Assets and other marketable debt
securities for purposes of determining the Group's Liquidity Coverage
Ratio. The liquidity cushion should be able to cover projected cash
outflows under various prescribed stress scenarios.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivvep)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Contingency Funding Plan (“CFP”)

The Group has a CFP that sets out the Group's strategies for identifying
the occurrence of a liquidity event and the operational procedures
for addressing such emergency situation if it really takes place. The
CFP contains a set of early warning indicators that helps to identify
any emerging liquidity risks at an early stage. The CFP also includes
detailed action steps and properly assigned responsibilities within the
liquidity risk management framework. The list of potential funding
sources, with due consideration of their reliability, priority and the
expected available time during liquidity crisis, is included.

The Group has not entered into any agreement or arrangement under
which the Group has to fulfil contingent funding obligations.

Liquidity measurements
) Maturity analysis

The maturity analysis lists out the assets and liabilities by their
remaining maturities into different time buckets. The gap
amount for each time bucket represents the liquidity exposure
after netting the assets and liabilities maturing in the same
bucket. The Group maintains daily gap limits for each time
bucket to manage liquidity risk. For some liabilities without
prescribed maturity date such as demand deposits from
customers, the liabilities are listed in the bucket of "Repayable
on Demand”, resulting in a larger negative gap in this time
bucket. The Group considers this as an inherent risk to a
consumer and commercial bank that offers demand deposit
products to customers. By experience demand deposits have
stable outstanding and the negative gap does not materialise
into an immediate outflow of liquidity. However, to mitigate the
liquidity risk, inter-bank and other borrowing facilities, as well as
contingency funding plan are in place to cover withdrawals at
unexpected levels of demand. Apart from customer deposits,
the Group has other sources to fund the earning assets, such as
inter-bank borrowings, debt securities issued, funding support
from the parent bank and CCBA's share capital.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrinven

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity measurements (continued)

(1) Maturity analysis (continued)

The table below sets out the maturity profile of assets and

HoMmEEREE - liabilities analysed by the remaining period to repayment as at
the reporting date:
18R 1ERRL 3BAML. 1ENML
R2019E128318 WiRE gUR 3EARHUA 1EIUR  SEAUR  SENLE EHR &g
3months or Tyearor  5yearsor
Repayable Tmonth less butover lessbutover less but over
As at December 31,2019 on demand orless  Tmonth  3months Tyear Over5years  Undated Total
BE Assets
BeRESTR Cash and balances with banks
PRETNES and central banks 4735815 34,462,480 - - - - - 39,198,295
BREITE Placements with banks = - 10361976 5992062 21,714,503 - - 38,068,541
BIER Advances to banks - 1,918,005 - = = = - 1918005
REENRESZEE  Advancestocustomers
and trade bills 186,829 73,967,547 22982977 53885170 102,796,223 35795170 - 289613916
EERETHED Financial assets held under
SREE resale agreements - 782615 - - - - - 782615
BRAnEESER Financial assets measured
E8E \Ea atfairvalue through profit o loss
fHemaE - 1555050 - 856210 6856513  1,78940 279640 10,826,353
BAREESER Financial assets measured
EEHH ALY atfair value through other
2ANHEMEBEE  comprehensive income - 6939557 15586297 16749329 33054587 3230860 155090 75715720
RERN AT ER Other assets measured
AtAE at amortised cost - 3973048 6307910 2321379 547049 - - 18,072,831
fESBIA Derivative financial instruments - 526100 828203 438510 34,495 3,269 - 1830577
RAEELEMER Interest in a joint venture - - - - - - 1913865 1,913,865
BLHEEE Deferred tax assets = - - = = - 548,379 548,379
BTEE Fixed assets = - - = = - 2594611 2,594,611
FRELE Right-of-use assets = - 990 11293 388737 1292565 529565 2,223,150
AHEE Other assets 6404 3126027 692800 524739 621277 5,803 64,656 5041,79
EE8E Total assets 4929048 127250429 56,761,153 80,778,692 170936829 41,606,697  6,085806 488,348,654
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8 THRIEAREE® 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (convmmuen)
(b) REBESREM(Z) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
HEELIE(E) Liquidity measurements (continued)
) FEAS () (i) Maturity analysis (continued)
188 1EANL 3EAML 1EBES
R2019%128318 WiEE AR ERIUA 1EIUR SEFIUR  SELL EHR a5
3months or Tyearor  5yearsor
Repayable Tmonth lessbutover lessbutover lessbut over
As at December 31,2019 on demand or less Tmonth 3 months Tyear Over5years  Undated Total
af Liabilities
BONERNER Deposits and balances with banks | 3,818,040 2218792 1,839,558 = = - - 787639
RPER Deposits from customers 90,729,399 100,154,872 151,000,239 51,576,431 = - - 393,460,941
ETAEAREREFEE Finandal liabilties designated
EROH AR atfair value through profit or loss
femak - 10429 10,195 12,208 - - - 126699
BEMEMERES  Otherdebt securities issued = - 4363566 - 1785385 - - 6148951
fEeBIA Derivative financial instruments - 129624 270847 498,006 61,326 6,090 - 965893
HEBE Lease liabilities - 25310 61978 163846 787,245 698472 - 1,736,851
EREHHE Current tax payable - - - 1176516 - - - 1176516
BENEER Deferred tax liablities - - - - - - 19,268 19,268
Ef8E Other liabilities 37819 1675642 960,468 1,252,229 3925 - 2642398 6572481
EREE Total liabilities 94,585,258 104,308,536 158,506,851 54679236 2,637,881 704562 2,661,686 418,084,010
BEE/(BB)EE  Netassets/(liabilties) gap (89,656210) 22,941,893 (101,745,698) 26,099,456 168,298,948 40902135 3424120 70,264,644
o Of which:
BRRSHA Debt securities included in:
-UAREBEHE - Financial assets measured at
BEZEHA fair value through other
A2 AN comprehensive income
HemEE - 6939557 15586207 16749329 33054587 3,230,860 - 75560630
-NBRAAHE - Other assets measured at
WEMEE amortised cost - 3973048 6307910 2321379 547049 - - 18,072,831
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8 TRIEREE® 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmmuen)
(b) REBESREE) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
HEELIE(E) Liquidity measurements (continued)
) FEAS(E) () Maturity analysis (continued)

1R VBAKL 3EANL. 1FNRL

#2018F 128318 HIEEE dA SEARNUA  1FERUR SEAMA SEMLE ERR &8
3months or 1 yearor Syears or
Repayable Tmonth lessbutover — lessbutover  less but over
As at December 31,2018 on demand orless Imonth  3months Tyear  Over5years Undated Total
EE Assets
BeNERITR Cash and balances with banks
RRBITNER and central banks 9471050 68767645 - - - - - 78038697
FRETHE Placements with banks - - 61%110 5557731 - - - 31753841
REEZRESEE  Advancestocustomers
and trade bills 1644755 49217967 16427878 44863650 103427172 38889988 - 54471410
BERRTHEN Financial assets held under
tREE resale agreements - - 1514983 - - - - 1514983
ROAEBEER Financial assets measured
LY EHUN atfairvalue through profit orloss
MeREE 9680 264048 057 829 2143168 314103 2634 381627
ERAEERER Financial assets measured
ERgHALL atfair value through other
2ANEMEBEE  comprehensive income - 1057630 10403539 2702593 46161867 1847718 47869 86744559
REBNAHEN Other assets measured
EfEE atamortised cost - - TSI66) 54784 5866886 - - 1206583
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 737855 325,626 668824 998,584 25581 - 2756470
ReEtENER Interestin a oint venture - - - - - - 1973 1955713
REERRNER Interest in an associate - - - - - - 69203 69223
EREHEAE Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 396,042 396,042
BEEE Fixed assets - - - - - - 3200%1 320091
EfhEE Other assets 1404 1848740 TSI 0819 53379 19616 56308 3985945
BEHSE Total assets 11126900 121893885 56396048 85302538 159,151,056 41,097,006 6002470 480,969,903
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8 EREREREw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (covrmuep)
(b) REBESEMRE) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
HEELIE(E) Liquidity measurements (continued)
() FEIAS (&) () Maturity analysis (continued)

1R VBARL: 3EANL. 1FNL

018128318 HEEE FAA EARUA 1FHUA SERMA SELE EHR 28
3 months or T year or 5 years or
Repayable Tmonth  lessbutover — lessbutover  less but over
As at December 31,2018 on demand orless Imonth  3months Tyear  Over5years Undated Total
&& Liabilities
FONETNER Deposits and balances with banks 1729630 24873698 3178640 2385435 - - - 32167403
RPER Deposits from customers 96556754 86723205 93877086 75642642 1330192 - - 354129879
BERETHEN Financial assets sold under
tREE repurchase agreements - - 242085 - - - - 4085
BREAAMESRES  Otherdebt securities issued - - - BISTA 51236 682,009 ~ 14515909
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 690,699 402967 1023782 8942 1585 - 214m
g HHE Current tax payable - - - 252,269 - - - 252,269
BEREAR Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - - 21508 21,508
EfaE Other liabilities 376181845481 85038 1618255 28597 - 2653043 7008032
kEREE Subordinated debt - - - - - 58337% - 5%
BELE Total liabilities 98324002 114133083 100704500 89143957 6980057 6531659 2674551 418491899
FEE/(BR)EE  Netassets/iabilities) gap (87197100 7760802 (44308542  (3841419) 152170999 34565347 3327919 62478004
o Of which:
BREHHA Debt securities included in:
-BDNEEHE - Financial assets measured at
BEZ®HA fair value through other
A2k comprehensive income
HemEE - 057630 10403539 2702593 46161867 1847718 - 866969
-REBAAHE - Other assets measured at
WEMEE amortised cost - - 751662 544784 5866886 - - 1206583
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8 SHEREREw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (covmmuen)
(b) REBESEE) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)

MBI ELiE(E)
(i) IEAIERIR A AR HE 2

o —1
JILEE

TRHAINAEENEREER
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HIRERDIR

Liquidity measurements (continued)
(i) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the reporting date of the Group's financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the
earliest date to pay:

1EA 1EAML. 3EAME. 1EHE:

R20195128318 HERE AUR 3ERIUR 1FIUA  SEAUR  SENLE EHR &g
3months or lyearor  5yearsor
Repayable Tmonth lessbutover lessbutover lessbut over
As at December 31,2019 on demand orless Tmonth 3 months Tyear Over5years  Undated Total
FiTEERAE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BONERNER Depositsand balances with banks | 3,818,040 2,222,258 1,845,123 = = - - 7885421
REER Deposits from customers 90,729,399 100,184,554 151,209,625 52,036,384 379,119 - - 394,539,081
ETBEANEEE  Financial labilties designated at
BEBHHABREN  fairvaluethrough profitor loss
$HEE - 104897 10,304 12,260 = - - 127460
BETEMERES  Otherdebt securities issued = 34 4429081 7159 1938975 - - 6439682
HE&E Lease liabilities = 30,375 51,095 26461 951916 751,461 - 2,011,508
fEftE S Current tax payable - = - 1176516 = = - 1176516
BEREER Deferred tax liablities - - - - - - 19,268 19,288
Bk Other libiliies 37819 1675642 960,468 1252229 3925 - 2642398 6572481

94,585,258

104,217,760 158,505,896 54775442 3,273,935 751461 2,661,686 418,771,438

DBERELEMNTE  Cashinflow/(outflow) of

IERSHA/ ()  derivatives settled onanet basis - 329803 63,713 (11,795)  (1513)  (50,475) - 4973
NEEEELER Cash flow of derivatives
TETARSRE settled on a gross basis
=kA ~inflow - 122004656 47612545 66,527,498 8,159,144 852971 - 245,396,814
—id - outflow - 121838031 47398452 66347397 6413879 16449 - 242,162,253
HEAENAE Contingent liabilities

and commitments
-gBaE - contingent liabilities 232,056 480290 656411 930742 3464964 - - 5764463
—EE - commitments 5942232 675712 857,300 10,830903 21,281,389 144 - 86,587,680
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cHEREE @ 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT conmivuep)
(b) REBESREM(Z) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)

HEELIE(E) Liquidity measurements (continued)

(i) HHAE RS IREI KR ITHE 2 (i) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

RE (&)

18R TEAALE 3BAML. 1FNE

R2018E 128318 HEEE FA SEARUA 1FRUR SEAMA SEME bid]l o
3months or 1 yearor Syears or
Repayable Tmonth lessbutover  lessbutover — less but over
As at December 31,2018 on demand orless Imonth  3months Tyear  Over5years Undated Total
FiEeRaE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BONERNER Deposits and balances with banks 179630 24883719 3193427 2450155 - - - 322593
RPER Deposits from customers 9556754 86800999 94254779 76677880 1383494 - - 355673906
BERETHERN Financial assets sold under
SREE fepurchase agreements - - 243690 - - - - 243601
BRI ERES Other debt securites issued - 76337 67150 8446239 5880901 700878 - 15180514
N EH5E Current tax payable - - - 252,260 - - - 252,260
BEREER Deferred tax liablities - - - - - - 21,508 21,508
EftEE Other liabiliies 37618 1845481 85038 1618255 28597 - 2653M3 7008032
kREER Subordinated debt - - 124781 124781 998249 6121612 - 736943

98324002 113606536 100902085 89,569,579 8291241 6,831,490 2674551 420199484

IREEELERNFTE  Cashinflow/(outflow) of
TEBSHA/(FH)  derivatives settled onanet basis - (1,749) 186,282 371,006 445997 294790 - 129632

NAREELEN Cash flow of derivatives
fTEIARSRE settled on a gross basis
A ~inflow - 149805349 73590834 61,160812 9,877,647 1502,769 - 29593741
—il -outflow - 149539530 73699588 61219314 8,562,111 638,535 - 293659078

SEERNAE Contingent liabilities

and commitments
-3E8E - contingent liabiliies 41778 1047% 649106 2159754 665738 1,000 - 10033760
—HE - commitments 53713318 15786 531265 8751022 15550015 14622 - 78576028
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(c)
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Market risk

Market risk management by the Group

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market
rates and prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates
and prices of debt securities. Market risk arises from both the Group’s
trading and non-trading business. A trading book consists of positions
in financial instruments held either with trading intent or in order to
hedge other elements of the trading book. Non-trading book records
those financial instruments which are not included in the trading
book. The Group's exposure to market risk arises from its day-to-day
activities associated with loans, deposits, securities held for liquidity
purposes and trading activities.

The Group’s Risk Management Committee is responsible for
overseeing the market risk of the Group. The Group's market risk
framework comprises market risk management policies and control
procedures with appropriate delegation of market risk limits.

The Group's trading activities are primarily related to foreign exchange
and money market transactions. The Group manages its exposure to
market risk through the establishment of various trading limits and the
risk exposure is calculated by the Bank system and externally developed
risk engine. Trading book position is monitored by both end-of-day
and intraday reports. Any excess will be promptly investigated and
communicated with Treasury and then reported to RMC. In addition to
the overall limits, documented trading policies and procedures define
acceptable boundaries within which traders can execute transactions
in their assigned markets. The limits, policies and procedures, and
risk measurement methodology are updated and reviewed at least
annually and seek for RMC's approval to make sure the controls are
sound and valid.
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8 LHEMRERE®

(c)

8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivvep)

miEk(E) (c) Market risk (continued)
AEBEZERE Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) for the Group
[R\B&: (B Y 15 91T 52 i 772 15 S Y By P &6 VaR is a technique which estimates the potential losses that could
B E E/KERE AT 5] gL a8 £ occur on risk positions taken due to movements in market rates and
FIE=AME RS % B B 78~ 75 2R A9 prices over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence.
fEEK - AEERAFERARR The Group uses VaR to measure and report the market risk position,
BEMNREDIEEEEIINERR KX which covers the overall FX and the trading book interest rate risk
SEMNER R 2 I5REMRET o A& exposures. The Group sets up total VaR limit to control the market risk
EEN T R R E R EE DA B T S A b exposure. The standalone interest rate VaR and foreign exchange VaR
WO o BEEENNELREERRL are also reported below for reference. The Group adopts historical
B EIME FRPIRAERE o K simulation approach to calculate VaR at a 99% confidence level for a
SERARE L RE A ERE —RE one-day holding period.
FrA B 99% B K FHERIE -
AEEZREBEET The table below shows the VaR for the Group:

2019 2018
[\ B {8 VaR 515 1351
F =@ e R R E VaR for interest rate risk 563 1,074
BEERERERE VaR for foreign exchange risk 304 428

(i) EEERE
FEEzENERER

AEBEZINERERRAME
BB REBHEREARITE
BZINEEE - AEEHIF] T
SMNEBR - R E A S B RS E
Rk EE T - MAEEZI
EReBEREZRA(RRE
RFBRB)ANEE

AEBER T RARREEGEIN
PE ez - O R B 1 SE T BE 0O
AT - AFE RS BLINER
REMAERINERX - ZE
HAADTRBERTRESRE
[ B B 5 28 8 P £ 1O SO B
A, o AN S TE SN JBE 7R
TRZITEERZRHZERL
B WRRITERESEMNE
RZBEEH - ZEIHHAT
RELEBF-RIBELKREMA
BYMGELEERE(CREL
B

(i)  Currency risk
Currency risk management by the Group

The Group's foreign currency positions arise from treasury
activities and foreign exchange dealing to support the
commercial and consumer banking operations. The Group has
formulated a foreign exchange policy in managing the Group's
foreign exchange risk. The foreign currency positions are
managed within established limits, including open risk position
limits.

In addition to adopting VaR to measure foreign exchange
risk, a stress testing programme was developed to assess
the potential loss that the Group may incur from the foreign
exchange positions. The stress testing programme incorporates
sensitivity analysis on changes in foreign exchange rates with
various degree of severity. The methodology and assumptions
of stress testing programme are properly documented, and
approved by the Executive Committee and reviewed by the
Risk Committee, with its update at least once a year or when
the portfolio or the market conditions changes significantly.
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8 SHRIEAREE® 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmuen)
() TERARRE) () Market risk (continued)

(i) E#mEE) (i)  Currency risk (continued)
TRINTAEEEERBEN The following table indicates the currency concentration of the
BEERER - Group's assets and liabilities.

R2019F 128318 B £n B AR® Htt aE
As at December 31,2019 HKD usD EUR RMB Others Total
£E Assets
BeMERTR Cash and balances with
HRRFITHET banks and central banks 4395127 26,986,290 467,018 6,701,838 648,022 39,198,295
FHEITHA Placements with banks 13,193,766 14,102,250 672,076 10,100,449 - 38,068,541
RITER Advances to banks 750,000 1,168,005 - - - 1,918,005
REEFRESEE  Advancesto customers
and trade bills 161,734,611 89,712,580  19,778493 9,707,577 8,680,655 289,613,916
BERETEEN Financial assets held under
SREE resale agreements = 782,615 = = = 782,615
BAAEENER Financial assets measured
HE®HABR at fair value through
MemEE profit or loss 4,757,982 6,023,532 21,339 - 23,500 10,826,353
BOAEENER Financial assets measured
HEBH AH at fair value through other
2EARENEBEE  comprehensive income 22,714,485 43,268,219 705,760 9,027,256 - 75715720
BB ATEN Other assets measured
HthEE at amortised cost 2,629,900 14,684,043 104,659 654,229 - 18,072,831
TESRBTA Derivative financial instruments 197,449 605,190 545,512 292,642 189,784 1,830,577
NEERENER Interest in a joint venture 1,913,865 - - - - 1,913,865
ERRIEAE Deferred tax assets 548,379 - = = = 548,379
ETEE Fixed assets 2,594,611 - - - - 2,594,611
BRELE Right-of-use assets 2,223,150 = - = - 2223150
Hi&E Other assets 2,501,747 2,083,871 87,732 348,696 19750 5,041,796
nHgE Spot assets 220,155,072 199,416,595 22,382,589 36,832,687 9,561,711 488,348,654
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8 THRIEAREE® 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (convmmuen)
(0 WHERARGE) (¢)  Market risk (continued)
(i) E¥mkEE) (i) Currency risk (continued)
R2019%F12A8318 ik EYH B AR® Hitr nE
As at December 31,2019 HKD usb EUR RMB Others Total
8 Liabilities
RITOFRNER Deposits and balances
with banks 562,622 6,000,122 6,163 1,137,047 170,436 7,876,390
BERFEX Deposits from customers 190,079,319 135,250,529 24,148,018 37,438,355 6,544,720 393,460,941

EEARDNEEE  Finandal liabilities designated
BHEFTABER  atfairvalue through

tBAR profit and loss 44,964 7,032 1,964 158 72,581 126,699
BRTEMERES  Other debt securities issued - - 4361933 1,787,018 - 6148951
TESRTIE Derivative financial instruments 3,966 545,976 26,663 377,388 11,900 965,893
HEERE Lease liabilities 1,736,851 - = = - 1,736,851
JEfT & HiFiIE Current tax payable 1,174,352 - - 2,164 - 1,176516
REHEERE Deferred tax liabilities 19,288 = = = = 19,288
HEEE Other liabilities 5,147,784 1,041,994 64,339 285,551 32813 6,572,481
NHEE Spot liabilities 198,769,146 142,845,653 28,609,080 41,027,681 6,832,450 418,084,010
EHEA Forward purchases 83268463 96,307,799 10,008,870 44,309,416 8,788,811 242,683,359
BREEH Forward sales (46,302,221) (140,748,761)  (3,268,700) (40,061,113) (11,317,529) (241,698,324)
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8 SHEREREw
@ TEEKRGE)

8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(c) Market risk (continued)

(i) E#mEE) (i)  Currency risk (continued)
R 201812 A 318 B E BT AR Hith k]
As at December 31,2018 HKD usb EUR RMB Others Total
BE Assets
BeMERITR Cash and balances with
RRBTHER banks and central banks 14213157 48,077,641 106666 15193648 647585 78238697
BFHERTHIE Placements with banks 14324203 17429133 - 505 - 31753841
EPEFREHEE  Advances to customers
and trade bills 146872342 80000017 19618577 356799 4412478 254471410
EERETHEN Financial assets held under
SREE resale agreements - 1514983 - - - 1514983
BAREENER Financial assets measured
HEHi ABa at fair value through
MEmEE profit or loss 2,781,237 1034990 - - - 3816227
BAREBEFER Financial assets measured
HE & A B i at fair value through other
FENENESREE  comprehensive income 16431790 46725002 2328450 21259317 - 86744559
BBEBKATTEN Other assets measured
HinEE atamortised cost 5629782 4145836 107295 2182919 - 12065832
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments 14,470 1,767,393 670,406 229,353 74,848 2,756,470
RAESMEMER  Interestinajoint venture 1955713 - - - - 1955713
REE DRI RER Interest in an associate 69,223 - - - - 69,223
EEHBEE Deferred tax assets 396,042 - - - - 396,042
EEEE Fixed assets 3,200,961 - - - - 3200961
HipBE Other assets 1555190 1,825,335 116,218 411,262 77940 3985945
MEHEE Spot assets 207444110 202520330 22047612 42845000 5212851 480,969,903
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8 TREMREEw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmnuen)
(0 WHERARGE) (¢)  Market risk (continued)
(i) E¥mkEE) (i) Currency risk (continued)
7201812 A 318 B e B AEH# Htt g
As at December 31,2018 HKD Usb EUR RMB Others Total
8 Liabilities
FONETNERF Deposits and balances
with banks 299,254 25,881,231 181,624 3,206,793 2,598,501 32,167,403
EPER Deposits from customers 201723931 91385296 8345739 46184237 6490676 354129879
EEHETHEN Financial assets sold under
SHEE repurchase agreements - - - 2420859 - 2420859
BEITHMERES  Other debt securities issued 15801 4682707 4475054 2957849 2384408 14515909
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 106,094 312615 42,783 1,097,442 583,308 2,142,242
JERE HIFIE Current tax payable 250,218 - - 2,051 - 252,269
ERRERRE Deferred tax liabilities 21,508 - - - - 21,508
B Otherliabilities 4809048 1470941 79,486 553919 94638 7008032
AERE Subordinated debt - 5833798 - - - 5833798
HHaE Spot liabilities 207,225944 129,566,588 13,124,686 56,423,150 12,151,531 418491,899
BEHEA Forward purchases 88918298 110,857,199 7,046,960 68,018,968 14,892,106 290,333,531
EHEH Forward sales (34540927) (174934084)  (16249497)  (55640316)  (8448352) (289813,176)
(i)  FFEE (ii)  Interest rate risk
EEEZFERBEE Interest rate risk management by the Group
AEEARITERENFEEBEAR The Group's interest rate exposure arises from the positions
B EMAZFERRR - in the banking book and proprietary trading. The interest rate
RITRRP TR @ERE - B— risk exposure in the banking book arises from its normal course
MZRITEBNER - BT of banking activities, such as lending, accepting deposits,
K AEARBES AR ZH: investing in securities for liquidity purposes and issuance of
BERRBEERBESMEST debts as needed to fund assets. The governing objective in
BEFAH - NERREECE interest rate risk management is to minimise the potential
g REREBENXEB)Mm significant loss as a result of changes in interest rates. The
BELEZEKRNIBXL - AEHE Group holds weekly interest rate setting meetings to review the
ERBRNERTERE - AR latest market rate movements and the overall portfolio yield.
AERFTS RS LERAE Interest rate risk is managed on a daily basis by the Treasury
allaEE - FIXERTRHEE Division within the limits approved by the Risk Management
CHRERERZESZEZ Committee. The instruments used to manage interest rate risk
REEE - AEEENEER include interest rate swaps and other derivatives.
2 TEBEN = REAMDT
£THE-
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(c)
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Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (continued)
The Group is exposed to two major sources of interest rate risk,
namely, gap risk and basis risk.

Gap risk is the risk arising from changes in the interest rates
on instruments of different maturities. The extent of gap risk
depends on whether changes to the term structure of interest
rates occur consistently across the yield curve (parallel risk) or
differentially by period (nonparallel risk).The Group uses forward
rate agreements and interest rate swaps to mitigate the gap
risk. The Group generally monitors mismatches by monthly 19
time buckets from next day to over 20 years.

Basis risk arises from different pricing basis of assets and
liabilities, which results in changes in the yield on assets and
cost of liabilities by different amount within the same repricing
period. For example, loan assets are being tied to the Hong
Kong dollar prime rate, and deposit liabilities tied to the Hong
Kong Interbank Offer Rate ("HIBOR"). Basis risk primarily occurs in
the Group's Hong Kong dollar books. The Group has established
stress testing programme to assess the potential erosion of net
interest income that the Group may incur from basis risk.

The Group mainly uses two methodologies to measure and
monitor its interest rate risk exposure. One methodology is
VaR measurement. Another methodology is using stress test
to assess the banking book interest rate risk (“IRRBB"). Apart
from gap risk and basis risk, The IRRBB stress-testing has further
incorporated option risk and credit spread risk. the repricing
gap and several types of yield curve movement. For interest
rate risk monitoring purpose, the Risk Management Committee
reviews the analysis of IRRBB stress-testing from time to time, in
particular when reviewing the repricing limits.
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8 TREMREEw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmnuen)
(c) WZERE) ()  Market risk (continued)
(i) FIFEEEE(E) (i) Interest rate risk (continued)
R R0 KB - KR Change of 100 basis points in interest rates would change the
BAEBEFE BN RRE RN Group's profit for the year and retained earnings as follows:
LU
TEBFEERFIR
RE BRI, O
Increase/(decrease)

in Group's profit for the year and
retained earnings

2019 2018
EF100E 2, Increase by 100 basis points 280,692 614,872
TF% 100 E£ 24 Decrease by 100 basis points (280,692) (614,872)
FIREFTEH Interest rate repricing gap
TSR A & B prEcR /9 A1) The table below summarises the Group's exposure to interest
Ef - RNBIEAEBRA rate risks. Included in the table are the Group's assets and
EES| IR EE FIRERT 5 liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
FEB(UREE RE)DER contractual repricing or maturity dates. The carrying amounts
BEMBE TEemIAEE of derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
ZANREREEE RS reduce the Group's exposure to interest rate movements, are
B [ By - H AR T (B (B A BT under the heading “Non-interest bearing’.

BIETII -
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8 SHEREREw
@ TEERGE) (

c) Market risk (continued)

8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(i) FIEEEEE) (i) Interest rate risk (continued)
R2019F12A31HZFRE Interest rate repricing gap as at December 31,2019
ATER

1A 1EANL. 3EANL.  1ENL
gUR 3EREMM  1EFUR  sERMA SENME FHE A%
3 months or 1yearor 5years or
Tmonth lessbutover lessbutover lessbutover Non-interest
orless 1 month 3 months Tyear  Over5years bearing Total
BE Assets
REMEFTRPRBRIH  Cashand balances with banks and
&R central banks 34,462,480 - - - - 4735815 39,198,295
FHERE Placements with banks 8994348 14363931 5995759 8714503 - - 33068541
FER Advances to banks 1,918,005 - - = = - 1918005
RFEFRESRE Advances to customers and
trade bills 194,188,099 67,852,132  18,025277 9,513,701 34,707 - 289613916
SEGETHEBNRHEE  Financil assets held under
resale agreements 782,615 - - - - - 782,615
RAREEHERESE  Finandial assets measured at
HABENEREE fairvalue through profitor loss 4467373 1769563 4589417 = - - 10826353
BOREBENEEERY  Financial assets measured at
HALM2EYEA fairvalue through other
SREE comprehensive income 8288203 19363739 16332856 28,637,174 3,075,792 17,956 75715720
RERAATENEREE  Otherassets measured at
amortised cost 3,914,246 7924422 2,332,955 3,901,208 - - 18072831
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1830577 1,830577
RERLANER Interest in a joint venture - - - - - 1013865 1,913,865
EiEREEE Deferred tax assets - - - - - 548,379 548,379
3 Fited assets - - - - - 2504611 2594611
fFRELE Right-of-use assets - - - - - 223150 2,223,150
HfpEE Otherassets - - - - - 504179  50417%
EELE Total assets 257,015,369 111,273,787 47,276,264 50,766,586 3110499 18,906,149 488,348,654
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8 LHEMRERE®

(0 TERARE)
(i) FIFEEEE(E)

R2019F12A31BZFERE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrinuen)

(c) Marketrisk (continued)
(ii)  Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate repricing gap as at December 31, 2019

TEBEE) (continued)

188 1EANRL, 3@AML  1EML

FUR EASMA 1ESMR SERMA SENE FHE k]

3 months or 1yearor 5yearsor

Tmonth lesshutover lesshutover lesshbut over Non-interest

orless Tmonth 3 months Tyear  Over5years bearing Total
B Liabilities
RONEINER Deposits and balances with banks 2218955 1,839,558 - - - 3817877 7876390
LASEE Deposis flom custorners 168913448 151,117,868 51,423,601 152,832 - 21853192 393460941
BEBROABEFER  Finandialliabities designated at
HEHHABRR fairvalue through profitor loss
2BEMR 116,395 10,304 - - - - 126,699
REGEICY Other debt securtes ssued - 4360678 - 1788273 - - 6148951
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 965,893 965,893
el Lease Liabiltes 1,736,851 - - - - - 1736851
B8RS Current tax payable = = = = - 1176516 1,176516
EEREERE Deferred tax iabiltes - = - = - 19,288 19,288
Ath&fE Other iabilies - - - - - 65T2481 6572481
B4R Total liabilities 172985649 157328408 51423601 1,941,105 - 34405247 418,084,010
HEETFEE Net repricing gap 84029720  (46,054621)  (4147337) 48825481  3,110499
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8 STHREAREE® 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmmuen)
() THERARRE) (©)  Market risk (continued)
(i) FIFEEEE(E) (i) Interest rate risk (continued)
MR2018F 128318 2 K &E Interest rate repricing gap as at December 31, 2018
HE3-:

1EA TERAL. 3EANL. 1ML

GHA MERSMA 1EENA SERNR SENE & 2%
3months or 1 year or Syears or
Imonth  lessbutover  lesshutover — less but over Non-interest
or less 1 month 3months Tyear  Over5years bearing Total
BE Assets
RERERTRBRBITH Cashand balances with banks and
ar central banks 68767645 - - - - M0 78238697
THERTHE Placements with banks - BI%I0 55T - - S ix 1
RFEFRB55E Advances to customers and
trade bills 176,103914 60311333 9,642,189 6,962,345 212410 1239219 254471410
BERETHBNLBEE  Financial assets held under
resale agreements - 1514983 - - - - 1514983
BOAEEEEEEY  Finandalassets measured at
SABRNSRAE fairvalue through profit or loss 3330184 200000 - - - 86048 3816207
BOREEIEEEEY  Finandalassets measured at
A2 ERER fairvalue through other
SREE comprehensive income 1057630 15210835 29402,799 39,177,708 1847718 47869 86,/44559
RRBAATENEREE Other assets measured at
amortised cost - 4905509 2447714 4712609 - - 12065832
fEERIA Derivative financial nstruments - - - - - 2756470 2756470
REELENER Interest n a joint venture - - - - - 93 1955713
REELFNER Interest n an associate - - - - - 69223 69203
ELRREE Deferred tax assets - - - - - 396042 396042
had Fited assets - - - - - 300%1 320091
AhEE Other assets - - - - - 3OS 398598
BESfE Total assets 249259373 108338770 47050433 50852662 2,060,128 23408537 480,969,903

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report



A MR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LA T 7L5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

8 LHEMRERE®

(c)

(d)

hiEREER (&)
(i) FEEEEE)
MA2018F 12 831B 2 XR&E

8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrivvep)

(c) Marketrisk (continued)
(ii)  Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate repricing gap as at December 31, 2018 (continued)

RIERE(E)

1A VEANME. EAME 1ENE

MM 3EREMA 1ESNA SESUA SELLE Mg @z

3months or 1 year or Syears or

Imonth — lessbutover — lesshutover  less but over Non-interest

or less 1 month 3months Tyear  Over5years bearing Total
8 Liabilities
el Deposits and balances with banks 104585 564075 - - SIS0 3167403
LSS Deposits from customers 147563082 101009845 TI88TIE6 1277586 - 630600 354129879
EEBETLEN Finandial assets sold under
SHEE repurchase agreements - 24089 - - - - 24089
BETENERES Other debt securites issued - - 8B 5606399 677,749 - 14515909
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 21404 214204)
ERE0RE Curtent tax payable - - - - - 252069 252269
EEREaR Deferred tax iabltes - - - - - 21508 21508
AthgfE Other liablities - - - - - T08032 7008032
fhERE Subordinated delot - B SEPL - - - 53T
BEAE Total liabilities 605667 108994779 9195335 6883985 677749 31376304 418491899
NEETHEE Net repricing gap 76653706 (656000) (44900892 43968677 1382379

EXER (d) Capital management

FITERBEEMHRAIHE - X2
ERREMEENTNEAERRE
P E M ERTTR B 2 RIBER & ALK
RE - FERTRMBLRR —217TE
% RIBEEFRPEEHERR
HEEMEE YANEGHEARL -

RIBGRITE(BER)RADCEARR
AN AEEABFARNEEER
EREHER  NENEE  THRk
BEZRER

Being an authorised institution incorporated in Hong Kong, the Bank
is regulated by the HKMA who sets and monitors capital requirements
for the Bank as well as the consolidated position for the banking
subsidiaries as prescribed by the HKMA. A non-banking financial
subsidiary, CCBS, is subject to the supervision and capital requirements
of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission.

According to the Banking (Capital) Rules (“Capital Rules”), the Group is

required to maintain adequate regulatory capital and capital buffers to
support credit risk, market risk and operational risk.
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BRTRHEEEREN  AEEERE
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AEBEGERRANEREEARLE
B UEREE SRR REREE
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RiGFE  YEAFEREELARB
LB R B AN o

REBIRERE CEARAD PratER
BAR R EREHEARLRELEE
RER - ARBENERNEEBET
ERRSERRITNEE ZREHE
# o

REBRAANBEAT R GEETH
BER - BREFIHZREITE - R
I3 - BREHE CEARRAD RBE
ENNSRREBAFRENNEARER -
ARGRENRERBIRLL X -

#HZE2019%12 8318 K20185 12 A31
HIEFER  AEEHYFELERA
TEREARENR - M IIEMFHR AT

PBE B -

AT ILHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

(d)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Capital management (continued)

In addition to meeting the regulatory requirements, the Group's
primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between higher shareholder returns
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and, when necessary, makes adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the capital
adequacy ratios and capital buffers as calculated in accordance with
the Capital Rules and the Group's policy on the management of capital
is updated regularly to incorporate latest regulatory requirements.

The Group maintains a policy on internal capital adequacy assessment
process ("ICAAP") that sets out the methodologies, assumptions and
techniques in assessing the capital requirements on the residual risks
that are not covered by the Capital Rules and establishing the internal
capital targets.

Throughout the years ended December 31, 2019 and December 31,
2018, the Group has complied with the capital requirements imposed
by the HKMA. Additional information is disclosed in the Bank’s
Regulatory Disclosure.



A MR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LA T 7L5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

RABEMGF—RIEIEN X
BRTANFENREmSERRE—
FERREL - AEEFNATIIAR
BEEMEAREE:

FER: UERMERITAELED
ZRENMERECRES
B)FERAEE-

F_BA: RAVERBERGAEE
B RERBEERAERR
BER)OGHEEAFEBAN
BE EEERREENS
BITAREERMSHTSR
B HRSENTARIR
BWIZHMMISRE - HH M
ERN . MEFAANE
R AEEHRERIEE
A ETISBR S NEE o

FZEL: ERERETUBEBAE
AEAAEE- EEERE
EFNABERIENBARE
REEEAAERNEA
18 MR ERE AER
HTAMEBREATE -
EEERBEERERNTH
BERENTE  BIZ2ZHU
TANMEHRE  LRENR
HEANTABROHRER
BER URBRTEIANE
8o

9 FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are made as
of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of the financial
instruments and relevant market information. The Group measures fair
value using the following hierarchy method:

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted market prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments.

Level 2:  fair values measured using valuation techniques based on
observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices). This category includes quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial instruments, or
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets
that are considered less than active, or other valuation
techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3:  fair values measured using significant unobservable inputs.
This category includes inputs to valuation techniques not
based on observable data and the unobservable inputs
have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation.
This category includes instruments that are valued based
on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to
reflect differences between the instruments.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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9 FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT (conmnuen)

(a)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(continued)

Where available, the most suitable measure for fair value is the quoted
market prices in an active market. In the absence of active markets for
most of the unlisted securities and over-the-counter derivatives, direct
market prices of these financial instruments may not be available.
The fair values of such instruments are therefore calculated based on
established valuation techniques (i.e. Market Comparable Approach)
by using observable and comparable market parameters or market
prices provided by counterparties. Independent price verification or
reasonableness check is performed if fair values are determined by
reference to externally quoted prices.

Options and equity swaps traded over the counter are valued using
broker quotes price. The fair value of foreign exchange contracts are
valued by observable foreign exchange rates and forward points at
the reporting date. Other derivative financial instruments, including
interest rate swaps and currency swaps, are valued through estimated
future cash flows and discounting with appropriate yield curves.

For structured deposits, this class of instruments includes certain
deposits received from customers that are embedded with derivatives.
The valuation of the underlying deposits is derived by using net
present value of expected cash flow taking the Group's own credit risk
into account. The valuation method of the embedded derivative is the
same as other derivatives mentioned as above.
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DAREEFE® 9 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (conrmuen)
(a) RAOAEEFENESREERE (@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
&(#& (continued)
TEROMEREARLZAALEBRT The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair
ENESMIE ETRAAEARE value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the fair value
BHBITREBERER - hierarchy into which the fair value treatment is categorised:
F—EBR HZER HZEBR B
R2019F 12831 H As at December 31,2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
BAREBESZEHEES) Financial assets measured at fair
AFABENESREE value through profit or loss
EeRE Fund investments 28,385 94,376 - 122,761
RPHEH Trading securities = 495,550 = 495,550
HEMEBKES Other debt securities = 156,879 = 156,879
REER Trading loans - 10,051,163 - 10,051,163
BARBESFELEES Financial assets measured at fair
T AE A 2 value through other
CREE comprehensive income
HE5 &5 Treasury bills/bonds 16,085,277 22,508,076 - 38,593,353
FRE Certificates of deposit - 3,149,409 - 3,149,409
H i ERE Other debt securities 33,261,606 556,262 - 33,817,868
Wt a8 75 Equity shares 40,412 = 114,678 155,090
?ﬁEEﬁEEI/E\ Derivative financial instruments
[ERE4 Exchange rate contracts
L,E;ﬁ Forwards - 1,275,424 - 1,275,424
B AHi Options purchased = 14,086 = 14,086
F & 4= HA Interest rate swaps = 48,992 = 48,992
B A Currency swaps - 491,844 = 491,844
& {152 B Equity swaps = 231 = 231
49,415,680 38,842,292 114,678 88,372,650
a8 Liabilities
IETE AR AAEEE  Finandial liabilities designated at fair
BEHEEH ABRED value through profit or loss
eBMBE - 126,699 = 126,699
PTESMTA Derivative financial instruments
REH Exchange rate contracts
R Forwards - 781,645 - 781,645
S ERE Options written = 14,820 = 14,820
) 2= 4 A Interest rate swaps = 162,012 = 162,012
&k A Currency swaps = 7,156 = 7,156
% {7 1= B8 Equity swaps = 260 = 260
- 1,092,592 - 1,092,592

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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9 AREBEEFE® 9 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (conrnue)
(a RAOAEEFENESREERA (@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
f&(#&) (continued)
TRAMEREARIZAAEENZ The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair
MeBRTE RTRAAAEEERED value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the fair
BITREBER : (8) value hierarchy into which the fair value treatment is categorised:

(continued)

F—EH BIEL FZER 48
720185 12 A31H As at December 31,2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
BAREBESEHEES) Finandial assets measured at fair
AFABENEREE value through profit or loss
EeikE Fund investments 27,611 90,386 - 117,997
HEMEKES Other debt securities - 158,357 - 158,357
REER Trading loans - 3,539,873 - 3,539,873
BARBEAEHEES Financial assets measured at fair
T AE M2 value through other
TREE comprehensive income
BE% &% Treasury bills/bonds 18,272,499 5,726,713 - 23999212
FRE Certificates of deposit - 3,148,734 - 3,148,734
HEBES Other debt securities 43965645 15,583,099 ~ 59,548,744
TR 75 2 Equity shares 30,627 - 17,242 47,869
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments
EXRGH Exchange rate contracts
= H Forwards - 1,702,391 - 1,702,391
B AH## Options purchased - 7,812 - 7812
F & 4= HA Interest rate swaps - 394,072 - 394,072
B A Currency swaps - 652,195 - 652,195
62,296,382 31,003,632 17,242 93,317,256
a8 Liabilities
BEITAMEBES Other debt securities issued — 4,737,909 — 4737909
PTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments
ERGL Exchange rate contracts
B Forwards - 1,756,689 - 1,756,689
pragusp:iif Options written - 7,812 - 7,812
F| % 5 HA Interest rate swaps - 86,832 - 86,832
Bk B Currency swaps - 290,909 - 290,909
®IEER Subordinated debt - 5833798 - 5833798
- 12,713,949 - 12,713,949
B ZE2019F 12 A31H &2018F 12 A There were no significant transfers between instruments in Level 1
JIALEFE  FEARBEZER and Level 2 for the year ended December 31, 2019 and December 31,
T BRI AR RS o 2018.

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report
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9 AAREEFTEw

(a)

BARBEMAENEREERSE
&(#)
FEoEREEHHR

9 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (conrinuen

(@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)
Reconciliation of level 3 items

2019
AR BB E AR EEF AR MEE Financial assets measured at FVOCI - Unlisted
Wz oy B E B — FEF T w53 equity securities
M1A1TH As at January 1 17,242
REMPEE=ERN AN EEES Change in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income 97,436
i Additions -
8 Disposal -
A (EH)E=ER Transfer to/(out of) level 3 =
Eibak:e] Reclassification -
®W12A31H As at December 31 114,678

R2019F 12 A31BM2018%F 12 A
3B DEAF-EANESRE
ERFLTREZES LMiEgn
BHEHMARNEEEL2BMBE LA
R ETMATNZELEREEN
Blan A BB EM AR M AR K
T CEEERERAE B
B FEMBEHABNEEN L
o NABEEELEMSIELR
2H2FRB- - MERBEEFZLE
B, 5% 0 BIAREEE
H2mEURES g, 8 6,000 7T °

As at December 31,2019 and December 31, 2018, financial assets
categorised as level 3 are unlisted equity securities. The fair values of
unlisted equity securities are determined with reference to multiples
of comparable listed companies in the market, such as price/earnings
ratios of comparables, or EV/EBITDA ratios per Bloomberg. The fair
value is positively correlated to these market comparable parameters.
Had the earning of the underlying equity investments increased/
decreased by 5%, the Group's other comprehensive income would
have increased/decreased by $6,000.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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9 AREEFE® 9 FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT (covmmueD)

(a)

BEARBEFENESHEERE
&)
EHE=BRAALEBETENE
M2019F 124318 XEBFEAMNU
TMEEEANES T A 858G A BT
EHNBAF-EREMEENDR
B8 :

(@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

As at December 31, 2019, the valuation method and significant

unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the

Group's financial assets classified as Level 3 are as follows:

EETTHE THBERAE
ERAMLEER fHEBMAEZH FiE BRBARAEENBER
Significant
unobservable Relationship of
Valuation valuation unobservable
model used inputs parameters Average inputs to fair value
LTRSS WBERE BHNEEH(TAEE) 11.94 LHEAF -
(20184 : @A) AABEDS
Unlisted equities Market-comparable Earnings multiples 11.94  The higher the ratio, the
securities approach (P/E ratio) (2018:N/A) higher the fair value
PEBEEERTE 9212 EHAS
MIE - FrEMEERT (20184 ¢ TNEMA) NAABEDS
BN
EV/EBITDA multiples 9.12  The higher the multiple,
(2018: N/A) the higher the fair value
TG m T 40% HrEAE -
(20184 : @A) NABEDE
Marketability discount 40%  The higher the discount,
(2018:N/A) the lower the fair value

(b) Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

(b) FRAABEFENTHMEER
afE
A MBHREK LR AEED]
THEREENABIZBREREM
FERTTRPRIBITOET - FHIRTT
A RITEF  EFERRESE
BARIZEBR AT ENEMEE
BLDREERBHNRERME
REKLFE - EEAMBHRR LI
BRAREEITHNERABEIERR
RITIFRANGET « TR R MIR#
BREARITEMERES - LS
BB EIREARNAETE

Financial assets and liabilities that are not presented at their fair value
on the consolidated statement of financial position mainly represent
cash and balances with banks and central banks, placements with
banks, advances to banks, advances to customers and trade bills,
and other assets measured at amortised cost. These financial assets
are measured at amortised cost less expected credit losses. Financial
liabilities not presented at their fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position mainly represent deposits and balances
of banks, deposits from customers, and other debt securities issued
at amortised cost. These financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost.

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report
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9 AAREEFTEw

(b) 3R

&f&
i)

iii)

RABEFENERMEER
(%)

BB MART R P RBITEE
7 BHIRITHIE - RITER
MBERZE TRHANTREE

BLHBBIERMGNEE
B XYHE—-FARIE - At
HEmEEEQAABEMES
ELTREENAEEMER
HEEZHEANERL REARE
BriR A MBI RB S -

BEFERMEZRE
REDEFPEHRNEZREEY

R BEBEWIS N KRG
Bt EEREEERAR
BERE GELEFPERMNE
HEENANEBEMERER
2 R 2 BRI R FE 7N 5 B A 4R
BUBIRRRFIIHL -

REBRATTENROERE
EMBEETHMERES

RSB AT ENELFNAR
BERAHREALEETED
BEERMITAETE - 4z
BE AW EE 28 FFTEE 44 ©

9 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (conrinuen

(b) Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

(continued)

i)

iii)

Cash and balances with banks and central banks, Placements
with banks, Advances to banks and Financial assets held under
resale agreements

These balances are mainly priced at market interest rates
and mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying values
approximate the fair values. The differences between fair values
and carrying amounts of these financial assets not presented on
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

Advances to customers and trade bills

Majority of the advances to customers and trade bills are on
floating rate terms, bear interest at prevailing market interest
rate. Accordingly, their carrying values approximate the fair
values. The differences between fair values and carrying
amounts of advances to customers and trade bills not
presented on the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position.

Other financial assets and other debt securities issued which
measured at amortised cost

The fair value of securities measured at amortised cost is
determined using the same approach as those securities
measured at fair value. Further details are described in Note 28
and Note 44.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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10 HBEELRMEERESBEE 10 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(a) SWEE (@) Financial assets
THemEESEE  BRITHEF The following financial assets are subject to offsetting, enforceable
BAEE IR EUBZEOR master netting arrangements or similar agreements:
R o
R2019%F12A31H As at December 31,2019
PEGEHBMRR RS
HHW R B
Related amounts not
offset in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
EGRHE HERAUK
EEIE MERIE NEREE IKEREY
MEEAE RMEERR FE  SEIE HREEAR 2]
Gross
amounts of
recognised Net amounts
financial  of financial
liabilities assets
setoff  presented
Gross inthe in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised  statement  statement Cash
financial  of financial ~ of financial Financial collateral
assets position position  instruments received Netamount
fTEemEE Derivative financial assets 1,830,577 - 1830577  (806,004)  (135333) 889,240
BERETHER Financial assets held under
SREE resale agreements 782,615 = 782,615  (782,615) = =
Hih&&E Other assets 502,946  (292,604) 210,342 - - 210,342
3,116,138 (292,604) 2,823,534  (1,588,619) (135,333) 1,099,582
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10 KEHLMEENRSHEME 10 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

(4) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES «conmivuep)
(a) ERMEE(E) (@) Financial assets (continued)
R2018F 12 A31H As at December 31,2018
TMEZAMBHRRF
KEMIEEEE
Related amounts not
offset in the

consolidated statement
of financial position

ERAME EHAHH
MREREHE HRRER

BEEREe RERRE MemEE By
REERTE mBEREER FE O OSRIAE HLERR et
Gross

amounts of ~ Net amounts
recognised  of financial
financial assets
liabilities set presented

Gross offin the inthe
amounts of  consolidated  consolidated
recognised  statement  statement Cash
financial  of financial  of financial Financial collateral
assets position position  instruments received  Netamount
TEERMER Derivative financial assets 2,756470 - 2756470 (1303861)  (167,784)  1,84825
BERETHER Financial assets held under
SHEE resale agreements 1514983 - 1514983 (1,504,765) - 10218
HthEE Other assets 175,504 (172,184) 3320 - - 3320

4446957 (172184) 4274773 (2,808,626) (167,784) 1,298,363

REERRIT (B R BR AT - 2019FF5H @
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(BRAFRIGERRSN - AUBEETITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kon

10 EEEemEEREMEE 100
(%) Fi

(b) EEEME (b)
THERAEXEE ARTHF
BREIHRZHIBURZNR
BR o

7A2019F 128318

g dollars, unless otherwise stated)

FFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
NANCIAL LIABILITIES (conminuep

Financial liabilities
The following financial liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

As at December 31,2019

PEFEMBEMRRRH
HHW R B
Related amounts not
offset in the
consolidated statement
of financial position

EFAHE ERAHEK
RRFEHE RKRR2H

EERE NERRE NEmAR WER
MEELE MEELE FE SRIE BEEAR BH
Gross

amounts of Netamounts

recognised  of financial

financial liabilities

assetsset  presented

Gross off in the in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated

recognised  statement  statement Cash

financial of financial ~ of financial Financial collateral
liabilities position position instruments  advanced Netamount
fTHEERAE Derivative financial liabilities 965,893 - 965,893 (806,004) 519,780 679,669
HitgfE Other liabilities 435662  (292,604) 143,058 - - 143,058

1,401,555 (292,604) 1,108,951 (806,004) 519,780 822,727
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10 EETHMEERTREE

(%)

(b)

SRaEE)
M2018F12 A31 H

10 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES conmvuep)

(b) Financial liabilities (continued)
As at December 31,2018

MEGEMBMART
igislokisl el e
Related amounts not
offset in the
consolidated statement
of financial position

ERAME EHAHH
MREREHE HRRER

EERE HERZRE NeRes W ER A
REGEE REELR FHE RRIA Heffm FE
Gross
amounts of ~ Net amounts
recognised  of financial
financial liabilities
assetssetoff  presented
Gross inthe inthe

amounts of  consolidated  consolidated

recognised  statement  statement Cash
financial  of financial ~ of financial Financial collateral
liabilities position position  instruments advanced  Netamount
TESEAR Derivative financial liabilities 2,142,242 - 2142042 (1,303861) 215550 1053931
ElfE RS N HER Financial assets sold under
SREE repurchase agreements 2420859 - 2420859 (2406835) - 14,024
HinBfE Other liabilities 191,948 (172,184) 19,764 - - 19,764

4,755,049 (172184) 4,582,865 (3,710,696) 215,550 1,087,719

HRETERNFREE T HEX
BLUBEMARNEREENE
B AEEEXSHFZENE N
BHEOBRFEE DB EBRFHEEE
HBENBAT  SHEENEREE
MBEEFREE R BIIERE
TR AEREENRESKARE
EEGE EBFREEIHIXE
UHZENE T B AEERES —TTE
B BREBRAESBAFREER -

For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master
netting arrangements or similar arrangements above, each agreement
between the Group and the counterparty allows for net settlement
of the relevant financial assets and liabilities when both elect to settle
on a net basis, in the absence of such an election, financial assets and
liabilities will be settled on a gross basis, however, each party to the
master netting agreement or similar agreement will have the option
to settle all such amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the
other party.
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11 FMEWAZEEE

11 NETINTEREST INCOME

2019 2018
FIE WA Interest income
KB BRI E & B 5 FE A Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate
FHERTTRERIBITER Placements and advances to banks 2,193,693 1,685,690
REFEXKEZERE Advances to customers and trade bills 9,045,591 8,795,098
BARBEFEAHEESTA Financial assets measured at fair value
Hih2EWRmm S EE through other comprehensive income 1,995,445 2,290,091
BEBHAATENEMEE Other assets measured at amortised cost 465,811 429,856
FIE WA 425 Total interest income 13,700,540 13,200,735
FEXH Interest expense
IR IEEF EAAZEGA Interest expense arising from financial liabilities
BmfiE /A EF 8% H that are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss
RITHFRMEETT Deposits and balances with banks (273,123) (495,079)
BEER Deposits from customers (6,644,451) (5,944,053)
BEETEMERES Other debt securities issued (234,973) (274,946)
(7,152,547) (6,714,078)
LA EE EAREEFA Interest expense arising from financial liabilities
BmfIZfE EF 85 H that are measured at fair value
through profit or loss
EETEMERES Other debt securities issued (12,303) (35,392)
(12,303) (35,392)
AR IEEERN 2/ EE Interest expense arising from financial liabilities
851 under fair value hedge
BETEMERES Other debt securities issued (38,446) (76,424)
1BIEEE Subordinated debt (191,438) (254,873)
(229,884) (331,297)
HEBENEZH Interest expense arising from lease liabilities (63,806) -
FEXH4a%E Total interest expense (7,458,540) (7,080,767)
F B WA R Net interest income 6,242,000 6,119,968
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12 FEERASWAFEE 12 NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

2019 2018
FERERASHWA Fees and commission income
KE RS Investment services 181,366 161,457
BHLA RABE RS Securities broking and related services 111,266 144,678
R RS Insurance 200,506 176,046
[ BEREFEREE Remittance, settlement and
account management fees 130,359 138,558
W B R M ERR A FLZ Fees received from intermediate
BR% & (M5EST1) holding company (Note 51) 749,357 555,673
BHmME Trade finance 45,659 50,108
EAR Cards 149,608 144,272
=B RS Credit facilities 349,004 360,026
HAh Others 3,529 4,155
FEERASWRAET Total fees and commission income 1,920,654 1,734,973
FEERASXH Fees and commission expense
ERR Cards (51,489) (45,325)
KL ER Brokerage (10,103) (12,647)
ST ARER A B R R B Fees paid to intermediate holding
NAZRGEE(MEEST) company and fellow subsidiaries (Note 51) (14,549) (35,151)
#wHEERP Settlement accounts (5,806) (13,921)
HAh Others (40,531) (40,462)
FHEERAS I HAE Total fees and commission expense (122,478) (147,506)
FEERASBAFER Net fees and commission income 1,798,176 1,587,467
WEFEZERMASWAFERIERALIE The fees and commission income above includes income of $544,271 (2018:
BEARBEAEEEZHTABENSRE $554,406) and expenses of $112,375 (2018: $134,859) relating to financial
BERSRAEBIRAS44,27170(20184F - assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
554,406 7T ) & X H112,37578(2018 6 ¢
134,859 L) °
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13

14

R 5 W F

13 NET TRADING INCOME

2019 2018
RBFEHWE (BX) Gains/(losses) from trading activities
HNE Foreign exchange (136,981) 275,087
FIESTETA Interest rate derivatives 52,808 (42,980)
HEmEBTA Other debt instruments 145,081 157,758
HER5H Other trading 17,158 16,256
78,066 406,121
Hi iz 5 W= Other trading income
AABEEHNEREMRE Hedge ineffectiveness on fair value hedge 13,854 10,403
B Total 91,920 416,524

FEIRZUWESFEIT2IHME |BIERER
BERBEEOFMBENERZ - BUALEY
SRS E A EE I B & T AU A SNEE FE R
EEMREMEAR - A RIBREINESEE
ERBEELENFRER  A5HBXF
KA 307,01870(20184F « Wz£63,9957T) °

BEERRAAEEFER
HEBEFABSENERMT
B Wi F

“Foreign exchange” under “Net trading income” includes a net loss of
$307,018 (2018: a gain of $63,995) arising from gains and losses from spot
and forward contracts, options, and the income and costs from foreign

exchange swaps contracts which were used for economically hedging the

assets and liabilities of the Group and net translation gains and losses on

foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities.

14

NET GAINS FROM FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018
BT ERE RS TR Net gains from certificates of deposit issued = 33,821
BETEME SN FE Net gains from other securities issued 20,303 7
k] Total 20,303 33,828
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15 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2019 2018
BEREAANBEIZEAHZS) Dividend income from equity financial
FFAHME KSR assets designated at fair value through
TRIEEMNREMKA other comprehensive income
JE b Unlisted 3,008 3,925
i) Listed 155 134
3,163 4,059
BAREEFEEEES) I ABE  Dividend income from equity financial
iR S R EENREWA assets measured at fair value through
profit and loss
E il Unlisted 1,954 1,692
F Listed 1,327 152
3,281 1,844
HAh Others 68,440 58,506
wmam Total 74,884 64,409
4T 2 5 16 OPERATING EXPENSES
2019 2018
8 ITHA Staff costs
e ME M T Salaries and other benefits 1,814,254 1,678,163
BIRke Rk AESER Pension and provident fund costs 98,272 101,100
1,912,526 1,779,263
—MRITEA X General and administrative expenses
mMERS Rental expenses 142,463 412,053
E At ZE TR A Other premises and equipment 126,012 118,146
EEER Marketing expenses 203,416 217,245
FETREN & Auditors’ remuneration 5,960 7,464
HERBER Professional fees 62,133 52,383
Ehg 8 Other operating expenses 268,177 305,709
808,161 1,113,000
e Depreciation
& & E Fixed assets 294,151 314,164
ERREEE Right-of-use assets 271,156 -
565,307 314,164
b Total 3,285,994 3,206,427
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17 AHEREXRFRERE

17 NET CHARGE ON EXPECTED CREDIT

LOSSES
2019 2018
IR R (BT ARIRE ) F 5 New allowances charged, net of
allowance releases 828,939 630,915

ARTFEEZEemND Recoveries of amounts previously written off (23,573) (42,935)
FEHEABRARER Net charge on expected credit losses 805,366 587,980
BN Attributable to:
TEIRIT A RIBITHET & Balances with banks and central

7 HERTT IR banks and placements with banks 373 2,715
XFEXKESER Advances to customers and trade bills 740,819 626,311
BAREBEFTEAHEEHTA Financial assets measured at fair value

EhrEmNENEmMEE through other comprehensive income 12,733 (15,510)
HEMBR AT EMNHMERE Other assets measured at amortised cost 126 13,694
Hih&E Other assets 2,038 (22,572)
Bk A ERBEER Loan and other credit related commitments 49,277 (16,658)
EHEABRARESE Net charge on expected credit losses 805,366 587,980

18 EENERER

18 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) E=EBS (@) Directors’ emoluments
2019 2018

ik Fees 2,616 2,400
e Salaries 12,620 11,722
BIEIEAT Discretionary bonuses 4,686 4,655
HEme Other emoluments = 4
UNEERET Contributions to provident fund 1,260 1,178
R Total 21,182 19,959

(b) BEENRS  ZHIEHNMWEK (b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
Fl 5 or contracts

AT HEMEMIER DA HER
A ARMEBAR - aEREREE
DA RS AN F E AR
YR B R] SR B SR B A AR T
AITEFERIREEREANZEN
X5 BFHELK -
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No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Bank, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, joint venture or associate
was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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(a)

(b)

19 TAXATION

A MR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LA T 7L5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

MEBERAMTHUHRES (a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:
2019 2018
EHBE -BFRAEHR Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REFEETIR Provision for the year 762,273 853,229
TFEEBBE) TR (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years (17,097) 5,382
745,176 858,611
EHBiE - Current tax - Overseas
RFEFHR Provision for the year 153 711
NEZBING Withholding tax for the year 2,859 46,997
3,012 47,708
EERE Deferred tax
ErE = BAEA D Origination and reversal of temporary differences (60,668) (124,618)
687,520 781,701

I9FEMNEBF ST EHBEIZ
NG FE ) fl 5T FE ST B s A1 b 16.5%
(20185 : 16.5%) BT K& & - /BN
RSMBIVER ZEEERRER

ZEATHEE -

BEXHMEERRERAB R

(b)

The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2019 is calculated at 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
for overseas transactions are charged at the appropriate current rates
of taxation ruling in the countries in which the transactions took place.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

STEMEER ¢ at applicable tax rates:
2019 2018

BR A5 A A Profit before taxation 4,369,110 4,356,253
LIRENEERERES RN Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated

H ARG E R B AR F at the rates applicable to profits in the

K Z&ENIE countries concerned 720,904 718,782
BAB AU A Income not subject to taxation (36,477) (12,012)
NGRS p-as] Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 19,398 21,946
FFEEEECAR), TR (Over)/under-provision in prior years (17,097) 5,382
YEINEIIEE Foreign withholding tax 2,859 46,997
RIERME R = EZNETH Tax effect of temporary differences not

A RELIATFEE®E recognised and reversal of previously

REELERIEE E recognised deferred tax assets (2,220) 606
HAth Other 153 -
EERIAEH Actual tax expense 687,520 781,701
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20 7 EPER
(a) W|EDE
NEBMIEERBE TP ER TR
VWD EBRER  AEEZ7
THERES S FRERERD
Fid B 2= B AT A M) 47 BB 1R B #E A 0
WMEBERRTR -8 EFRR2019
FHPMERITBEBRRESEED
EloBMEN - ERITHEEY
R N¥R LAEREATE Y
B RRESEBRAFAHEMo
2019F - BTE—FHANLER
REMHE  AERTBEAQF
LHEEELE RRESTEIBA
MEEBREE M - B LS8R
INEER - ARER M -

(i) 28 BERERRTES
ANBEBRRERALE  ©&
B kh/ heEREEZHS
BEMMRTE - ZFEMMR
BEIEEHRBERENR  RE
X RHERBER BEZ®
B MNEBEBENURERERR
% o

(i) ZBERITHEE
ARMEBREREAZTFR
HEZOERBEMMIRTS ©
FEMNREIZE/REER
BEX BAEX - EAF
B OAERE  BXEIR
BoOMNEEE - BHM - KRR
BEHFHRIER

(iii) FIERBEREEY

AN BRERTOMERD
EERRESLER  BIERT
REEEMER S MRREER
TR [ TeE8EHL
B TETARINEERS -
NEREPETITETARS
WSMNER B o RIEF - Ay EbE
BEAKENBERPE DN
N BRBITERES

AT ILHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(a)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Reportable segments

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by products services and customer types. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following four reportable
segments, under which there was a change in the grouping of
commercial banking and the management in shareholders’ funds
in 2019. Engaged mainly in businesses with small and medium
sized enterprises, commercial banking was previously grouped with
consumer banking while the management of shareholders fund
was grouped with others. In 2019, to further align with the internal
management structure and reporting information, commercial
banking was grouped with corporate and institutional banking while
the management of shareholders’ funds was grouped with treasury
& management pool. Comparatives amounts have been restated to
ensure consistent basis with the revised segment information.

(i)  Corporate, institutional and commercial banking
This segment mainly represents the provision of a range
of financial products and services to corporations, financial
institutions and small and medium sized enterprises. The
products and services mainly include commercial loans,
syndicated loans, commercial mortgages, trade financing,
foreign exchange and deposit-taking activities.

(i)  Consumer banking
This segment mainly represents the provision of a range of
financial products and services to individual customers. The
products and services mainly comprise residential mortgages,
personal loans, credit cards, auto-financing, deposit-taking
activities, foreign exchange, wealth management, insurance
and securities agency services.

(iii)  Treasury & management pool

This segment covers the Bank's treasury operations and
management of shareholders’ funds. The Treasury Division
enters into inter-bank money market transactions and invests
in debt instruments. It also trades in debt instruments,
derivatives and foreign currency for its own account and carries
out customer driven derivatives such as foreign currency
transactions. Its function also includes the management of
the Group's overall liquidity position, including the issuance of
certificates of deposit.



A MR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LA T 7L5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

20 D EEE =)

(a)

EER(E)
(iv) Eftg
HEMEBETERBITURE -
FRRREAM -

DEHEENBEIZREFIERITR
B ROTREFER  KREEH 7
EEBMTE FREESETHERER
HpERES

FeE S 0 BR R as B ST TORE
Rk DB FTEERF B R ERAM
MAAR % E DR FREEME B
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&)
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REENEZWA R AT EFRA
MFEBLRAEASFRA  BETRE
BEGEZEMNEFRAFNFESE R
MEFRAREBER - AAEE
BOEUNEFRAMFEE L BS
SFUAFIR o

20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (conminuen

(a)

Reportable segments (continued)

(iv) Others
This segment mainly represents investments in premises,
subsidiaries and others.

Segment assets and liabilities are mainly composed of placement
with banks, advances to banks and customers, investment securities,
derivatives financial instruments, deposits and certificates of deposit
and other debt securities issued.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to interest and fee and commission income generated by
these segments and the expenses incurred by these segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to these segments.

The primary revenue stream of the Group is derived from net
interest income and net fees and commission income. The executive
management relies to a large extent on net interest income and
net fees and commission income in managing its business. Hence,
net interest income and net fees and commission income for all
reportable segments are presented under segmental information.
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A= -
20 7 EBER @) 20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (conmmuen)
(@) HEDI(E) (a) Reportable segments (continued)
2019
NIRRT
S EE ZE  HEEER
RTEE  ROEE  REEM Htt  2EEE am
Corporate,
institutional
and Treasury & Inter-
commercial ~ Consumer management segment
banking banking pool Others  elimination Total
HEMAFE Net interest income 2294535 1975877 1,973,356 (1,768) - 6,242,000
FEENRASUNFE Net fees and commission income 470,129 530,988 1,257 795,802 - 1,798,176
BEWABE Total operating income
—4NE ~External 6297162 (2,583420) 4,116,200 542,738 - 8372680
-5 ~Inter-segment (3,286,041) 5176950  (2,212,509) 321,600 - -
e AEE Total operating income 3,011,121 2593530 1,903,691 864,338 - 8372680
e Depreciation (91,924)  (322,650) (133220  (137,411) - (565,307)
BEERBE Total operating expenses (693,463) (1,696,215  (137,404)  (758,912) - (3,285,994)
RBRAEBRNEERETF]  Operating profit before
impairment losses 2,317,658 897,315 1,766,287 105,426 - 5086686
BEERBAGHR) /EE  (Charge onrelease of
expected credit losses (661,270) (138,717) (5,572) 193 - (805,366)
A%/ BENRMHERR  Impaiment reversal on
joint venture/associate = = = 47,000 = 47,000
FEE(EH) /WA Non-operating (losses)/income (46) (7) - 40,843 = 40,790
BR % B A Profit before taxation 1,656,342 758591 1,760,715 193,462 - 4369110
R2019%128318 As at December 31,2019
BELE Total assets 271,103,376 43,803,012 164,075398 9,972,463 (605,595) 488,348,654
BELEE Total liabilities 161,317,932 239,940,444 11,561,213 5,870,016 (605,595) 418,084,010
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A=W -
20 7 EPER @) 20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (conmmuen)
(a) Eo(E) (@) Reportable segments (continued)
2018
NIRRT
PSESES TE  BAXH

RITEE  BOEE REED Htt  HERERE ik

Corporate,

institutional

and Treasury & Inter-

commercial Consumer management segmem

banking banking pool Others  elimination Total
FEMAFE Net interest income 2349217 2,295,770 1,466,644 8337 - 6,119,968
FEBNESUAFE Net fees and commission income 475,754 542104 (4782) 574391 - 1587467
gl ABE Total operating income
=5 ~External 6,056,581 (1568055 3372414 361,297 - 8222237
-HE ~Inter-segment (2993183) 4534381  (1,816231) 275,033 - -
N Total operating income 3,063,398 2,966,326 1,556,183 636,330 - 8,222,237
ik Depreciation (67,79) (162,792) (10876) (72,700) - (314,164)
LEBRAT Total operating expenses (810246)  (1,645604) (159951) (590,626) - (3206427)

RBRAHEERRNEEET Operating profit before

impairment losses 2,253,152 1,320,722 1,396,232 45,704 - 5015810
EHERBAEGHR) /B  (Charge on)/release of

expected credit losses (331,960) (265971) 9964 (13) - (587,980)
B8/ BENRNAERE  Impairment charges on

joint venture/associate - - - (47,000) - (47,000)
E3 S Non-operating losses (1,419) (135) - (23,023) - (24577)
BB A& A Profit before taxation 1919773 1054616 1406196 (24332) - 4356293
20185124318 As at December 31,2018
BEBE Total assets 223,537,465 43724169 206,646,632 7,609,711 (548074) 480,969,903
BERE Total liabilities 131,637,169 226999463 56,048,668 4354673 (548074) 4184913899
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20 D EEE#) 20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (conmvuen)

(b) HEEHR (b)
TRINRASENLE WAL -
BRRAEN BEERLE BER
B HEHRBEE HBFRER
EESHAERNER - EPAER
AR RS P 3 BKIE - 2 |
BEXBEREMEHES - BE
FRBDEERTETEE EAKE
BE ReECLXMEsRNEE
NAEMELD - ERFEFRDEE
AT BIEEERREBRAAN
EwdEln EBREVEE N
BRmEERNEELENRE
& AR B RIS El s -

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of the Group's total operating income, profit before taxation,
total assets, total liabilities, specified non-current assets, contingent
liabilities and commitments. The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were provided. Segment
assets or liabilities are based on the geographical location of the asset
or liabilities. Specified non-current assets comprise fixed assets, right-
of-use assets, interest in a joint venture and interest in an associate
and the geographical location is based on the physical location of
the asset for fixed assets, and the location of the operation to which
they are allocated for intangible assets, interest in a joint venture and
interest in an associate.

g #E L
WABE BREEN EELE ASELE FRDEE SERAR
Specified
Total Profit non-  Contingent
operating before Total current liabilities and
income taxation Total assets liabilities assets commitments
R2019F 128318 As at December 31,2019
B8 () Hong Kong (place of domicile) 8,372,680 4,369,110 488,348,654 418,084,010 6,731,626 92,352,143
ge BE B2l
WABE BEANET  AELE BEAE FRDEE BERIEE
Specified
Total Profit non-  Contingent
operating before Total current  liabilities and
income taxation  Total assets liabilities assets commitments
R 2018F 12 A318 As at December 31,2018
B8 (i) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 8222237 4356253 480969903 418491899 5225897 88609788
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21 BEMEHRTRPHREEIT 21 CASHAND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND

W& 17 CENTRAL BANKS
2019 2018
EFRE Cash in hand 438,299 256,638
ERITHEETF Balances with banks 1,448,827 2,539,639
TR RIBITRA Balances with central banks 2,848,692 6,674,775
R—EARE 'JHHE!’JT?E&?ETT,A Placements with banks maturing
within one month 34,463,063 68,769,107
R FERITRAPRIRITH Gross cash and balances with banks
EIrERR and central banks 39,198,881 78,240,159
o TERME BIBREEMR Less: Expected credit loss allowances
F—REE : +ZEAES Stage 1: 12-month ECL
EREX (586) (1,462)
REMERTRPREBTH Net cash and balances with banks
HERHE and central banks 39,198,295 78,238,697
MR2019F 12 A31H - B MERIT R As at December 31, 2019, the gross carrying amount, including accrued
RIITHEF(BIEERFE)MIRE BT interest, of cash and balances with banks and central banks amounted at
£539,259,527 70 (2018 4F : 78,323,568 L) © $39,259,527 (2018: $78,323,568).
4= Eh
22 FHIRITRIEA 22 PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS
2019 2018
R—E+=EAREIH Maturing between one and twelve months 16,359,690 31,758,244
RiEBd+—EA 2 H Maturing more than twelve months 21,714,503 -
TFHERTTR BB Gross placements with banks 38,074,193 31,758,244
A TEEMERBREE Less: Expected credit loss allowances
F—RE : +ZEATEE Stage 1: 12-month ECL
(EIEEEES (5,652) (4,403)
EHRITRIEFHR Net placements with banks 38,068,541 31,753,841
F2019F 128318 FRRITHIEBEER As at December 31, 2019, the gross carrying amount, including accrued
FERES AR ) B AR E 42 58 /538,333,862 7T interest, of placements with banks amounted at $38,333,862 (2018:
(2018 4F : 31,834,227 7T) ° $31,834,227).
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/= % &
23 RITER 23 ADVANCES TO BANKS
2019 2018
R—1{E A A H Maturing within one month 1,918,005 -
IRITEREE Gross advances to banks 1,918,005 -
A TEEMEREREE Less: Expected credit loss allowances
F—E : +ZEATES Stage 1: 12-month ECL
ERBX - _
RITERFHE Net advances to banks 1,918,005 -
R2019F 12 318 » IRITER(BIFEST As at December 31, 2019, the gross carrying amount, including accrued
F B BRE42%8 41,919,518 7L (2018 4F - interest, of advances to banks amounted at $1,919,518 (2018: Nil).
") o

24 HEHETIEENERAE 24 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE

E AGREEMENTS
BEHETHENeREERBREET Financial assets held under resale agreements by underlying assets are
REATR - shown as follows:
2019 2018
BRI RITEITHEEE S Debt securities issued by policy banks 782,615 1,514,983
B TEEMERERERE Less: Expected credit loss allowances
E—MEE : +ZEAAEH Stage 1: 12-month ECL
EREX - _
BENRTHENEREETE Net financial assets held under
resale agreements 782,615 1,514,983
MR2019F 12A31H - BEERETHAEN As at December 31, 2019, the gross carrying amount, including accrued
CRMEEEEREAMNE)NEDAER interest, of financial assets held under resale agreements amounted at

783,381 70(20184F : 1,519,528 7T) © $783,381(2018:$1,519,528).
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25 MAAREBETEBEHEH®EE 25 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR

- = =i S
ArABENERERE VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
FERITERMBIBHITNESKRE Fund investments issued by non-bank
financial institutions 122,761 117,997
FRBITEITHR 5B 5 Trading securities issued by central banks 495,550 -
EFITHEHMEBES Other debt securities issued by corporates 156,879 158,357
RHER Trading loans 10,051,163 3,539,873
10,826,353 3,816,227
R B AT Analysed by place of listing:
EHBEIN E T ESES Listed outside Hong Kong
HeiwE Fund investments 28,385 27,611
L™ Unlisted
EeiE Fund investments 94,376 90,386
R EESH Trading securities 495,550 -
HiEHES Other debt securities 156,879 158,357
RGER Trading loans 10,051,163 3,539,873
10,797,968 3,788,616
10,826,353 3,816,227
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26 EFEFRNREZEE 26 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND TRADE

BILLS
2019 2018
EFEX Advances to customers
NRARFERREEE Gross advances to corporate customers 246,884,642 213,679,459
BEARFPERBE Gross advances to personal customers 45,413,516 42,651,124
EEEREE Gross advances to customers 292,298,158 256,330,583
A TEEMEREREE Less: Expected credit loss allowances
FE : +ZEATEE Stage 1: 12-month ECL
ERBX (1,296,065) (1,089,388)
FMER  GEAERER Stage 2: Lifetime ECL but not
BREREEERME credit-impaired (902,050) (780,326)
FoMEER  GEBESER Stage 3: Lifetime ECL and
BREREBEERRE credit-impaired (501,951) (197,179)
BEPERFERE Net advances to customers 289,598,092 254,263,690
BEZERE Trade bills
BHRBEH Gross trade bills 15,824 210,808
A TEEMERBXREE Less: Expected credit loss allowances
F—ME  +ZEATEE Stage 1: 12-month ECL
EREX - (36)
FoMEER  GEMESER Stage 3: Lifetime ECL and
BARBBEERRBE credit-impaired = (3,052)
BB FE Net trade bills 15,824 207,720
EFERRESERFH Net advances to customers and trade bills 289,613,916 254,471,410

R2019F12A318 BRPE R K E
SEBEREAANB)NEEATE A
292,987,066 7L (2018 4F : 257,215,514 7C) °

(2018:$257,215,514).
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As at December 31, 2019, the gross carrying amount, including accrued
interest, of advances to customers and trade bills amounted at $292,987,066
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26 EFEFRREZSEE ») 26 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND TRADE
BILLS «convmvuep)

(a) FFERKRESGEBENREAR (@) Movement in gross carrying amount and expected credit
MEMEREBXEENES loss allowances on advances to customers and trade bills
TRIRTEZE219F12H31H Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and expected
EFERFPERREZEREMER credit loss allowances on advances to customers and trade bills for the
wEMERERERAEGEDNY year ended December 31, 2019. Explanation of the terms: 12-month
Bk o BisEs@) B+ =M ATELEHA ECL, lifetime ECL and credit-impaired are included in Note 8(a)(x).
B FEHEHAERABAREE
HEERREEL R -

EARE BREERAA
Non-credit impaired Credit impaired
E-K& E-RB& FRE B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B BHEER B B
BEAE BiER BEAE BARR BESE BARE REEE BREE
Gross Gross Gross Gross
carrying ECL  carrying ECL  carrying ECL  carrying ECL

amount  allowance amount allowance amount  allowance amount allowance

M2019F1 A1BMER  Balnceasat January 1,2019 240,770,241 1,089,424 14,979,375 780,326 791,775 200,231 256,541,391 2,069,981
aurE-Ra: Transfer to stage 1:
1ERBHERR 12-month ECL 4398176 70333 (4398176)  (70333) - - - -
BUEERE: Transfer to stage 2
FENESEREX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
EAEEERRE (144928)  (1461) 503232 1461 (358304) - - =
BUEE-RE: Transfer to stage 3
FENESEREX lifetime ECL credit-impaired
REEEERAE (96,290)  (1,610) (736) - 97,0 1,610 - -
BREESHEFE  Netremeasurement of loss allowances = 65,337 - (7,472) = (249) = 57,616
FERBEAMESBEE"  Newfinancial assets originated
or purchased* 168,708,413 482,412 1,566,464 28,613 612,722 265,269 170,887,599 776,294
BRIEMAHERMEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (129,476,615)  (264,862) (5,338,727 (98,281)  (165,359) (14,572)(134,980,701)  (377,715)
e Write-offs - - - - (134307)  (134307)  (134307)  (134307)
KEEHENLE Recoveries of amounts previously
written-offs - - - - - 23,573 - 23,573
BR2EME L Changes in risk parameters - (140,788 - 276185 - 160,408 - 295805
SMERIE & Foreign exchange and other movements - (2,720) - (8,449) - (12) - (11,181)

#2019 %12 A 31 B#48 Balance as at December 31,2019 284,158,997 1296065 7,311,432 902050 843553 501951 292,313,982 2,700,066

* BN FERFERREZEER * During the period, all advances to customers and trade bills were initially
MHERE B - WERERE classified in Stage 1 and were not considered as credit-impaired at the
ABTRAEREEERRE - H time of origination or purchase. Some were subsequently transferred
FHORERGREEANGEER into Stage 2 or Stage 3 based on the result of credit assessments.

BAF_BREFE=IER -

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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26 EFEFRRESZSEE ») 26 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND TRADE
BILLS conmivuep)

() BEFERKREZEENRAEAE (@) Movement in gross carrying amount and expected credit
MEHERBXEENES loss allowances on advances to customers and trade bills
(continued)
TRIRTEHZE2018F 128315 1E Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and expected
FEREFPERRESEBRNREARE credit loss allowances on advances to customers and trade bills for the
MIBEE B R EBE BRI LR o I year ended December 31, 2018. Explanation of the terms: 12-month
FE8a)(x) ¥+ (B ATEE{E AE X ECL, lifetime ECL and credit-impaired are included in Note 8(a)(x).

FEABEMERBRAIEBHEERR
EfEL R -

FEAAE BREERRE
Non-credit impaired Credit impaired
F-RE FRE FoRE |
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BEER EHER BEER EHER
RREE BRERE BEAE BREE FEEE BXER REEE  BRER
Gross Gross Gross Gross
carrying ECL carrying L carrying ECL carying L
amount  allowance amount  allowance amount  allowance amount  allowance
201851 A1BEER  Balance asat January 1,2018 275,535,158 803570 7447652 339,949 832,209 379784 283815019 1523303
EREE-RE - Transfer to stage 1:
REAEHERER 12-month ECL 12390 1548 (12390 (1549) - - - -
EREE-RE Transfer to stage 2
FERESEREX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BRBEERRE (8103831)  (21164) 8103831 21,164 - - - -
EREE=RE Transfer to stage 3:
FERESEREX lifetime ECL credit-impaired
REEEEREE (346815 (114615 (186233) 0779 5308 143% - -
BREBEFEFE  Netremeasurement of loss allowances - 70,59 - (23951) - 6282 - 52027
REXEAMSBEE*  Newfinancial assets originated
or purchased* 100,654,309 358415 4187237 63017 9417 16941 104933963 438373
BRIEBRNEREE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (126,980,970) (267457)  (4560,722) (95,356) (543331) (231,518) (132,085,023) (594331)
ik Write-offs - - - - (12568 (12258) (122568 (122568)
WEEMENEE Recoveries of amounts previously
written-offs - - - - - 42935 - 42935
BR2EMHEL Changesin risk parameters - 262,380 - 489,148 - (15,984) - 735544
SNERE M2 Foreign exchange and other movements - (3849) - 2318) - (35) - (6202)
120185 12 A 31 B4 Balance as at December 31,2018 240,770,241 1089424 14979375 780,326 791,775 200231 256,541,391 2,069,981
* BN TAERFERRESEES * During the period, all advances to customers and trade bills were initially
MDEARE—FE  WERESNE classified in Stage 1 and were not considered as credit-impaired at the
ARTHRREEEFERRE - & time of origination or purchase. Some were subsequently transferred
FHAREEGREBEERATEER into Stage 2 or Stage 3 based on the result of credit assessments.

BAF_BEREIF =R -
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IREZEE»

26 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND TRADE
BILLS conminuep)

(a) BEFERREZEBENREARE (@) Movement in gross carrying amount and expected credit
MEMEREXREENEE(Z) loss allowances on advances to customers and trade bills
(continued)

R2019F12831H TEMAQF As at December 31, 2019, the retail and wholesale portfolios
HEMERERBERXEES IR represented $552,669 and $2,147,397 or 20% and 80% (2018: $513,213
552,669 70 N 2,147397 T IE B F & and $1,556,768 or 25% and 75%), respectively, of the total expected
RRESERBENERERBRER credit loss allowances on advances to customers and trade bills as
4858 /9 20% % 80% (2018 4F : 513,213 at December 31, 2019. The measurement of expected credit loss
T 1,556,768 7T 3 25% f 75%) © E allowances for retail and wholesale portfolios is under the same
EMABIEATERERBRERER modelling framework by applying different risk parameters.
EERNENERTERATERMOR
M BBUEITEE o
FAN TEHANEHTIERZRE During the year the movement of the retail portfolio is mainly driven
KBERBHRBHER - 2748 by the consideration of countercyclical measures in the economic
ENEHERERKCEREPHNR environment. The movement of the wholesale portfolio is driven by
AEfER  TRENEEARFR the change in risk parameters from considering the countercyclical
BIFERNEENRE RS2 E ST measures in the economic environment, the newly originated assets
EREHA - and the assets that have been derecognised during the year.
(b) EBEEFERREZEZEMNTE (b) Impaired advances to customers and trade bills and ECL
HERBXEE allowances
(i) EREEFEMAAHEH (i)  Impaired advances to customers and ECL allowances
BXEFD AT - are analysed as follows:
2019 2018
HEFER HEPER
BETSL BEADL
% of 9% of
gross gross
advances advances
BERERTFERE Gross impaired advances 843,553 0.29 788,330 0.31
?Eﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ?é!?iﬁgﬁ ECL allowances (501,951) (196,841)
341,602 591,489
ERIFHMEEBMERS  Grossindividually assessed
BEuEss impaired advances 738,958 0.25 184,591 0.07
TEHIE B KR LR ECL allowances (434,283) (166,634)
304,675 17,957
REREZFER Net realisable value of collateral
Fris A mey held against the
AR HE impaired advances 324,363 549,723

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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26 EFEFRRESZSEE ») 26 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND TRADE

BILLS «conminuep)

(b) BREEFEFERRESEENE (b) Impaired advances to customers and trade bills and ECL
HERBXEREE) allowances (continued)
(i) EREESEZEAEHEH (i) Impaired trade bills and ECL allowances are analysed
BAEGDHUT - as follows:
2019 2018
HESEE EE 52K
HWEEHDL BMEBED
% of 9% of
gross gross
advances advances
EREESEEMETE  Gross impaired trade bills - = 3,052 145
FEHERIBREE ECL allowances = (3,052)
ERFHEERMEEZ S  Gross individually assessed
b k) impaired trade bills = = 3,052 145
T BA{E PR R A ECL allowances = (3,052)
MEREBEESEE Net realisable value of collateral
FRFF IR an Y held against the
A &35 % E impaired trade bills = .
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(c)

EFENEREREREHERAR
REMERBNEBSREATER
MREHREFE - BRPIEHR—
MR/A—EZTHF - RFEREBED
RIEHEMRAELAERENT

A MR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LA T 7L5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

26 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND TRADE

BILLS «conminuep)
BEEENEBARNKRETE (0

contracts

Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase

Advances to customers include net investments in equipment leased
to customers under finance leases and hire purchase contracts having
the characteristics of finance leases. The contracts usually run for an
initial period of 1 to 24 years. The total minimum lease payments

receivable and their present value at the year-end are as follows:

2019 2018
SEHRENRBEE Total minimum lease payments 4,975,481 6,052,748
B E R E R AR REUR SR A Unearned future finance income
on finance leases (188,164) (831,522)
HEEENKREE Present value of the minimum lease payments 4,787,317 5,221,226
TEEAE B R Expected credit loss allowances
F—RRE : +ZEATEE Stage 1: 12-month ECL
ERBX (28,445) (12,668)
FRRER - FEATEHER Stage 2: Lifetime ECL but not
BRERELEEFERARE credit-impaired (2,201) (729)
FoIRER - FEAEHER Stage 3: Lifetime ECL and
BARBEEERAE credit-impaired (1,927) (75)
TEHR =S IR Expected credit loss allowances (32,573) (13,472)
wEFE Net investments 4,754,744 5,207,754

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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26 EFEFRRESZSEE ») 26 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND TRADE
BILLS conmivuep)

() MEAENABESENRERSE () Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase
(%) contracts (continued)
SRR &R R H IR B A 14 #2251 AT The residual maturity analysis of the minimum lease payments and
RaHaAT : present value of the minimum lease payments are analysed as follows:
2019 2018
BEEENREHE Total minimum lease payments
TEM & Not later than one year 208,059 1,388,142
BN FRTERSF Later than one year and not
later than five years 2,578,579 2,404,897
5L E Later than five years 2,188,843 2,259,709
4,975,481 6,052,748
2019 2018
BEHEEANRRE Present value of the minimum
lease payments
TEMIF Not later than one year 205,650 1,290,665
BN 1 FRTERSF Later than one year and not
later than five years 2,394,550 2,147,286
5L E Later than five years 2,187,117 1,783,275
4,787,317 5,221,226
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27 MRAABEEHRE®ESE 27 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED

> =T
AT AR EEBEN SR AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
gE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2019 2018
BAAEBHEGTEARZEFAEM  Financial assets measured at fair value
2ERZHLHBEE through other comprehensive income
BERRE Debt investments
RRERTT, AT TR Treasury bills/bonds issued by central
E% /B banks/governments 38,593,353 23,999,212
RITEITFRE Certificates of deposit issued by banks 3,149,409 3,148,734
AT # B B 1T A E RS 55 55 Other debt securities issued by
RAT Banks 17,072,320 34,767,953
2 Corporates 16,745,548 24,780,791
75,560,630 86,696,690
EEBBEAABEFEHAZ B A Financial assets designated at fair value
B2 EHEH2EHEE through other comprehensive income
ERRE Equity investments
EEITHRE Equity shares issued by corporates 155,090 47,869
75,715,720 86,744,559
BB Analysed by place of listing:
EEBLET Listed in Hong Kong
BBE Debt investments 36,046,345 46,918,046
EEBEIN T Listed outside Hong Kong
BERKRE Debt investments 13,300,538 15,320,098
= E Equity investments 40,412 30,627
13,340,950 15,350,725
JEET Unlisted
BRERE Debt investments 26,213,747 24,458,546
ERIRE Equity investments 114,678 17,242
26,328,425 24,475,788
75,715,720 86,744,559
EAREENEBRET  BaiRERIER Under the Group's business strategy, the equity investments are made for
BEBE TN RGO E ML I KBS being members of the electronic payment system in Hong Kong and are
BWIEE - SR ERTE AR ANBER held for long term purpose. These investments are designated at FVOCI.
SEEHEHBEHFTAEMEEWE - R20194F Management has no intention to dispose of these investments as at
128310 EREVTESHEZARSE - December 31,2019.
R2019F R 2018FA » IBAABEER During the years of 2019 and 2018, there are no significant movements in
HEHF AEMEIEANENSMEELTE the gross balances of financial assets measured at FVOC! that resulted in
WHRBEZYMEREHRERERERD significant changes to the ECL allowances.
WEBREH -

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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27 MRAAEBEIEHRE®ESE 27 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED

SFAHMEEKREN S AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

BE ) COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (conminuep)

(a) BRAAREBEFEAEESFHFTAH (@) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
tEEmRENeREERBER on financial assets measured at fair value through other
BARERNEE comprehensive income
TRIRTHRANEEAZEEEE The following table shows the reconciliation from the opening balance
TAEMEE Y A S R E E T8 to the closing balance of the expected credit loss allowances on
ERBREERFNEFRABTENY financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
R o Mzt 8 ¥+ =& ATEHIE A income. Explanation of the terms: 12-month ECL, lifetime ECL and
BX GEPEREREAREEAE credit-impaired are included in Note 8(a)(x).

ERREELRRE -
F—PEER HF-RER SRR
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
FEAEY FEHED
FERBE%X GREX
12878 (ER¥E RE®4E
EHABR%LX EARE FARE Fok )
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit-  ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
201961 A1 HRIA R  Balance as at January 1,2019 66,700 - - 66,700
HBEE PR Transfer to stage 1:
128 AFEAERIRX 12-month ECL = - = -
HBYEE M Transfer to stage 2:
FERBEBREREX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BREAEARE = = = =
EREE R - Transfer to stage 3:
GFEATEA(EABL lifetime ECL credit-impaired
kB BEEERRBE = = = =
BREFHFEHNTEFE  Netremeasurement of loss
allowances 1,246 - - 1,246
RESIBE A EMEE  New financial assets
originated or purchased 10,536 - - 10,536
BEARIFERHNESBEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (14,319) - - (14,319)
i 8 Write-offs - - - -
U EIRE okt Recoveries of amounts
previously written-offs - - - -
E g2 EHmE Changes in risk parameters 15,646 = = 15,646
HNEE AN E h B &) Foreign exchange and
other movements (376) - - (376)
7A2019F12H31H Balance as at December 31,2019
HY A ER 79,433 - - 79,433
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27 BAREBEISTEEHEH
FFAHMEEKRENSE
BEw)

() BAAMENBAESBH AR

27 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME «conmivuep)
(a)

Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances

tEEHKENEREEERER on financial assets measured at fair value through other
BRERENEE(E) comprehensive income (continued)
FMRE FRE  F=RE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
FEATER FEATES
EREX [FREBEX
2MEATER ERELE REELE
ERBX  FERRE FARE FOES]
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit ECL credit-
ECL -impaired impaired Total
R2018F 1 A1 HAE#E Balance asat January 1,2018 82,210 - - 82,210
EREF (X Transfer to stage 1:
2 {EAEEERER 12-month ECL - - - -
EREF R Transfer to stage 2:
FEBRBEREREX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BREAEARE - - - -
BB EE =R Transfer to stage 3:
FERBEHREREX lifetime ECL credit-impaired
RE#EEERRBE - - - -
BREFHEEHNTEFE  Netremeasurement of loss
allowances (1,486) - - (1,486)
TRESBAFESHEE  Newfinancial assets
originated or purchased 9,829 - - 9,829
BRIEERNESBEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (16,582) - - (16,582)
e Write-offs - - - -
U dETRE Skt Recoveries of amounts
previously written-offs - - - -
BB 2 & E L Changes in risk parameters (6,836) - - (6,836)
SNFE N EC fh 4 & Foreign exchange and
other movements (435) - - (435)
R20185F 12 A31H Balance as at December 31,2018
HYAEER 66,700 - - 66,700

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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28 OTHER ASSETS MEASURED AT

= AMORTISED COST
2019 2018
PRIRITEITHIEE 5 Treasury bills issued by central banks 3,892,924 -
RITEITFRE Certificates of deposit issued by banks 2,327,793 4,286,457
AR BT EMMERES Other debt securities issued by
BR1T Banks 7,612,506 1,912,771
f1=E3 Corporates 4,264,473 5,891,343
18,097,696 12,090,571
B TEERE BB EE Less: Expected credit loss allowances (24,865) (24,739)
18,072,831 12,065,832
R LT AT - Analysed by place of listing:
EEBLT Listed in Hong Kong 3,483,703 2,745.816
EEBREIN T Listed outside Hong Kong 930,315 937,772
JE b Unlisted 13,683,678 8,406,983
18,097,696 12,090,571
DAEE Fair value:
=il Listed 4,440,462 3,574,792
JELE™ Unlisted 13,690,078 8,397,308
18,130,540 11,972,100
MR2019F 12318 - BEHRKAFTEH As at December 31, 2019, the gross carrying amount, including accrued
EMmEEEREEAMNBNRDARER interest, of other assets measured at amortised cost amounted at $18,161,299

18,161,299 7L (2018 4F : 12,169,191 7T ) °

REBRAENEMEENAREER

RIS BEATS o KA BRI
B30 0 6 — BB = B A
e

2019412 8318 &20185 124318 -
AEEWLACARESRRE - AREY
Ehﬁé?%ﬂ% 7 RIBEREFLE
BHEMES

R2019F M 2018 F R » BB AT EN
HMWEEABEYEFRZSHMEBIBHE
BRAEFHEERES

(2018:$12,169,191).

The fair value of other assets measured at amortised cost is based on quoted
market bid prices. The fair values were measured using level 1 and level 2
hierarchy method as disclosed in Note 9(a).

There were no overdue financial investments as at December 31, 2019 and
2018 for the Group. The Group did not hold any asset-backed securities,
mortgage-backed securities and collateralised debt obligations.

During the years of 2019 and 2018, there are no significant movements in
the gross balances of other assets measured at amortised cost that resulted
in significant changes to the expected credit loss allowances.
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28 REBEBRAEFTENHME 28 OTHER ASSETS MEASURED AT
B

(a)

AMORTISED COST (conminuep)

RESHRAGFTENHMEERDS (@) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
EREBXEENEE on other assets measured at amortised cost
TRIWRTIRESRK A 2N EM The following table shows the reconciliation from the opening
EERMERBRAERRFVESF balance to the closing balance of the expected credit loss allowances
REAFERIEIER o MI3E8(@) 0 ¥+ =& on other assets measured at amortised cost. Explanation of the terms:
AEHEREBX  FEBREHRER 12-month ECL, lifetime ECL and credit-impaired are included in Note
BREEBEERREFEDRE - 8(a)().
F—RE E-HEBR  E=ER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
FERBE%X GREX
128 AEE (ER#E REBE
EAB%X EARE FSARE wzEE
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit-  ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
M2019F 1 A1 BRI  Balance as at January 1,2019 24,739 = = 24,739
EREE (R Transfer to stage 1:
121EAEEERERX 12-month ECL - - = -
EREE R - Transfer to stage 2:
FERBEBEREX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BAREEERRME - - - -
BB EE =P : Transfer to stage 3:
FERBEBREREX lifetime ECL credit-impaired
RE#FEERRBE - - - -
BREBEEHNIEFTE  Net remeasurement of loss
allowances (328) - - (328)
IRESIE AT EMEE  New financial assets
originated or purchased 7,143 - - 7,143
BRILFERNESRBEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (2,035) - - (2,035)
iz Write-offs = - - -
UEIRE €kt Recoveries of amounts
previously written-offs - - - -
B2 E A E L Changes in risk parameters (4,518) = = (4,518)
SN RN EL At B Foreign exchange and
other movements (136) - - (136)
M 2019128318 Balance as at December 31,2019
B R 24,865 - - 24,865
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28 REEKASTENHEME 28 OTHER ASSETS MEASURED AT

Ew) AMORTISED COST (conmmuep)
(a) REBHAAFENHMEERS (@) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
ERBXEENEE(E) on other assets measured at amortised cost (continued)
F—EE FEoBE E=RE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

FEREN FEPES
ERBRX  EREX
REAEY EXBEE  REBEE

FEREX  FERRE ERRE FkS
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit-  ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
M 2018%F 1 A1 HAY4 R  Balance asatJanuary 1,2018 11,045 - - 11,045
HWBEE PR : Transfer to stage 1:
128 AFEAE AR X 12-month ECL - - - _
EREE MR Transfer to stage 2:
FEMTERERIBK lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
ERBEEEFERRE - - - -
EREFE R Transfer to stage 3:
GFEATEAEREX lifetime ECL credit-impaired
REBBEEERRBE - - -
BREFEHNTEFE  Netremeasurement of loss
allowances - - -
TREKBAFTESHMEE  Newfinancial assets
originated or purchased 24,739 - - 24,739
BRILERNESMEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (11,046) - - (11,046)
8 Write-offs - - - -
I EIE#iEm £ 58 Recoveries of amounts
previously written-offs - - - -
[El g2 EmE b Changes in risk parameters - - - -
HNGE AN E fh & &) Foreign exchange and
other movements 1 - - 1
K2018%F 12 A31H Balance as at December 31,2018
B R 24,739 - - 24,739
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29 FTHES$RTHE

TETABERAREEIIERNETEA
PETHES R BREERS - A&
EEATETAERZEHNHETEP
EREBRERER - AR EFEZEINAA
TRV HERZEBEE LAFARE - U
HERAKEATAS A FRRBEN A ER
MERAKE - RI|BEH  AEETES KX
MEZRR - AEETFMNATETAER
RAEMEERBRMEA MEBIEAE -

(a) FTEIAENERSHE

29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives include forwards, swaps and option transactions undertaken by
the Group in the foreign exchange and interest rate markets. The Group uses
derivatives for trading activities and sale to customers as risk management
products. These positions are actively managed through entering into
offsetting deals with external parties to ensure the Group's net exposures
are within acceptable risk levels. No significant proprietary positions are
maintained by the Group as at the reporting date. The Group also uses these
derivatives in the management of its own asset and liability portfolios and
structural positions.

(a) Notional amounts of derivatives

2019 2018
BEQA BERA
EREER EEEY B8 FREESR BEES Fok
Used for Used for
Not for fair value Not for fair value
hedge hedge Total hedge hedge Total
EXRAH Exchange rate contracts
B Forwards 238,000,446 - 238,000,446 | 282578822 - 282578822
BAME Options purchased 671,213 - 671,213 975,701 - 975,701
B Options written 895,660 - 895,660 975,701 - 975,701
FlRE Interest rate swaps 6,711,525 17,910,516 24,622,041 4920692 33763759 38684451
B Currency swaps 4,682,914 - 4682914| 7754708 - 7754708
R in 1288 Equity swaps 26,230 = 26,230 - - -
250,987,988 17,910,516 268,898,504 | 297205624 33763759 330,969,383

AEBERNETRITETAREN KME
FEMZAN(EERGIMIETAR) - K
SEMSEZGHEENTETA -

201912 A31H  BHRAIEARE
B2 EEZHTABSHNSREBEITE
BETRNCBAERHEMNARTSNR
DIERBHWTBEETESBMIAN -

The principal derivatives instruments used by the Group are interest and
foreign exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives. The Group also participates in exchange traded derivatives.

As at December 31, 2019, the portion of exchange rate option purchased
and equity swap entered with customers, which embedded to the structured
deposits under “Financial liabilities measured at FVPL", are excluded from
derivative financial instruments.
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29 fTESRM I Aw) 29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(b) REHRHBRIMNITETANE (b) Notional amounts of derivatives by remaining maturity
ELH analysis
TRINETAEEREREBHOFT The following table provides an analysis of the notional amounts of
PREEE R IR AR DI B RE B im & derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping based on the
SHPTHETAMNBESEIN - remaining periods to settlement at the reporting date:
2019 2018
180 E 1EUE
15F0R  SFEHUR S5EH0LE % 1 FAHUA SFEUA SFEMLE Fak]
1year Over1year Over5 Tyear  Over 1 year Over5
orless  to5years years Total orless  to5years years Total
EEA#  Exchange rate contracts
& Forwards 235,779,560 2,220,886 - 238,000,446 | 282578822 - - 282578822
BAHIE  Options purchased 671,213 - - 671,213 975,701 - - 975,701
BT Options written 895,660 - - 895,660 975,701 - - 975,701
FIRIBE  Interest rate swaps 8,044,730 14,840,877 1,736,434 24,622,041 | 14009265  21,110803 3564383 38,684,451
EWISE  Currency swaps 3,500,251 1,182,663 - 4682914 | 4165315 3589393 - 7754708
BBHBE  Equity swaps 26,230 - - 26,230 - - - -
248,917,644 18,244,426 1,736,434 268,898,504 |302,704804 24,700,196 3564383 330969383
() fTEIENAARABEMEERR () Fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of
nES%E derivatives
2019 2018
AR A GERR D AR EEEE
BEEE @ESE MNELE| GEEE BEEE  EsE
Fair  Creditrisk Fair Credit risk
Fair value  weighted Fair value weighted
value assets liabilities amount | value assets liabilities amount
EEXAH Exchange rate contracts
= Forwards 1,275,424 781,645 1,121,474 1,702,391 1,756,689 1,353,456
B\ Options purchased 14,086 - 15,979 7812 - -
B g Options written - 14,820 - - 7812 3592
iESSY Interest rate swaps 48992 162,012 62,445 394072 86,832 152,239
Eitkie Currency swaps 491,844 7,156 189,661 652,195 290,909 278563
B Equity swaps 231 260 791 - - -
1,830,577 965,893 1,390,350 2,756,470 2,142,242 1,787,850
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29 PTEER I Ee

(c)

TEIANAAEBENEERR
MESEE)
R2019F 12 A31 HX2018F 12 A
JIEMEERBRINECESER(E
THFBDMETE - URFRZEFH
B BROR R BB MM - FRB 4T
ETEMEERBRMEN T 20%2
100% (2018 4 : 20% Z= 100%) °

EEEETEREHEERREE I
GFERFHEEELZENEER A
NERZEAENEEZEE  TES
BT EAEELUFEIIR - R2019F 12
A31H WEBNMEESBRITAFA
g - BUERERE BTSRRI
WARBEBEITES BT A(20184F -
') o

30 EffEst

(a)

DIREEES

REE M B R AT IGH R &
HEFNERMEEMSRBENRS
EBEZHLETEMRE -

HIEEREMTANEEBRNTE

29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(0

Fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of

derivatives (continued)

As at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the credit risk
weighted amount was calculated in accordance with the Capital
Rules and depends on the status of the counterparty and the maturity
characteristics. The risk weights used range from 20% to 100% (2018:
20% to 100%) for all derivatives.

Derivative financial instruments are presented in net when there is
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is
an intention to settle them on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. As at December 31, 2019, no derivative
financial instruments have fulfilled the above criteria, and therefore
no derivative financial instruments were offset on the consolidated
statement of financial position (2018: Nil).

30 HEDGE ACCOUNTING

(a)

Fair value hedge

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair
value of financial assets and financial liabilities arising from movements
in market interest rates.

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments are

s as follows:
2019
BRE< %
Carrying Amount
BELH EE 8E&
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments
F & 4= HA Interest rate swaps 17,910,516 29,263 145,615
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30 Efigste 30 HEDGE ACCOUNTING (conmmuep)
(a) AAREBEEERE) (@) Fair value hedge (continued)
2018
BRESRE
Carrying Amount
HEST A= afs
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
PTESMT A Derivative financial instruments
| 2 4 A Interest rate swaps 33,763,759 362,834 82,962
HWEHIEE BRSO The amounts relating to hedged items are as follows:
2019
IREEES
BENDR
EEEHHR

IRE &5 BEREH
Accumulated

amount of fair

value hedge

adjustment

included in the

Carrying amount carrying amount

BE - Assets:
BAREESEAEEEHTA Financial assets measured at FVOCI
Hiv2EWENEHEE 18,089,974 121,592
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30 Efigste 30 HEDGE ACCOUNTING conmmvuen)
(a) AAREBEEEME) (@) Fair value hedge (continued)
2018
BEMHEEES
BENAR
BEEMA
R4 %8 BEGHE

Accumulated

amount of fair

value hedge

adjustments

included in the

Carrying amount carrying amount

BE ¢ Assets:
BAnBEFEAEHEFHTA Financial assets measured at FVOCI
EfrmlanemEE 25,244,399 (307,459)
BiE: Liabilities:
BETEMERES Other debt securities issued 2,333,689 14,931
1&1EEmE Subordinated debt 5,833,798 5,794
8,167,487 20,725
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2
30 Efig s 30 HEDGE ACCOUNTING (conmuen)
(a) AAREBEEERE) (@) Fair value hedge (continued)
TRINHTEHZE219F 128318 K The below table sets out the changes in the fair value of the hedged
2018F 12 A3 B IEFEAHERE items and hedging instruments for the year ended December 31,
EMEHTENAAEBEES £ 2019 and December 31, 2018, used as the basis for recognising
RTER R Ay HLE ineffectiveness:
2019
HEHRERMERN
s (B %) EREMM
Gains/(losses) attributable Hedge
to the hedged risk ineffectiveness
EHIA WEMHER EHTA
Hedged Hedging
WEHER Hedged items Hedging instruments items  instruments
KA EBEEHFER Fair value hedge relationship
BE Assets
BANEEFERR Financial assets measured sk
g AEMER at FvoC Interest rate swaps
WaRHEBEE 430,802 (456,795) (25,993)
&f& Liabilities
BRITEMERER Other debt securities issued F SR
Interest rate swaps (14,931) 15,835 904
SERE U Subordinated debt 42 1
Interest rate swaps (5,794) 44,737 38,943
(20,725) 60,572 39,847
EMEBHELNWE,  Netgains/(losses) from
(BX)F8E hedging activities 410,077 (396,223) 13,854
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30 Efigste

(a)

30 HEDGE ACCOUNTING (conrinuen

AREEEHE) (@) Fair value hedge (continued)
2018
AEHRRMEHN
Yz, (1K) EHmRE
Gains/(losses) attributable Hedge
to the hedged risk ineffectiveness
EMTA WEMIER EHTA
Hedged Hedging
WEMIER Hedged items Hedging instruments items  instruments
RAEEEHAER Fair value hedge relationship
BiE Assets
BARBEF=EAE Financial assets measured filEsichi
St AR MEE at Fvoc Interest rate swaps
WamemEE (46,898) 61,149 14,251
BE Liabilities
BRTHMEBES Other debt securities issued B
Interest rate swaps (2,563) 4,163 1,600
&EREE Subordinated debt F =4 8
Interest rate swaps (5,448) - (5,448)
(8,011) 4,163 (3,848)
EWEHELEMKE  Netgains/(osses) from
(BR)FE hedging activities (54,909) 65312 10403

TR TFSHEREBAE DN

The table below

summarises the notional amounts of the hedging

ETARESH instruments by remaining contractual maturity:
188 1EANL: 3fEAML TH5E
FUA 3EARUA  1FEFIUR SEHIUR 5ENE Eak ]
3 months or 1year or 5 years or
Tmonth lessbutover lessbutover lessbutover
orless 1 month 3 months 1year Over 5 years Total
R2019%12 8318 Asat December 31,2019
fTHEERMTE Derivative financial instruments
TR Interest rate swaps 311,468 739,737 5654133 10,091,680 1,113,498 17,910,516
$2018%F 128318 Asat December 31,2018
THESRIA Derivative financial instruments
| 4 Interest rate swaps 888,245 1,068,682 11,454,338 19,232,890 1,119,604 33,763,759
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31 B A E] 31 SUBSIDIARIES

R2019F12A31H MEBRE ZFIBW

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at December 31, 2019 are as follows:

T
NCIECE HMREX LY FEERTROZFE BELE TEXEK
Place of
incorporation and Particulars of
Name of company place of business  issued shares held Percentage held Principal activities
HE GE3
Directly  Indirectly
217 (RIEA) BRAF] & 600,0001% & AR E(E EERRIEARS
( MBITREAL) 716,000,0007T
CCB Nominees Limited ("CCBN") Hong Kong HKD6,000,000 of 600,000 100% - Custodian and nominees
ordinary shares services
ETEFARAT BB 500,000,000 Z AR EE BHERES
( I7@Es] ) 5 #500,000,0007T
CCB Securities Limited * ("CCBS") Hong Kong HKD500,000,000 of 500,000,000 100% - Securities brokerage
ordinary shares business
BITRMNETBRAA & 100,000A8 % B B E EREREE AER
( [#7fEsE ) #510,000,0007T
CCB (Asia) Trustee Company Hong Kong HKD10,000,000 of 100,000 100% - Trustee and custodian
Limited ("CCBT") ordinary shares business
BOEMRBELBRAT B 10,000,0000% & &A% (B E RIS I ET
( F7RR] ) 7 110,000,0007T
CCB (Asia) Insurance Broker Hong Kong HKD10,000,000 of 10,000,000 100% - Insurance broker services
Limited ("CCBIB") ordinary shares
EIRBMEERERAF &k 10,0002 & @A E(E ETRERBEERER
#10,0007T
CCB Hong Kong Property Hong Kong HKD10,000 of 10,000 100% - InMember's Voluntary
Management Company Limited ordinary shares Winding Up
BIOTBEBMERRAERAR e REBREEES T REER
( [BTEsE] )
CCB Properties (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD1 of 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited ("CCBPHK")
EEARRNR (%] ) BB 100 & BB EE R 1007T WERE
Better Chief Limited ("BCL") Hong Kong HKD100 of 100 ordinary shares - 100%  Property investment
EFE (FR) BEEARAR & 10,0008 & B EE BEEEREEEY
( [ERRRBE]) H#10,0007T
Hong Kong (SAR) Hotel Hong Kong HKD10,000 of 10,000 - 100%  Hotel operation and

Limited ("HKSAR Hotel")

ordinary shares

management
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31W§ﬁ1@)

32

BOEFHAEREREIMEERR AR
THRMBEBEEETE  ZERENQ
AR REMESHESFMEALNERA
Al AUBETABEER LR - ARAE
EEESEABEEF TAMESIZD
iR WHEBREYEENENVEE
L5 BRAR AR ER AR -
i B AR AR S B B HE 100% 8 4518 1 &1
TE  ALE2020F1A2B#BEEX
HERGIMETEBR QTR GIRE o

PIEMBLAREBIEEAMHA - RTHE

HEMBER
B2 B DR

B A R A L ) £ P 5 B X
1A PR 8 4 2 ) i A PR T8

RAIDE B IR o

REELFENES

31 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

CCBS held all the structured debt instruments issued by Focus Wealth, a special
purpose company incorporated with limited liability in Cayman Islands for the
issuances of structured debt instruments. The Group is considered to have
control over this entity as the Group has the rights to variable returns from
its involvement with the structured debt instruments and has ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group ceased to have
control over Focus Wealth since January 22, 2020 as the Group has disposed of
100% of the structured debt instruments.

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion
of the voting rights in the subsidiary undertakings held directly by the Bank
does not differ from the proportion of ordinary shares held. There is no non-
controlling interest for both years for all of the subsidiaries.

32 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

2019 2018
®1HA1H As at January 1 1,955,713 2,044,996
JEAE = Share of profits 58,152 60,717
BE Dividend (100,000) (150,000)
R12H31H As at December 31 1,913,865 1,955,713
TimMEe2rtENRARIBEEBEK - The joint venture listed below has share capital consisting solely of ordinary
WRREEBERE - R20195F 12 A 31 shares, which is held indirectly by the Group. Particulars of the joint venture
A 88X ZFE0T as at December 31, 2019 are as follows:
KEEM
ARER 2 /EMnY BRORBRRAFE RRELE TEXH BELEE HERE
Place of business/ Percentage of
Place of Particulars of ownership held Nature of
Name of company incorporation issued and paid up capital by the Group Principal activities  relationship ~ Measurement method
ENEBRAF &R 10000 R E AR EEAR 100007 nERE Mzt ERE
Diamond String Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 of 10,000 ordinary shares 50% Property investment Note Equity
Mz EHEARABMNEZEBAMERE - Note: Diamond String Limited's principal activity is property investment and it is

MEMBENMELIERANTEEZR
WERAREENEHEEZRMBIEABR - F
NEBRDRRMARA  EROIZH

strategic to the Group's activities, viz, holding property for the Bank's operation.
Diamond String Limited is a private company and there is no quoted market
price available for its shares.
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(BRAFRIRERASN -

32 REaRMENERS

HE2019F12A3BILEE  EHER
PR A &) [A) 7 55 B )R 2% A% 8. 100,000 7T(2018
£ :150,0007T) ©

EELENSEEE  BRANAE
R2019%F 12 A31H X 2018F 128318 -

AEBREZERR A AR I B
HBRIE - ERAARE

o

BELEMBEREE
UNTRENEFRADUBEMBRE - K
SERAREEAR -

AT ILHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

32 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (conmivuep)

There was dividend of $100,000 paid by Diamond String Limited to the
Group during the year ended December 31, 2019 (2018: $150,000).

Contingent liabilities, guarantees and commitments in respect

of joint venture

There are no contingent liabilities, guarantees and commitments relating to
the Group's interest in Diamond String Limited as at December 31, 2019 and
December 31,2018.

Summarised financial information for a joint venture
The summarised financial information for Diamond String Limited which is
accounted for using the equity method is set out as below:

MW12A31H
As at December 31
2019 2018
B Current
HEtREEE Other current assets 259,700 268,873
REBEEHLE Total current assets 259,700 268,873
TRBaE Financial liabilities (24,352) (18,982)
EfnsaE Other current liabilities (17) (1,537)
mENEERE Total current liabilities (24,369) (20,519)
EFRE Non-current
STREE Financial assets 70,130 75,245
HEMEE Other assets 1,617,352 1,684,750
ERBEELAE Total non-current assets 1,687,482 1,759,995
TRBE Financial liabilities (1,751,841) (1,755,156)
HEmBE Other liabilities (31,078) (29,602)
kRBEBEHEE Total non-current liabilities (1,782,919) (1,784,758)
EEFE Net assets 139,894 223,591
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32 REEENES o) 32 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE conmnuen)
2HINGERUE Summarised statement of comprehensive income

BZ12A31BLEE

For the year ended December 31

2019 2018
WA Revenue 279,624 277,084
TS N 8 Depreciation and amortisation (56,176) (56,747)
FEUA Interest income 2,741 2,374
FEZ N Interest expense (48,571) (37,656)
B 150 B A Profit before taxation 143,726 150,228
Bi1E Income tax expense (27,423) (28,794)
FEm N R 2 a5 Profit for the year & total comprehensive income 116,303 121,434
WELE & EERR Dividends received from joint venture 200,000 300,000
BRERSEHR Reconciliation of summarised financial information
TERAELMZFHMBENREEREG S D Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the
¥R REEBENERER - carrying amount of its interest in a joint venture.
HHEEREZE
Summarised financial information 2019 2018
R1AVHZEEFRE Net assets as at January 1 223,591 402,157
FERF Profit for the year 116,303 121,434
BB Dividend (200,000) (300,000)
R12A31BZEEFE Net assets as at December 31 139,894 223,591
REEENER @ 50% Interest in a joint venture @ 50% 69,947 111,795
EETERBNREME Fair value adjustment of investment in property
PR 2 AR EEFAE held by the joint venture at the acquisition date 1,843,918 1,843918
MR12B31BREELERNEZRZ  Carryamount of interest in a joint venture
AREEE as at December 31 1,913,865 1,955,713
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33 REtE QAR 33 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
E2019F 128 AEBHERHE A F In December 2019, the Group disposed of all the interest in an associate. As
RFTE#EZ - R2018F 128310 A% at December 31, 2018, the Group held 25.5% ownership of QBE Hongkong
ERE -—REBENRIRREREREL & Shanghai Insurance Limited, an authorised insurance agents and brokers
AN AR TRBHR R AR A R 25.5% #) 12 in Hong Kong. In light of the transaction disclosed in Note 34, management
oo MBERMAMNRSHE  TRE assessed the fair value exceeded the carrying value. Accordingly, $47,000 of
SEEAAEERRAKREEE - WK accumulated impairment was reversed.

#5 47,000 TLHY REHRLEE D

PN — a2z
34 HEBE QAFWE 34 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF AN ASSOCIATE

HEBERNRNDTAT The disposal of an associate is analysed as follows:

2019
W zRekIREEEY Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents 99,920
HERGEETFE Share of net assets disposed (70,165)
EHEMBENRZSE R Transaction costs incurred in connection with the disposal (3,566)
HERE QTR Gain on disposal of an associate 26,189

35 LREMBMRRERATIHWET 35 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

48
1= STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) EAEHHIE: (@) Current tax payable
2019 2018
REFEBTISTHER Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the year 762,273 853,229
B EHFIER Provisional Profits Tax paid (406) (673,819)
AEFERSRERE S Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to
prior years 233,135 70,822
995,002 250,232
A3 B TE A Provision for tax in the Mainland 181,514 2,037
FET & BRBIIE Current tax payable 1,176,516 252,269
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35 #RE MR R R TRV BT

=

(b)

35 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

(4) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
EEMEESERELEHEAE (b) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
2019 2018
TEfr e MO R TR Deferred tax assets recognised in
R IR E the consolidated statement of
financial position 548,379 396,042
2019 2018
TEfRE BN R TR Deferred tax liabilities recognised in
BERIBEE the consolidated statement of
financial position 19,288 21,508

M2019% 12 A31 B X 20184% 12 A
31 AP EHRNELEHREE
ENEEHEEESENBA+T @
A o

REFCELRE PR RERHE
JERIEEEMAKE D MEFHINT

As at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, majority of the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised will be recovered after
twelve months.

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the movements during the year are as
follows:

ik RE = At
BEERE WARE EMEE  RAER  ROW Aft e

Accelerated Investment  Provision  Mainland

Impairment tax revaluation for withholding
allowances depreciation reserve  staff bonus tax Others Total
R2018F 1418 Asat January 1,2018 240,765 (27,561) 109,124 473 - (119 322682
EEARERERIA/  Cedited/(charged) to the consolidated
(%) statement of comprehensive income 118,045 371 (51,864) 3837 - 7 73,360
B018E12A31BR As at December 31,2018 &
019F1A1H January 1,2019 358,810 (24,290) 57,260 4310 - (48) 396,042
ERARERERIA/  Cedited/(charged) to
(31%) the consolidated
statement of
comprehensive income 64,870 (9,121) (85,477) 2,805 - (106) (27,029)
Efh Other - - - - 179,366 - 179366
R2019%12831H As at December 31,2019 423,680 (33,411) (28,217) 7,115 179,366 (154) 548,379
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35 #RE MR R R AT RV B
BBl

(b) BEEBBEERELENREE
(&)
REFDELEE PR RERHE
IR ENAKED MEBMT

35 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (continued)
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

iz
BENE  BEEX Hity wE
Accelerated
tax
depreciation  Tax losses Others Total
R2018%F 1 A1 H As at January 1,2018 (2,046) 13,153 (32,009) (20,902)
iR e 2EBEE Credited/(charged) to
A () the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 100 (2,543) 1,837 (606)
720188 12 31 HK&  Asat December 31,2018 &
2019F 1 A1 H January 1,2019 (1,946) 10,610 (30,172) (21,508)
frira 2 E Credited/(charged) to
A (BIF) the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (313) (634) 3,167 2,220
A2019F12H831H As at December 31,2019 (2,259) 9,976 (27,005) (19,288)
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=P
36 BlEEE 36 FIXED ASSETS
HE
BEY MERE ZRARRE R
Leasehold Furniture
Buildings improvements and equipment Total
B Cost:
R2019F 1818 As at January 1,2019 2,818,069 586,626 1,019,932 4,424,627
®E Additions - 14,240 205,404 219,644
iz Disposals - (8,611) (4,089) (12,700)
®2019%12831A8 As at December 31,2019 2,818,069 592,255 1,221,247 4,631,571
RitE Accumulated depreciation:
7201941818 As at January 1,2019 525,308 428,431 801,508 1,755,247
AEFFR Charge for the year 77,814 74,265 142,072 294,151
k! Disposals - (8,611) (3,827) (12,438)
R2019F12831H As at December 31,2019 603,122 494,085 939,753 2,036,960
BREFE Net book value:
#2019 12831A8 As at December 31,2019 2,214,947 98,170 281,494 2,594,611
HE
ME i+ BEY NERE  FARR o
Leasehold Leasehold  Furniture and
land* Buildings  improvements equipment Total
B Cost:
R2018%E1A18 Asat January 1,2018 610,110 2,806,556 566,136 877,860 4,860,062
g Additions - 11,513 32,286 147,836 191,635
A Disposals - - (11,79) (5,764) (17,560)
R2018F 124318 As at December 31,2018 610,110 2,818,069 586,626 1,019,932 5,034,737
RitHE Accumulated depreciation:
R018F1A1E Asat January 1,2018 76514 445953 354254 658,846 1,535,567
KEERHE Charge for the year 2015 79,355 84,583 14811 314,164
bkl Disposals - - (10,406) (5,549) (15,955)
R2018%F 128318 As at December 31,2018 78529 525,308 428431 801,508 1,833,776
REFE: Net book value:
R2018F 124318 As at December 31,2018 531,581 2292761 158,195 218424 3,200,961
* EEELMIHNRERETLRFE - 1 * All leasehold lands are held under finance leases. On January 1, 2019, leasehold
2019F1R1H BRAKEBTHRE land has been reclassified from fixed assets to right-of-use assets upon the
EHINE 165 BEEECENHBARE adoption of HKFRS16. For details, refer to Note 5(a).

FREAE - FHEHNIRES@) ©
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37 EFRAREEE

FAR AEENEREEENRESREM

37 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the movements

BEnT during the year are as follows:
EREEE
Right-of-use assets

HELH BEEY RE B

Leasehold
land Buildings Equipment Total
R2019F1A1H As at January 1,2019 531,581 1,858,502 41,486 2,431,569
e Additions - 96,277 1,548 97,825
AR Remeasurement = (35,088) = (35,088)
RNEEFERIR Depreciation charge for the year (2,015)  (259,806) (9,335)  (271,156)
M2019%F12A831H As at December 31,2019 529,566 1,659,885 33,699 2,223,150

38 HEAE
FR - HEAB(EEENSEITERME
EFETN)MERESEMEFIT -

38 LEASE LIABILITIES

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings) and the movements during the year are as

follows:

2019
K1HA1TH As at January 1 1,954,697
HE Additions 96,133
EHAE Remeasurement (76,943)
FESZH Interest expenses 63,806
(NS Payment (300,842)
W12A31H As at December 31 1,736,851
HEaERE Total lease liabilities
B Current 251,133
IR ED Non-current 1,485,718
1,736,851
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38 HEEE»®

(a)

(b)

(c)

MBS - EHNRFRETR

38 LEASE LIABILITIES conmvuep)

(a)

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

=
2

2019
—&R Within one year 308,131
F_FEFAF(BEEERT) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 951,916
REE Over five years 751,461
ATRRESRELE Total undiscounted cash flows 2,011,508
ERERBEIANEEEBESEN (b) The amount recognised in profit or loss in relation to
T leases are as follows:

2019
HEAENFEZ T Interest expenses on leases liabilities 63,806
TREEHERETE Variable lease payments not included in

KR ZHEN R the measurement of lease liabilities 1,405

MAEEENE Y Expenses relating to short term leases 31,159
KEBEEENHESH Expenses relating to leases of low value assets 467
-V PN (c) Aslessee

AREATANEAL EEEHFT
RAEERS - B ERE BN
F-E+=F-

AEENELIHEANBEER
HEgERE - CHEELRTEE A
B ITFELEERBERERE
BrYEL 7 BB - ARA(EEY
R EERIDFE 165 I A E E= 2019
FNAJNHLEFERN EBEZE
TEFHEERAEANHNENT
REEEERE At AEETTRE
AHEHARRBSFRED RBRAER
BEEMNEFEL -

REBTRARIEERAR T —EHA
FUANFEFEEEREEERE
HE - AKEREEHAERANEH
HEIR[MKEEEERE N RHE

7
A ©

The Group has entered into future lease arrangements with landlords
for various buildings, and the terms of the leases range from 1 to 13
years.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension options.
Management makes an overall assessment in determining whether
these extension options are reasonably certain to be exercised.
Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 and during the year ended December
31,2019, management has considered to exercise certain extension
options available in the lease contracts which have commenced, and
therefore, all future cash outflows to which the Group is potentially
exposed have already been reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities.

The Group also has certain leases of storage room with lease terms of
12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The
Group applies the “short-term lease” and “lease of low-value assets”
recognition exemptions for these leases.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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= -
38 HERE® 38 LEASE LIABILITIES (covrmueD)
() 1ERFEMEAE) () Aslessee (continued)
R2019F 12 A31H » REEE &FE As at December 31, 2019, the Group had total future lease payments
B ARFIROHASERRENNEE for lease committed but not yet commenced falling due as follows:
NFEsEET
2019
—F R Within one year 1,896
E_FEELF(BEEEMF) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 1,556
AFENE Over five years =
3,452
R2018F 128318 + NEBMH AR As at December 31, 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease
MRS EHEERRENNREEEN rental payables under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
TREBFEIAT - follows:
2018
—&R Within one year 323,797
E_ERENF(RIEEEMFE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 1,010,720
AENE Over five years 997,087
2,331,604
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39 OTHER ASSETS

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LA T 7L5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

2019 2018
FEUS FEET I BB RE Gross accrued interest receivables * 1,470,060 1,771,735
o TRHAERIEREE Less: Expected credit loss allowances
FE—EE : +ZEATEE Stage 1: 12-month ECL
fEAEX (4,348) (4,783)
ZRRER - FEAEAER Stage 2: Lifetime ECL but not
BRERELERAE credit impaired (3,370) (1,483)
FoMRER  FEAEHER Stage 3: Lifetime ECL and
BARBBEERBE credit impaired (224) (51)
FEW FESTF) BOFRE Net accrued interest receivables 1,462,118 1,765,418
EEERP Settlement accounts 1,797,787 290,690
EHEFPBE Customer liability under acceptances 345,238 566,454
BEBEHRR S A ERKFE Debt securities trade date receivables = 166,513
JFEUBR X Accounts receivables 560,562 668,223
KEEBE Repossessed assets 7,711 489
o TEHAE RIBKREE Less: Expected credit loss allowances
FEE : +ZEATEE Stage 1: 12-month ECL
ERBEEL (16) -
ZFRER - GEATESER Stage 2: Lifetime ECL but not
BRERELEERRE credit impaired (92) -
FEoMRER  GEMESRER Stage 3: Lifetime ECL and
BARBEEFEARE credit impaired (305) -
RET® Refundable deposits 621,815 319,085
B &R Prepaid expenses 69,055 112,915
HAh Others 177,923 96,158
5,041,796 3,985,945
* 201912 A31 8 IREBRKAFTED * As at December 31, 2019, the net interest receivables for all financial assets
& BB B IR B 0% 58 563,603 70(2018 measured at amortised cost amounted at $63,603 (2018: $78,620).
F 1 786207T) °

=l

R2019F R 2018FA + HibEER LRI
BREFEHIE

5 8 B T8 BT S
FAME -

HpEENANEEREREEEANBUE

expected credit loss allowances.

The fair value of other assets approximately equals to their carrying amounts.

During the years of 2019 and 2018, there are no significant movements in
the gross balances of other assets that resulted in significant changes to the
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390 HibEE ») 39 OTHER ASSETS covmmuen)

(a HttEENTAHEHBLXEEN (a)
2E on other assets
TRIRTHMEENTBREHEX
EHBRFYIEFRBEALEER - 5T
8B+ —EABHEHAEX 7
BB ERBANMEREERARE

Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances

The following table shows the reconciliation from the opening
balance to the closing balance of the expected credit loss allowances
on other assets. Explanation of the terms: 12-month ECL, lifetime ECL
and credit-impaired are included in Note 8(a)(x).

e AR -
F—RR F-RR FZHER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
FESAEY FESED
ERB%X FEREBEX
1218 A a4 BRBEE re#LE
EABK ERRE ERREE B
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit-  ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
M 2019%F 1 A1 HRIA#E:  Balance as at January 1,2019 4,783 1,483 51 6,317
HBEE PR : Transfer to stage 1:
128 AFEAE AR X 12-month ECL 269 (269) - -
EREE R Transfer to stage 2:
FEMTERERIEX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BEREEEFERRE (2) 2 = =
EREFE PR Transfer to stage 3:
FREBRBEREREX lifetime ECL credit-impaired
REBEEERRE (12) - 12 -
BREFEHNTEFE  Netremeasurement of loss
allowances (661) 1,756 (18) 1,077
REKBAFTESHEE  Newfinancial assets
originated or purchased 1,594 121 24 1,739
BRILERNESMEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (1,146) (151) 293 (1,004)
8 Write-offs = = = -
I EIE#iEe 58 Recoveries of amounts
previously written-offs = = = -
Bk 28 =1L Changes in risk parameters (413) 524 167 278
HNEE AN E fh B &) Foreign exchange and
other movements (48) (4) = (52)
7A2019F12H831H Balance as at December 31,2019
Wi BR 4,364 3,462 529 8,355
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390 HibEE »)

HithEEMARERBRERN (@) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances

(a)

BE(E)

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LA T 7L5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

39 OTHER ASSETS (connvuen)

on other assets (continued)

FMEER BBEER  E=BEER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

FERTRE 1FERTRE

ERBX  EREX

2MEATES  ER#EE REBAE

ERBX  FERRE (FARE “aE
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
R2018F 1 A1 HAE#E Balance asat January 1,2018 1,287 68 27,534 28,889
EREE (X Transfer to stage 1:
2 {EAEEERER 12-month ECL - - - -
EREF R Transfer to stage 2:
FEBRBEREREX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BREAEARE M 1 - -
BB EE =R Transfer to stage 3:
GFERBEHREREX lifetime ECL credit-impaired
RE#EEERRBE - - - -
BREFHEEHNTEFE  Netremeasurement of loss
allowances (217) 10 (198) (405)
RESBAFESHEE  Newfinancial assets
originated or purchased 2,164 264 15 2,443
BRIEERNESBEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (292) (35) (27,303) (27,630)
e Write-offs - - - -
U dETRE €Skt Recoveries of amounts

RR2 8 E(L
SINGEE AN HoAth B B

previously written-offs - - - -
Changes in risk parameters 1,819 1,176 3 2,998
Foreign exchange and

other movements 23 M - 22

20184912 A31H

Balance as at December 31,2018

B4 R 4,783 1,483 51 6317
* 20194 K 20184F N » AT A HAth * During 2019 and 2018, all other assets were initially classified in Stage 1
BESVINBRAE —RE  WER and were not considered as credit-impaired at the time of origination or
ERBARTHEE AT EEEAR purchase. Some were subsequently transferred into Stage 2 or Stage 3
B HR s EESRIRERT based on the result of credit assessments.

HAERBASE RS -
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40 RITHEFNEF 40 DEPOSITS AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2019 2018

RITHTFR Deposits from banks 3,818,040 1,729,630
RITETT Takings from banks 4,058,350 30,437,773
7,876,390 32,167,403

R2019F 128318 RITNERNEE As at December 31, 2019, the gross carrying amount, including accrued
(BIEERFE )/ ERE A EE 47,909,060 7T interest, of deposits and balances with banks amounted at $7,909,060 (2018
(20184 : 32,192,005 7T) ° $32,192,005).

41 CEHETHENEEE 41 FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER

B REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS
= FHENeREEREBEER Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by underlying assets are
NN shown as follows:

2019 2018
B ES Government bonds = 2,420,859

HR2019F12831H BEHETHERN
cREE(BEETFE)NEEAE AT
(20184 : 2,426,608 TT) ©

42 BEEER

As at December 31, 2019, the gross carrying amount, including accrued
interest, of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements amounted at
Nil (2018: $2,426,608).

42 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2019 2018
V& BRTF SR 2R BR = Demand deposits and current accounts 21,853,192 31,115,147
HEFR Savings deposits 68,011,480 64,736,188
TE HA AN 38 AT 30 Time and call deposits 302,731,542 257,573,125
HA iz 3 Other deposits 864,727 705,419

393,460,941 354,129,879

MR2019F12831H BEFFR(BIERE
=HF)B) B BR T 4258 /4 395,198,203 7T(2018
£ :355817,4707C) °

$355,817,470).
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EERRAAEBENER
HEBHTTABRENEHME
&

43 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018

BIBIEER

Structured deposits

126,699 -

R2019F 128318 BEARAAEE
ATEBEEEE ABRENCRAENER
CRERASEZERERMIFE ATSY
MHELBARBUER - BB HEERBRH
BB AT EABETRAABEN
B W TEEE -

CRITHMERERES

As at December 31, 2019, the carrying amount of financial liabilities
designated at FVPL was approximately the same as the amount of the Group
would be contractually required to pay at maturity to the holders. Changes
during the year in the fair value of the structured deposits attributable to
changes in own credit risk are considered insignificant.

44 OTHER DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

2019 2018
BEBHRK AT ENE T Other debt securities issued
HEMEBES at amortised cost 6,148,951 9,778,000
EBEAREBEFENDET Other debt securities issued
HEEBES at fair value = 2,404,220
KAEALBEBEERNE T Other debt securities under
HMERES fair value hedge - 2,333,689
6,148,951 14,515,909

MR2019F 128318 HBHKAATEDN
EBRTEMERES(BEEFLE) MR
T #8 %8 /26,215,679 70(2018 4F 1 10,037,356
JL) °

2019F12831H IH#EHK A E
MEBRTHMESESFZ ANEESR
6,176,476 JL(20184F : 9,797,381 70 ) © ‘A S
BEDRBFHARNTF QzAanEBER
BE_ERFTE -

As at December 31, 2019, the gross carrying amount, including accrued
interest, of other debt securities issued at amortised cost amounted at
$6,215,679 (2018: $10,037,356).

As at December 31, 2019, the fair values of other debt securities issued at
amortised cost were $6,176,476 (2018: $9,797,381). The fair values were
measured using level 2 hierarchy method as disclosed in Note 9(a).
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45 HithBE 45 OTHER LIABILITIES
2019 2018
JEAT FE AT HI 2 Accrued interest payables* 1,869,576 2,045,531
HEEERR Settlement accounts 504,588 341,666
FEBR X Accounts payables 144,593 211,190
AL AR Acceptances outstanding 345,238 566,454
[EETF e ME A Accrued salaries and welfare 397,850 340,358
RPN ERARNSE Amounts due to intermediate holding companies 2,662,555 2,662,917
ERESFR S HENRIE Debt securities trade date payables = 166,494
EETEA Accrued expenses 26,630 72,220
U B /938 & 548 & (M5 10(a)) Cash collateral received (Note 10(a)) 135,333 167,784
BERREMEEREEETER Expected credit loss allowances on loan and

ERBRER(NES2) other credit related commitments (Note 52) 251,173 201,896
A Others 234,945 231,522
6,572,481 7,008,032

* 2019128318 IREBHRK AT E * As at December 31, 2019, the net interest payables for all financial liabilities

He e ERMNTE FEE,8366607T
(20184 : 1,977,517 7C) °

measured at amortised cost amounted at $1,836,660 (2018: $1,977,517).

BERAENEMERBRERI - Hi
BEMNAAEEREREEEASMER -

46 RERE

The fair value of other liabilities, except for expected credit loss allowances
on loan commitments, approximately equals to their carrying amount.

46 SUBORDINATED DEBT

2019 2018

®ERER
—EERAABEENRER

Subordinated debt
- Designated in fair value hedge relationship - 5,833,798

MR2019F 8 4208 » ATT{T{FEERIERE [
M20145F 8 A20 HMIKEIREEZITH A
BETEFMEA4E - HE7SEETHEE
= o ZBEZIEMN 201498 A 208 AT
BEBTIN2024FE8 A20 B8 FIH - %14
EERERBHARSHBRAR LT -

On August 20, 2019, the Bank exercised the option to redeem subordinated
note with aggregate nominal amount of USD750 million, bearing a fixed
interest rate of 4.25% per annum to institutional investors. The note was
issued on August 20, 2014 at discount with maturity due on August 20, 2024.
The note was listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

BREEBEDBATTERERTMERMAS
REGAKSEREERTAEER KT
o RERBEAEBRLCIR(ELRRRDT
ARITZ ZMBEK o

Subordinated debt was raised by the Bank for the development and
expansion of business. The subordinated debt will be written-off at the point
of non-viability as determined by the HKMA. These notes have been qualified

o

and included as the Bank's Tier 2 Capital in accordance with the Capital Rules.
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‘’ESE®
AITRFRALEHER A - A S SE M8
REBAAENZOEN - RTHEEHER
BERFAAREEES - 2AEEEY
IZ2EEMNEES  BRREERTS N X
EPMERREBTENAAEEES -

[N

46 SUBORDINATED DEBT conmvuep)

The Bank has not had any default of principal or interest or other breaches
with respect to the subordinated debt during the year. The Bank designates
the subordinated debt under fair value hedge. The fair value hedge
principally consists of interest rate swaps that are used to protect against
changes in the fair value of the subordinated debt due to movements in
market interest rates.

47 SHARE CAPITAL

2019 2018
BEITREE Issued and fully paid
162,776,068 B% (2018 £F : 162,776,068 (2018: 162,776,068) HKD
162,776,068 I ) 78 1 X i % ordinary shares 6,511,043 6,511,043
440,000,000 B% (2018 £F : 440,000,000 (2018: 440,000,000) RMB
440,000,000 & ) A B HE X i % ordinary shares 22,316,800 22,316,300
28,827,843 28,827,843

HibiEsm TR

48 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

2019 2018
HE B
Nominal value Description
1018%7T AT 2022 6512 A 29 B 1R F8E B/ &l E 1| &
KEERTA
UsD1 billion Fixed rate perpetual capital instrument
callable from December 29, 2022 7,811,732 7,811,732
SEET ATR 2024 12 B 13 B2 R &R K & & FIl %
KEEARIA
UsDO.5 billion Fixed rate perpetual capital instrument
callable from December 13, 2024 3,901,108 -
11,712,840 7,811,732

MR2017F 12 8298 AT KR HERE AT
BRA - BT TEEAIVEETLHEE RE
K781 B R AFH A HIERBARE
ATH - ZFIN—REATAIW R AT
FHAH - MBE470EMES  EE2022F
12A298F—XERRAAL - MEEEIIN—
MEATERWER  AISRAFEEZES
—R - FHEBHSERERBEAMNATEH
EEBRESRKSZZRMEEENGBFZHE

R o

On December 29, 2017 the Bank issued undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital instruments with a face value of USD1 billion (equivalent
to HKD7.81 billion) net of related issuance costs. The additional tier 1 capital
instruments are undated and bear a 4.70% coupon until the first call date on
December 29, 2022. The coupon will be reset every five years if the additional
tier 1 capital instruments are not redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the
then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed initial spread.
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(BRAFRIRERASN -

48 HittiER T H»)

R2019F 128138 » RITHIBREBE T
A BT THEEASEELHHENS
B30 B ) AR AHMIERBARER
TH - ZEN—RERTEWLBTRAE
BHIR - MB431EMRE - EH 2024512
A13HE—XRERHAIL - INREEIIN—
BEATEARAWED AISRFEEES—
Ko FEEEEREFRERERNAFHE
B B e 5 W e 3 00 _E & TE #08 F ZE B E E
F= o

BIN-REARTABKAMREELE €
MRS AR AREBITREDOEA »
ZEARTAEHER(RITEER)RAD
PREZMBEEMMBATEBEEEELE

B S T LURED - OB HERSHE
B o
49 ##E 49
(a) EZEfHE (a)
EREEREREHEANEALE
}Eﬁo
(b) BREEMLHE (b)

REEHFHBEESRANEEFER
HEHTAZERENSREENRD
REERAEZHFHE BEELEH
BEKIER/IL  URRGAEEE
EREENRAABEMRANE R
RERIE -

() EEfEE (c)
EEREBERABTEANRITER
BlfmE - REBEER  LFEH2E
RREBGRITERIDHNEEES
5 649,984 7 (201812 A31 8 ¢
576,966 ) ° HBE B R LHEASE
BREEEHRBREFES -
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48 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (conmvuen)

On December 13, 2019 the Bank issued undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital instruments with a face value of USDO.5 billion
(equivalent to HKD3.90 billion) net of related issuance costs. The additional
tier 1 capital instruments are undated and bear a 4.31% coupon until the first
call date on December 13, 2024. The coupon will be reset every five years
if the additional tier 1 capital instruments are not redeemed to a fixed rate
equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed initial
spread.

These additional tier 1 capital instruments are perpetual and subordinated,
and the coupon payments may be cancelled at the sole discretion of the
Group. The capital instruments will be written down at the point of non-
viability on the occurrence of a trigger event as defined in the Banking
(Capital) Rules. They rank higher than ordinary shares in the event of a
winding-up.

RESERVES

General reserve
General reserve is appropriated from the retained earnings for future
use.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income until the financial assets are
derecognised and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for the measurement of these financial assets at fair
value.

Regulatory reserve

Regulatory reserve comprises reserves maintained in accordance with
Hong Kong regulations. At Group level, it includes a regulatory reserve
of $649,984 (December 31, 2018: $576,966) to satisfy the provisions
of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes. Movement in this reserve is made directly through retained
earnings and in consultation with HKMA.
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49 =)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Hitbfk
H#EHARG A& AR RATT
18 B 1% T &Y i A A 0 8 41 1 48 8 2K
B-ODETHBERENEAIRES
NESAEEORDRERMNT - M
BRAREMFEENBRERRANER
AIREE - BRAAI DK ©

R
EHREERBEEZRRITERDT
([BFEPTDRBDRBAEFPER
(TMEEBDMES - 2B R/
BEBZERRFERENREZE
B e

R EEEF
RIRESRMBARMARS A
FEREERBRE  REKE
MEARRILE - Bt REER
FSRAT BERR Bl AN R B AT DR T X
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49 RESERVES «conminuep)

(d) Otherreserve
Other reserve is used to record the corresponding amount of the share
options and bonus rewards granted by the former parent company to
the Bank's employees. The options and rewards granted are classified
as equity-settled share-based payments and the amount recognised
in other reserve represents capital contribution from its former parent
company and is not distributable.

(e) Mergerreserve
Merger reserve arises as a result of the acquisition of a majority of the
corporate banking business (“Acquired Business”) of CCB Hong Kong
Branch ("HKBR"). This amount represented the difference between the
net book value of the Acquired Business and the consideration paid.

(f)  Retained earnings
The Bank and its financial subsidiaries are required to maintain
minimum capital adequacy ratios under their respective regulatory
jurisdictions. The minimum capital requirements could therefore
potentially restrict the amount of retained earnings available for
distribution to the shareholders.

All reserves, except for general reserve and retained earnings, are not
available for distribution.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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50 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK

(a) Statement of Financial Position of the Bank

Note
k3 2019 2018
BE ASSETS
RS AMEIRTT A RIRTITAY  Cash and balances with banks and
=17 central banks 39,198,075 78,238,552
FHERITFA Placements with banks 38,068,541 31,753,841
RITER Advances to banks 1,918,005 -
XEFERNMESHEER Advances to customers and trade bills 289,613,916 254,471,410
HERGZTHENESMERE Financial assets held under
resale agreements 782,615 1,514,983
BARBESZEHEES  Financial assets measured at fair value
FFABTHEREE through profit or loss 10,546,713 3,539,873
BARBEAZHEES  Financial assets measured at fair value
FFAEM R ER through other comprehensive income
TREE 75,715,720 86,744,559
RSB AT EMEMEE  Other assets measured at amortised cost 18,072,831 12,065,832
TEEmIT A Derivative financial instruments 1,830,577 2,756,470
RETBRRIRIRE Investments in subsidiaries 526,010 526,010
REE R R RS Interest in an associate = 10411
RIETRIAE E Deferred tax assets 548,379 396,042
[EE & Fixed assets 2,345,011 2,472,366
FREEE Right-of-use assets 1,747,487 -
Hih &z Other assets 5,154,806 4,070,661
EEHE Total assets 486,068,686 478,561,010

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report
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50 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK

(CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of Financial Position of the Bank (continued)

Note
ihg=2 2019 2018
=L LIABILITIES
RITOFRIEETF Deposits and balances of banks 7,876,390 32,167,403
BPFR Deposits from customers 394,065,251 354,675,588
OIS FHENSEEE Finandal assets sold under
repurchase agreements - 2,420,859
BEAZAABEFERE Finandal liabilities designated at fair
FEGTABENEHMEAME  value through profit or loss 126,699 -
BEITHAMERE S Other debt securities issued 6,148,951 14,515,909
THEEMTE Derivative financial instruments 965,893 2,142,242
HEBE Lease liabilities 1,736,851 -
FET & BRBIIE Current tax payable 1,169,864 250,140
Hih 8 fE Other liabilities 3,999,711 4,414,148
& 1E1EE Subordinated debt = 5,833,798
EERE Total liabilities 416,089,610 416,420,087
= EQUITY
%N Share capital 28,827,843 28,827,843
HihEm T A Other equity instruments 11,712,840 7,811,732
i Reserves 50(b) 29,438,393 25,501,348
EREEE Total equity 69,979,076 62,140,923
EaNEERE Total equity and liabilities 486,068,686 478,561,010

BEEMN2020F3 198 AW FF

BE: =

BEEE EFERFIHHNTEF
FIEER  PITEERTR

RER

2020.

ZHANG Jun

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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50 TR MR R EHESE 50 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK
(CONTINUED)

(b) ATREZLH (b) Reserve movement of the Bank
TTRHBREVEERAMNE S Details of the changes in the Bank's reserve between the beginning
T and the end of the year are set out below:

R&
LERE ENRE EERE  HtRE  AHEE  REEA am
Investment
General  revaluation  Regulatory Other Merger Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
R019% 1 A1 REYES Balance asat lanuary 1, 2019 75095  (173930) 57696 15913 62262 24269181 25501348
WIIEREHES) : Changes in equity for 201%
FERET Profit for the year = = = = - 3733103 3,733,103
Eth2EhE Other comprehensive incore,
(o) net of ax - 570533 - - - - 570533
FERENRESR Total comprehensive income
for the year - 570,533 - - - 3733103 4303636
SEMERTA Coupon paid for other equity
MEE instruments - - - - - (366,591)  (366,591)
EEHE Regulatory reserve - - 73,018 - - (73,018) -
®2019%12831H  Balanceasat December 31,2019
iofe] 750,956 396,603 649,984 15,913 62,262 27,562,675 29,438,393
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50 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Bank (continued)
Details of the changes in the Bank's reserve between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below: (continued)

LERE ERRE  ZEBE  EnBE AUEE  RERT &%
Investment
General  revaluation  Regulatory Other Merger Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total
R017E12A318 Balance as at December 31,2017
:ofaEas 750956 (562095 2307924 15913 62260 19732482 2230742
BEZE Impact on transition to HKFRS 9
(BAEBREED)
E ki 7 - 118,890 - - - (433,194) (314304)
R2018F1A1H Restated balance as at
M (ER) January 1,2018 75095 (443405 2307924 15913 62260 19299288 21992938
WIBFEZE) Changes in equity for 2018;
FERA Profit for the year - - - - - 3607365 3607365
EfzENE Other comprehensive income,
(Bt net of tax - 269475 - - - - 269475
FERENRESR Total comprehensive income
for the year - 269475 - - - 3,607,365 3,876,840
SEMER LA Coupon paid for other equity
HEL instruments - - - - - (368:430) (368430)
EERE Requlatory reserve - - (17309%) - - 1730958 -
R2018%12A318 Balance as at December 31,2018
g 750956 (173930) 576,966 15913 62260 24269181 25501348
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51 ERBEBAERS

RER - ANEEER BB RTEEBIET
HMH S RTT SERS - BIEEE R
ARERAZER - ERBETRS - BE
%5 BEEERPNHTATARS &
B S EERINRSER BT
BIF ISR W -

(a) RFEANERBEBLIRZHER
RBEEANREBERBERII W

51 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into transactions with related parties in
the normal course of its banking business including lending, acceptance
and placements of inter-bank deposits, correspondent banking transactions,
rental transactions, securities brokerage and derivative transactions. The
transactions were priced at the relevant market rates at the time of each
transaction.

(@) The amount of material related party transactions during
the year and outstanding balances at the reporting date

T are set out below:
AR AR (PR 56) G P BECERBENT
Intermediate
holding company
(Note 56) Fellow subsidiaries Joint venture and Associate
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HEBA Interest income 1,002,910 933,164 99,421 172,093 - -
FBZ Interest expense 263,153 420,661 29,633 32,357 36,148 11973
FEERBEBA Fees and commission
(Fitzz12) income (Note 12) 749,357 555,673 - - - -
FEERAeTH Fees and commission
(FizE12) expense (Note 12) 12,684 34,955 1,865 19 - -
HigglA Other operating income 31,089 46,288 - 4236 - -
KB Operating expenses 1,284 4,144 - - 106,056 131411

FEERBZBATZRERS N
IR RIER (A A0 S8R AR 7% AT UL
BB -

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED « 2019 An

Fees and commission income mainly represented the fees received
from intermediate holding company for advisory and support services
provided.

nual Report
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51 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS conmvuep)

RERANEXBBIRZEER (@) The amount of material related party transactions during
RBEEENREZHERI W the year and outstanding balances at the reporting date
(&) are set out below: (continued)
R ERA T (M5 56) RARKELR BRELERHENT
Intermediate
holding company
(Note 56) Fellow subsidiaries Joint venture and Associate
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
EhssE: Amounts due from:
ReMERTR Cash and balances with
RRFTHETT banks and central banks 11,237,268 | 30839686 = - = -
FHRTHE Placements with banks 21,938,037 | 13807830 - - - -
RITER Advances to banks 1,918,005 - = - = -
RPENRESZEE Advances to customers
and trade bills 8,044 42,19 894,650 1317425 - -
BERZITHEMNEBEE  Finandal assets held under
resale agreements 782,615 1,514,983 _ _ _ _
BAnEEFEAEE Financial assets measured
SEAE M2 KRS at fair value through other
tREE comprehensive income - 929240| 1,537,248 1,900,521 - -
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 264,887 311,943 - - S -
BRELE Right-of-use assets - - - - 913,957 -
HiEE Other assets 779317 656,074 12,182 26458 - -
EfdsE: Amounts due to:
RONEINET Deposits and balances
with banks 4,572,492 29,379,049 27,831 6475 - -
BEPER Deposits from customers 2,852 2849| 3,497,818 5902,536 = 614342
FIE R T HER Financial assets sold under
SREE repurchase agreements = 2420859 - - = -
fTHEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 151,396 317,562 = - - -
HERE Lease liabilties - - - - 963,934 -
BB Other liabilities 2,701,482 2682674 690 4987 13,794 8293
HEEE RAE Contingencies and
commitments:
EREE¥REE Direct credit substitutes - 85,000 - - = -
HR S ERMNEER Transaction-related
contingencies 12,538 19,299 - - - -
Hip e Other commitments - - 2352340 2210770 S| 1251495
fTESMIL: Derivative financial
instruments:
(B5eH) (notional amount)
EZaH Exchange rate contracts 103229973 |  67,325878 - - = -
pilESed- Interest rate swaps 2,199,417 273,560 = - = -

REIERIRTT (MR BR AR
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51 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS convnvuep)

(a)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

The amount of material related party transactions during
the year and outstanding balances at the reporting date

are set out below: (continued)

The Group may enter into transactions with entities directly
or indirectly owned by the Mainland government through its
government authorities, agencies, affiliations and other organisations
(“state-owned entities”) in the normal course of business. These
transactions are entered into on terms similar to those that would have
been entered into with non-state-owned entities. These transactions
include but are not limited to:

—  Lending and deposit taking;

— Inter-bank balances taking and placing;
- Insurance and securities agency;

—  Custody services;

—  Sale, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds;

— Purchase, sale and leases of property and other assets; and

- Rendering and receiving of utilities and other services.

The Group's pricing and approval processes for major products and
services do not depend on whether the customers or counterparties
are state-owned entities. Having due regard to the substance of
the relationships, the Group is of the opinion that none of these
transactions are material related party transactions that require
separate disclosure.
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51 ERBEBERSZ »)

(b)

(c)
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51 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS conmvuep)

(b)

Directors and key management personnel

During the year, the Group provided credit facilities to and accepted

deposits from the directors and key management personnel of the

Group and its holding companies and their close family members and

companies controlled or significantly influenced by them. The credit

facilities and deposits were provided and taken in the ordinary course

of business and on substantially the same terms as for comparable

transactions with persons of a similar standing, or where applicable,

with other employees. These transactions did not involve more than

the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavourable features.

2019 2018

B Loans 3,061 1175

B BRER A FIL2 U A Interest income earned 99 148

e Deposits 234,258 94,253

ERHFEZ T Interest expense paid 3,769 1,062
N —Fr e REMEHER Compensation - salaries and other

short-term benefits 34,985 32,290

EEEX
BRIBEEB( AR (BEEENEER)
BAINEeCE)FI15KE - BHAE
FERZFBEENAT -

Loans to Directors

(c)

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to Section 15 of the

Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G).

2019 2018
R12A31 BE@EERE KFE Aggregate amount in respect of principal
PN and interest as at December 31 2,901 652
FRNEBALE RNEMN &S The maximum aggregate amount outstanding
ERHBTE in respect of principal and interest during
the year 13,677 7917

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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52 e B EMEE 52 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

SBBENRERESIEZENGNESE The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant
B - class of contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit:
2019 2018
HEEEERIAR Direct credit substitutes 361,765 628,195
B 5 BN AEIEE Transaction-related contingencies 3,985,512 8,365,482
HE S BB BIAR Trade-related contingencies 1,417,186 1,040,083
Hofth A Other commitments
AABRAGEREEmEGEK which are unconditionally cancellable
EEIESE] or automatically cancellable due to the
deterioration in the credit worthiness of
the borrower 52,942,232 53,713,318
JREEAR —F AR with an original maturity under one year 3,245,985 836,818
REBAR —F A E with an original maturity over one year 30,399,463 24,025,892
92,352,143 88,009,788
HEBENAERAEEERBENIA - Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related instruments which
BEEAE  BRAMEEEAE - BLEF include letters of credit, guarantees and commitments to extend credit. The
SEEBEOITAMSRNERER FHET risk involved is essentially the same as the credit risk involved in extending
BEREREERMEAENEERBIER - loan facilities to customers. These transactions are, therefore, subject to the
It EERGMEANERFHBERE same credit application, portfolio maintenance and collateral requirements
FIBRMEEHE  #REEHES RER as for customers applying for the loans. The contractual amounts represent
REHRE  AHSHEEESHRERS the amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn upon and the client
R ERXFPTRAOKTEERENRER defaults. As the facilities may expire without being drawn upon, the contract
SR - HRBHEEREETEEREIRI amounts do not represent expected future cash flows.

RIS R - AR T RIRFEHIA R
KIRERE °

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report



52 EEEMEAEw

(a)

A MR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B RIFERASN - BT T

FI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

52 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND

COMMITMENTS (convnivuep)

EXRHEMEERBRARENES (@)
FREXERNED

TRIR T ER R E M E AR AR
MEMERBRERRFONEFEREG

BHOEIER - fRE 8@ B+ AR

HERIEX - FEEMERELMN

BB ERREFLRE -

Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances

on loan and other credit related commitments

The following table shows the reconciliation from the opening
balance to the closing balance of the expected credit loss allowances
on loan and other credit related commitments. Explanation of the
terms: 12-month ECL, lifetime ECL and credit-impaired are included in
Note 8(a)(x).

F—RER F-RR FZHER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
FESAEY FESED
ERB%X FEREX
1218 A a4 BREEE rEe#sE
EABRK ERRE ERRE L]
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit-  ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
R2019%1 51 BWA#R  Balance asat January 1,2019 164,391 37,505 = 201,896
HWBEE PR : Transfer to stage 1:
128 AFEAE AR X 12-month ECL = - = =
EREE R Transfer to stage 2:
FEMTERERIEX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BEREEEFERRE - - - -
EREE R Transfer to stage 3:
GERBEBEREX lifetime ECL credit-impaired
kB EEERRE - - - -
BREFEHNTEFE  Netremeasurement of loss
allowances (11,807) 14,794 - 2,987
TR S AT AGE * New commitments
originated or purchased* 140,257 - - 140,257
B EFER ARG Commitments that have
been derecognised (87,676) (2) - (87,678)
s Write-offs = = = -
e BN SRR Recoveries of amounts
previously written-offs - - - -
R 28 E (L Changes in risk parameters 2,751 (8,994) - (6,243)
HNGE AN E h & &) Foreign exchange and
other movements (46) - - (46)
7A201912H831H Balance as at December 31,2019
Wi ER 207,870 43,303 - 251,173
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52 EREMERE @ 52 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS conmivuep)
(a) BXRRHEMEEHEBEAENTESR (@) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
ERBXEENEE(Z) on loan and other credit related commitments (continued)

FMEER BBEER  E=BER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

FERTRE 1FEHTRE

ERBEL  EREX

2EATES ER#HEE  REBAE

ERBX  FERRE FARE ek
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
201851 A1 BHARR  Balance as at January 1,2018 169,747 48,807 - 218,554
EREE (A Transfer to stage 1:
1218 B TR ERE R % 12-month ECL - - - -
EREE R - Transfer to stage 2:
FERBEHEREX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BREAEARE - - - -
BB EE =R : Transfer to stage 3:
FERBEHEREX lifetime ECL credit-impaired
RE#EEERRBE - - - -
BREFHENTEFE  Netremeasurement of loss
allowances (67,297) (14,719) - (82,016)
TR AE BB AT ARG New commitments
originated or purchased* 125,774 2,272 - 128,046
BRI FER A EGE Commitments that have
been derecognised (17,928) (18) - (17,946)
iz Write-offs - - - 7
U dERE €Skt Recoveries of amounts
previously written-offs - - - -
[EfR 2 EmE b Changes in risk parameters (44,075) 1,144 - (42,931)
SNEE AN EC fh 2 &) Foreign exchange and
other movements (1,830) 19 - (1,811)
R2018% 12 A31H Balance as at December 31,2018
B4 R 164,391 37,505 - 201,896
* 2018 F M2019F A - FTEE K * During 2019 and 2018, all loan commitments were initially classified
BAEEVNERE—TRE  WHER in Stage 1 and were not considered as credit-impaired at the time of
ERBARTHEEAEHEEAR origination or purchase. Some were subsequently transferred into Stage
B HRFHREESRIRERT 2 or Stage 3 based on the result of credit assessments.

HAERBASE RS = -
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53 BEAEIE 53 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
W12 A 31 BRAREN T X RIELRE I BH® Capital commitments outstanding as at December 31, not provided for in
KANRBEBOEARENT - the consolidated financial statements are as follows:
2019 2018
EETABREER Expenditure contracted but not provided for 86,496 88,942
BEREERTOMRX Expenditure authorised but not contracted for 70,913 51,421
157,409 140,363
2 AN e~ — | =
54 MERERERMETE 54 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) REZNNERBLETHNER (@) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash outflow from
SRHEIRRE operations
2019 2018
RETEE Operating activities
H g ) Operating profit 4,281,320 4,427,830
FEE - Adjustments for:
=X ON Dividend income (6,444) (5,903)
e Depreciation 565,307 314,164
BN Net interest income (6,242,000) (6,119,968)
TEEz RIBREHR TR Net charges on expected credit losses 805,366 587,980
BB E SRIB A E R Written-off of loans and advances,
net of recoveries (110,734) (79,633)
AABEEFE Fair value adjustments (142,080) (613,562)
B HECHE Interest received 14,002,215 13,168,428
XA Interest paid (7,634,496) (6,753,675)
HER KT EE D Interest portion of lease payment (63,806) -
[+ e 8 o2 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 1,454,711 2,308,327
6,909,359 7,233,988
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54 MEBEEFRERMTE =

(a)

REBRNERBAKLLFHNFR

54 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (conmivuep)

(a)

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash outflow from

EREEERRE) operations (continued)
2019 2018
LEEEGEM, W (Increase)/decrease in operating assets
EHRRIBITHETFTMEREIEA A Balances and placements with banks with
=AU EMRITET RIFHR original maturity beyond three months
$RITHRIA and balances with central banks (20,551,070) (2,230,567)
REIEBIA A= @A EREE Financial assets held under resale agreements
WE MEENeRERE with original maturity beyond three months 1,514,983 (1,514,983)
RITE R Gross advances to banks (1,918,005) 262,498
BREFERRESHEERBE Gross advances to customers and trade bills (35,772,590) 27,263,645
[REIEAA R =8 AN oz Financial assets measured at fair value through
D EE2EEEHFA profit or loss with original maturity beyond
BRmNomEE three months (6,883,364) 1,854,515
THEe®MIA Derivative financial instruments 925,893 4,031,867
Hih &= Other assets (1,384,197) 521,575
(64,068,350) 30,188,550
LEaF/OEm,wm Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
RITHOERIAETF Deposits and balance with banks (24,291,013) (41,056,219)
EiERE THENSREE Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements (2,420,859) 2,420,859
BP1FR Deposits from customers 39,331,062 860,546
MTHEe®MIA Derivative financial instruments (1,176,349) (4,420,834)
ERITHMERES Other debt securities issued (8,632,376) (401,135)
BEREBRAAEBEGABREN Financial liabilities designated at fair
TRIBE value through profit or loss 127,460 -
HiaE Other liabilities 334,436 (927,879)
3,272,361 (43,524,662)
(53,886,630) (6,102,124)
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54 MEBEERERMTE @ 54 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS «conmvuep)

(b) HZEREARERFTINWRESHNE (b) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement
SEEY of cash flows
2019 2018
W MERIT R AP RIRITH Gross cash and balances with banks and
BT central banks 39,198,881 78,240,159
[REIEAR & =& A LARBTF R Placements with banks with original
R1T5R8 maturity within three months 5,761,683 19,996,804
REHBER=EANANEE Financial assets held under resale agreements
ETHAENEREE with original maturity within three months 782,615 -
[REIEA A R =1E A AN R Financial assets measured at fair value through
BEEF=2 A B A KA other comprehensive income with original
2EHBRENEMEE maturity within three months 988,831 -
[REVEA A & =8 A ARz E ek Other assets measured at amortised cost with
ARG ERHMEE original maturity within three months 4,669,635 -
51,401,645 98,236,963

(0 HEESUBRRRHEE

(c) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement of

financial position

2019 2018
RS MAERIT AP RIRITH Cash and balances with banks and
A7 (MEE21) central banks (Note 21) 39,198,295 78,238,697
TR T R E (M 7E 22) Placements with banks (Note 22) 38,068,541 31,753,841
EERE T RENSREE Financial assets held under resale
(P 5% 24) agreements (Note 24) 782,615 -
RAREEFEREEEHTA Financial assets measured at fair value through
HEfzmlaENEemEE other comprehensive income (Note 27)
(P 5T 27) 75,715,720 86,744,559
BEBK AT ENEMEE Other assets measured at amortised cost
(FF5E28) (Note 28) 18,072,831 12,065,832
A ISR R TSR Amounts shown in consolidated statement of
financial position 171,838,002 208,802,929
W REBIEA=E A LR Less: Amounts with an original maturity
IR beyond three months
TF R T 518 Placements with banks (32,312,511) (11,761,440)
BEAREEFEEEZH Financial assets measured at fair value
FFAHMEEKER through other comprehensive
TRIEE income (74,726,889) (86,744,559)
BEBHBKAFTENEMEE Other assets measured at amortised
cost (13,428,060) (12,090,571)
TEEAE B R Expected credit loss allowances 31,103 30,604
HERSRERFATINEESR Cash and cash equivalents in the
REEEY consolidated statement of cash flows 51,401,645 98,236,963
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54 IRERERERHT » 54 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (conmivuep)

(d FRRETHEBNIMN (d) Analysis of changes in financing activities during the year
HESE #EEE
Lease Subordinated
liabilities debt
20194 1 A1 AR ER Balance as at January 1,2019 1,954,697 5,833,798
BEEB MM LIRS Cash outflow from financing activities (237,036) (6,132,890)
BEBEZ N Expense on subordinated debt = 282,621
F B Interest expense 63,806 -
DEREERTREN Interest paid classified as operating cash flow
EXHE (63,806) -
HEEAEEMENIEREE Non-cash movement related to lease liabilities 19,190 =
RAAABEESRNZERBIEZ  Fairvalue adjustment on subordinated
NAEERE debt under fair value hedge = 5,746
[E 5 &) Exchange differences - 10,725
M2019% 12 A 31 B ER Balance as at December 31,2019 1,736,851 -

BEREE
Subordinated debt

R20184F 1 A1 HEYE & Balance as at January 1,2018 5812,111
mEES MR LIRS Cash outflow from financing activities (249,788)
BEMBESL Expense on subordinated debt 254,873
KAAABEESRNREREZ Fair value adjustment on subordinated debt under fair

NABEFHE value hedge 5448
HE 5 & B Exchange differences 11,154
7 20184F 12 A 31 HEVAEER Balance as at December 31,2018 5,833,798

(e) FHRERENBEZTH (e) Non-cash investing and financing activities

REEBMNTEIREEKENGE The Group's major non-cash investing and financing activities include
EHEENTRAEEEMNMEER reconciliation of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of $2,431,569
EHE B 9 Rl A2431,5697T and $1,954,697, respectively (2018: Nil), and share of profit/(losses) of
1,954,697 (2018 4F « 48 ) - LA N JE associate/joint venture.
mMEERE/ AECENRR, (8
K)o
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55 CEREERKIFEER
RZ B

(a)

(b)

THEEHNRLIBANCHEERS

55 ASSETS TRANSFERRED AND COLLATERAL
ACCEPTED AS SECURITY FOR ASSETS

(a)

Transferred financial assets not qualifying for full

MEEREEBNSREE derecognition and their associated financial liabilities
2019 2018
2EE [REEES

EEN HESEN BEEH MHBEaEHN
REEE KEEE REERE FAEE
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amountof amount of amountof  amount of
transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
o] B a5 Repurchase agreements = = 2,406,835 2,420,859

EXFREERMEERRITARLE
WH#WEE“%% THEE

R 5 EFARE O 45 (F R
ﬁuué’ﬂai‘ﬂ 5 c HRZERFEE
REEREE  HREFREERE
BE2BUER - MRMRAEERARR
HIREEERRBEEREECAE
WA RE - TRERAMERRERA
TR - ANETHERS  AEER
RZMATEMER - HELHEINZ
HFLEREE - AEEBUFEEA
TADAAENEZRR  FERRK
MIZAR - XZHFHBEREL TR
REEREE -

BHIEEERRNERR
AEERBETNREGIETHE
e WHEBZSERXZINERR - ©
201912 A31H KX&20184F 12 A 31
A ﬂ#iﬁmﬁvﬁﬁfﬁtﬁm
B BRIASENG LSRR
Fﬁ%ﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁuu °

(b)

The financial assets shown above include amounts transferred to third
parties that do not qualify for derecognition are mainly debt securities
held by counterparties as collateral under repurchase agreements.
As the substance of these transactions is secured borrowings, the
collateral assets continue to be recognised in full and the related
liabilities, reflecting the Group’s obligation to repurchase the
transferred assets for a fixed price at a future date, are also recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position. As a result of
these transactions, the Group is unable to use, sell or repledge the
transferred assets for the duration of the transactions. The Group
remains exposed to interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk on
these pledged instruments. The counterparty's recourse is not limited
to the transferred assets.

Collateral accepted as securities for assets

The Group conducts resale agreements under usual and customary
terms of placements, and holds collateral for these transactions. As at
December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, for resale agreements,
the Group was not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral held,
unless there is a default.
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(BRAFRIRERASN -

56

57

58

HESQNFARRRERES

201912 A31H &2018F12H318 -
RIMEZET R AREES MK ZHE
TEIMERBRAB([EITEIMER]) -
BATEIMNERR T BB RITIEES - BRI
TREELD RERZ2ERBENIREETER
AIREKREBRETRAAINE QR PR
ELREBREMTQR - AEEHNFNT
NEEZRBITREP R TMA T8 LR
17 o BRBITERBV B WREATEH -

LB T
R RUFRMBEE - UHEAE
B R RABE -

BREBREH

B2020F 1 AR - BIAAENEED
BRPBIAERAEMME S FEML
EEEXETE AEE-—EEYERE
REBRHAEEEBNFE WO KEUE
B o BRI ATTHRET SEARTT
B RREKBARSS DT UMRERP
METIWEEHEZZ - KR2019F 12 A 31
A FEHEAEBROGETERERE XK
—ZRHFBREEEAR R MER o FEHEE N7
KBS ENBREEMAI MR - BEER
MAEEBEMEMEREZNEESE
I AELRERB(CEBV BHREEN)
BN HET 2020 F MV TEHREAIBK -

56

57

58

AT ILHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Bank's immediate parent
is CCB Overseas Holdings Limited ("CCBOHL"), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong. CCBOHL is controlled by CCB. Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
is the controlling party of CCB, and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Investment Corporation which is a wholly state-owned investment and
management company. The Group's intermediate parent, CCB, which is a
listed bank incorporated in the Mainland, produces financial statements
available for public use.

COMPARATIVES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the
presentation and disclosures in the current year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of coronavirus since early January 2020 has spread across
mainland China and beyond, causing disruption to business and economic
activity. The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of its
developments on the Group's businesses and has put in place contingency
measures. In particular, the Bank has taken various prompt actions including
temporarily closure of certain branches to protect the health and safety of
both its customers and staff. The ECL as at December 31, 2019 was estimated
based on a range of forecast economic conditions as at that date. The
subsequent impact on GDP and other key indicators will be considered when
determining the severity and likelihood of downside economic scenarios that
will be used to estimate ECL under HKFRS 9 in 2020.
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(BRHFFRIZERASN + LAABHE T IL5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

RAMBREMEIRIAT AEEZHBATHEE  The notes to the consolidated financial statements and the following unaudited

B RAFEERTEWRR)RADMERR - supplementary information are prepared to comply with the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.
1 CAHRKEHEE 1 OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ASSETS
(a) BH=@EAUNLNEFERA (a) Gross advances to customers overdue for more than three
&3 . months:
2019 2018

HEFEX HEFPER

HEHDL WEA D

% on total % on total

advances to advances to

customers customers

3MEALAL - 6{EAZEAR Six months or less but

over three months 83,005 0.03 78,691 0.03
6MEALAL * 1A One year or less but over six months 10,416 0.00 16,323 0.01
1€ Over one year 150,210 0.05 111,048 0.04

mEI3E A EMEFK  Total gross amount of advances
B overdue for more than
three months 243,631 0.08 206,062 0.08

BB @R EFRIEH A Expected credit loss allowances

TEEAE B R EHE made in respect of the above
overdue advances 203,325 142,613
BB EE R Net realisable value of collateral held
EIR MR SRR E against the overdue advances 48,703 132,400
BB ERHEEMELH  Covered portion of overdue advances 48,703 132,400
B EE RN EEKIEES  Uncovered portion of
overdue advances 194,927 73,662
243,630 206,062
M2019F 124318 - tE@ 8RR As at December 31, 2019, collaterals held with respect of overdue
ERmMEENERREERTEME advances to customers are mainly residential properties (2018:
(20184 : F=EWZE) - residential properties).
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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1 CAMRKEHEE @ 1 OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ASSETS
(CONTINUED)
by BH=EAUNLNEZEEH (b) Gross trade bills overdue for more than three months:
3
2019 2018
HEZRE HESRE
HETHDL BWEADLL
% on total % on total
trade bills trade bills
3MEAALE - 6B AKEAA Six months or less but
over three months - - - -
6MEALAL » 18 A  One year or less but over six months = = - -
T E Over one year = = 3,052 145
BEA 3 E A A =&y Total gross amount of trade
=L bills overdue for more than
three months - - 3,052 145
B EsEE 5 Expected credit loss allowances
EREHMTER made in respect of the above
EAEKER overdue trade bills = 3,052
MEBMEE HZEATF  Net realisable value of collateral held
IR mA Rl SRR E against the overdue trade bills = -
BB ZEEN Covered portion of overdue trade bills
BEMI D - _
BB ZREN Uncovered portion of
IR EL D overdue trade bills = 3,052
- 3,052

R2019F 12 A31HK&2018F 12 A
318 WEEBHBMIIRITER -

As at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, there were no
overdue advances to banks.
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#HZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE | For the year ended December 31,2019
(BRHFFRIZERASN + LAABHE T IL5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

1 CERKEELAEE 1 OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ASSETS

() BREAEFEN: (c) Rescheduled advances to customers:
2019 2018

HEFEXR HEFER

WEEHDL BEE DL

% on total % on total

advances to advances to

customers customers

KEARFER Rescheduled advances to customers 58,394 0.02 56,346 0.02

(d)

RERE KRG B RMERA M BORK
U BN R IR IR E & TR AR R
EXBEREFATHER - B
ERCEETNEREHEHATH
EENEEMENLE  KBHETFE
REMBERAHBBE="EALA
ERtALMEBBMERNER -

MR2019F 12 A31 B K 20185F 12 A
318 WELSANBEITERLE
SR -

Hie AR KCEAEE
R2019F 12 A31 B K 2018512 A
3R WEEMB S REELAE
Eo

(d)

Rescheduled advances are those advances which have been
restructured or renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial
position of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the
original repayment schedule and for which the revised payment terms
are non-commercial to the Bank. The rescheduled advances are stated
net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue for over
three months and reported as overdue advances as above.

As at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, there were no
rescheduled advances to banks and trade bills.

Other overdue and rescheduled assets
As at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, there were no other
overdue and rescheduled assets.
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2 ZHER 2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(a) BEFEXREE (@) Gross advances to customers
(i) BIT¥ETEZEFEMEE (i)  Gross advances to customers by industry sectors
HEEARNERPERBES Analysis of gross advances to customers covered by collateral is
M as follows:
EE
Group
2019 2018
BEERRHN BEAEEA ML
thiE EXEIH #®E EXESL
% of 9% of
advances advances
Outstanding covered by | Outstanding covered by
balance collateral balance collateral
ERBFERAMEF Advances for use in Hong Kong
IrEaa Industrial, commercial and financial
MEZRE Property development 16,553,186 87.43 18,744,581 9475
MEKRE Property investment 28,821,097 89.95 32,567,682 83.04
SR Financial concerns 34,450,580 35.67 33,809,319 7273
eI Stockbrokers 855,085 0.00 1,070,347 93.46
MERTEE Wholesale and retail trade 5,451,472 88.59 5,549,307 67.52
E S Manufacturing 8,026,832 71.00 4,767,472 4362
BENERSZH  Tansportand
transport equipment 9,989,160 68.30 8,326,221 76.18
IREEEB) Recreational activities 29,178 100.00 354518 8.84
AR Information technology 6,022,776 48.74 3,190,770 9841
H Others 22,448,943 68.58 13,545,491 5181
132,648,309 121,925,708
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2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION «conmvuep)

() BEFEREEE) (@) Gross advances to customers (continued)
(i) BITESBEZEFEMELGE (i)  Gross advances to customers by industry sectors
(%) (continued)
HEEMAMNEFRFERLE Y Analysis of gross advances to customers covered by collateral is
W (E) - as follows (continued):
rEE
Group
2019 2018
BEEERRN BEAEEA MK
t%hiE BB #HE  BEXAESL
% of 9% of
advances advances
Outstanding covered by | Outstanding covered by
balance collateral balance collateral
EaA Individuals
BEIEEZBEEST  Loansfor the purchase of flats in
2l [FLAZ2EE  theHome Ownership Scheme,
EFrE I RIHEEE Private Sector Participation
HEE M Scheme and Tenants
BFERK Purchase Scheme 2,997 100.00 3,699 100.00
BEEMEE Loans for the purchase of other
MEER residential properties 18,622,754 99.96 16,633,839 99.58
ERRER Credit card advances 4,342,059 0.00 4,324,556 0.00
HAth Others 15,586,331 15.83 17,982,997 3327
38,554,141 38,945,091
BFmE Trade finance 4,344,271 83.34 3,722,133 5157
FERBEIMEAR  Advances for use outside Hong
= Kong 117,139,236 56.33 92,020,855 74.25
BEFEREE Gross advances to customers 292,685,957 61.19 | 256,613,787 7231
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HZE2019%F 12 A31 HIEFE | For the year ended December 31,2019

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LAY T 7T5II7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

TEER

FAEMFEEREN Z(REREFM)
BICG (AR HBHEEER)
2 -

é%AT £1I$FEJ§E\@&*1I NEE
g 2hARNTEZES BEEELET

RLREBEg HEIFZBRE- Tm%éﬁi%?@ﬂ@é
g EREEE URKRARZEEETS
RIEZEE  tEXTEREZEE D
NREBRTREGCEERBEZEEN
BERREMEZEEE  UREBHITEZEER
ERZEenREkEREEY  FEZE
i Euuéﬂ%ﬁéﬁigﬁté/\ 2 REAMRE
BLZEGRHMBEAGHAEEELES -

(a) E=E
EEeHAKEZRE - TREF -
BEA BB - EMiFnE REITE
BEAZKRZER  UBRRAEEZ
EBNEEREE BEXEEBZE
12 WiBSFHBEEGIFRG o Hit
RuBEMZEEeHEEEaERAA
WETIE  BEEESHORHE - Tﬁ%ﬂj]
FEEFRTRBE KUBtHZES

T RHEREERE ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%}%ﬁﬁ%lﬁ
ZEEIBRBHRBREFARENER

BRMHIT - EEER2019F £ A

FAUA S ©

EEEMTERENT

S B R
r B R

- MEANTHEREE XL
HREENERENS

- ORERTHELEE  RET
EMREBREARDBITE

- HRIATHFEMBEES
ESNVSCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank has complied with the requirements set out on the Supervisory
Policy Manual Module, CG-1 “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” issued by the HKMA.

There are five special committees and one sub-committee under the

Board of Directors, namely Executive Committee, Strategy and Corporate

Governance Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration

Committee, Risk Committee and Compliance Sub-Committee under the

Risk Committee. There are seven key functional committees, of which Asset

and Liability Committee and Information Technology Committee directly

report to Executive Committee, while Risk Management Committee, Credit

Committee, Product Innovation and Approval Committee, Internal Control,
Compliance and Operations Committee and New Capital Accord Steering
Committee jointly report to Executive Committee and Risk Committee.

(a)

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibilities to the
shareholders, depositors, creditors, employees, other stakeholders,
and banking supervisors of the Group in ensuring that the business
and operational functions of the Group are managed in a prudent,
professional and competent manner and in conformity with relevant
laws and regulations. Key specialised committees are established
to be responsible to and report to the Board of Directors, and assist
the Board of Directors in performing its duties according to the
authorisation of the Board of Directors. The functional committees
are established to ensure that such operational functions, as well
as efficient management of the main types of risk arising out of the
business, are effectively carried out. The Board of Directors held four
meetings in 2019.

The key functions and powers of the Board of Directors are set out
below:

- Determining the Bank’s development strategy, and supervising
its implementation;

- Deciding on the business plan, investment plan and risk capital
distribution plan of the Bank;

- Preparing annual financial budget and final accounts of the
Bank;
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#HZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE | For the year ended December 31,2019
(BRHFFRIZERASN + LAABHE T IL5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

3 EER® 3 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (covmnuen)

(a) ESE#E) (a) Board of Directors (continued)
EEEMEEMWENT - (&) The key functions and powers of the Board of Directors are set out

BRI ATTRO R 2 B 77 R ANIE
RIBFAITER

HIRT ANTTHE RSk R D B
BOIARTAERES - RITR
MfEH - ARIESFREMAE
BHENETHITER

BRI ATTEAMBEL R

BRI ARITE G~ D3~ BRACHN

BEAR:

RERTHRERE - BEFKR
B EEBE BERE &
EriE - BEEM - EtIES
FRITEBER L IMERE
18

REARTAMBEREEOR
=

RIETF AR

BRRRAMMRTE - BEXRE
RISAITARE - BISRIAE
BB R EMERERAR
AR E IR AN 2R IR

BRI ATTHORANEEHIE - I
EEHIENRITER

IRTE AT H) LR B BUR A A
ERIERICR - BIEATTARE
IEMAERE S EREHIE - I

EEHEMITIER

RRRASIRFER  BEX
RIS AZ 2R

below: (continued)

- Preparing profit distribution plan and planning for making up
losses of the Bank;

- Preparing plans for the increase or reduction of the Bank's share
capital, issuance of the Bank’s convertible bonds, subordinated
bonds, corporate bonds or other negotiable securities and
listing;

- Preparing plans for the Bank's major acquisitions;

- Preparing plans for merger, division, dissolution and liquidation
of the Bank;

- Deciding on the Bank’s equity investment, bond investment,
asset acquisition, asset disposal, asset written-off, asset
mortgage, other non-commercial banking business guarantees
and external donations;

- Deciding on the setting up of the Bank's internal management
divisions;

- Deciding on the setting up of subsidiaries;

- According to the shareholder’s requirements, appointing
or removing the chief executive officer of the Bank, senior
executive vice president, executive vice president and
other senior management members and determining their
remuneration, reward and penalty;

- Formulating the Bank’s basic management systems, and
supervising the implementation of these systems;

- Deciding on risk management policies and internal control
policies of the Bank, formulating risk management system
and internal control system of the Bank, and supervising the
implementation of such systems;

- Making proposal for the engagement, dismissal or retention of
auditors to the Shareholders’ General Meeting;
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3 EER®

(a) EBE(#)
EFREME2BENT : ()

- BRATEREEENITEE
BRUIEE BT ERaNE
BENTE BETHeRER
BHRMES

- ERFEEFNERAEEAER
HIERER

- EHFREYTEEEATHA
AURE  EMAEFEEA S
EE

- HEAARTZRARER (ES
SHEERADMERTR - HIE
ExgHMBIE KA B
A

-  HEEAMRE - HAITEARR
B X H)RF G & B I B E A6 B
B - UWEEHREOHRITER

- HEARTREMBHENGR
BEGE  WEBHEORT

R

- WUERRERTEESERNZ
MARDE T AITEETRNAL
o YA AFERRIEIS
EFERTHERNZ LI
MERTARITEMAE - BN
LR B T R AEE T A
HEE &

—  1IEER AR RE - AEE
EERBNMERREMARE
BT A RAI TR ME—
BRRAPBERRBITROERA
A(TERRIT D R/ IR AK
SR THEMBRE -

3 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

(a)
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Board of Directors (continued)
The key functions and powers of the Board of Directors are set out
below: (continued)

- Receiving and reviewing work reports of the Bank’s senior
management, and supervising, checking and assessing his/her
work and adopting accountability system;

- Assessing and evaluating the duty performance of directors
and senior management members;

- Regularly evaluating and continuously improving corporate
governance of the Bank, and conducting a regular evaluation of
the performance of the Board of Directors;

- Formulating the amendments to the Articles of Association of
the Bank and the Procedural Rules for Board of Directors of the
Bank, and formulating other systems, rules and measures of the
Board of Directors;

- Formulating the capital planning and relevant systems on
capital adequacy ratio assessment and management of the
Bank, and supervising the implementation of such systems;

- Formulating systems for the management of accounting
consolidation of the Bank and its subsidiaries, and supervising
the implementation of such systems;

- Delegating all or any part of the authorities given by the
shareholder to the chairman or chief executive officer of the
Bank and allowing the chairman or chief executive officer
to further delegate all or part of his/her authority to other
personnel of the Bank provided that the aforesaid delegation
should be made by way of authorisation document; and

- Exercising other functions and powers vested by laws,
regulations, rules, and relevant provisions of the relevant
regulatory authorities, and the Articles of Association as well
as those authorised by the Bank's ultimate sole shareholder,
China Construction Bank Corporation (“CCBC"), and/or the
Shareholders’ General Meeting.
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3 EER@®

(a)

(b)
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(a)

(b)

Board of Directors (continued)

Members of the Board of Directors, who come from a variety of
different backgrounds, have a diverse range of business, banking and
professional expertise. As at December 31, 2019, the Board of Directors
comprises two Executive Directors and eight Non-Executive Directors.
Of the eight Non-Executive Directors, four are independent Non-
Executive Directors (‘independent directors”).

In order to promote sustainable development and to diversify the
composition of the Board of Directors, the Bank has in place a policy
on the selection and appointment of directors. For nomination of
directors, the Board of Directors shall consider both capabilities and
professional ethics of the candidates, and at the same time, take into
account the requirement of board diversity. The candidates should
be complementary including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service of persons with diversify
backgrounds. The final decision shall be based on the candidates’
overall competence and possible contributions to the Board.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for
reviewing and supervising the implementation of the selection and
appointment policy for directors which is approved by the Board of
Directors.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee is responsible to the Board of Directors and
the main duties and powers of the Committee are:

- Matters assigned by the Board of Directors:

. Research and formulate the Bank's specific measures to
better implement the relevant policies and guidelines of
shareholder and the Board of Directors;

. Prepare and propose matters which are required to
be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval or
discussion, including:

- Significant investment or asset disposal;

- Capital arrangement proposals;
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(b)
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Executive Committee (continued)
The main duties and powers of the Committee are: (continued)

- Matters assigned by the Board of Directors:

- Any subsidiaries established in any countries;

- Any programs of medium term bonds or listed
warrants;

- Report the potential impacts of significant
changes in internal rating policies and rating
override cases;

- Report on the scope and performance of internal
control systems yearly; and

- Other matters requiring approval by the Board of
Directors.

. Review and approve the composition and terms of
reference of functional committees directly reporting to
Executive Committee, including:

- Asset and Liability Committee;

- Information Technology Committee;
- Risk Management Committee;

- Credit Committee;

- Product Innovation and Approval Committee;

- Internal Control, Compliance and Operations
Committee; and

- New Capital Accord Steering Committee.

. Review reports of functional committees and working
committees/working units directly reporting to Executive
Committee; review and approve matters that exceed
the authority of functional committees and working
committees/working units but within the authority
delegated by the Board of Directors to Executive
Committee; and
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(b) BITZEEER(E) (b) Executive Committee (continued)
HFrSHEERE : (£) The main duties and powers of the Committee are: (continued)
- EFgXPMNEEEE - - Matters assigned by the Board of Directors:
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. Other matters assigned by the Board of Directors for
review or handling.

- Matters of Business Management:
. Analyse the macroeconomic situations and policy

environment, conduct thematic research on strategic
topics and formulate strategic plans;

. Direct asset and liability management;

. Direct system development of internal management and
control;

. Review and approve Capital Planning and Allocation
Guidelines;

. Review the Bank's major management systems and

regulations, including but not limited to the systems
of the committees directly reporting to Executive
Committee;

. Study and review the Bank’s schemes of organizational

structure and functional committees’ setup, as well as
allocation of divisional functions;

. Review the annual financial budgeting, financial reports,
significant expenditures, and asset acquisition projects;

. Supervise the implementation of internal rating systems;
. Decide on matters related to external donations made

by the Bank; and

. Other management matters of importance.
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(b) HMTZEE(E) (b) Executive Committee (continued)
HFXrSHEERE : (£) The main duties and powers of the Committee are: (continued)
- RENEASEEREIE: —  Matters of Authorization and Human Resources Management:
e BEMEI=SERE-H . Determine and revise senior management's and division
FIEEREE BEE heads' authority and delegation of authority;
FFAIHE
e fRE % BHMEE - & . Study and review the employments of General Manager,
FIBIEE MR A B Deputy General Manager, and ad-hoc staff, and the
- UESEEKEN adjustments of division of responsibilities among members
SLFE of senior management;
e MRFHFKE - B . Investigate and review the assessments and corresponding
BEANESZEERS rewards and punishments for representatives of each
I8 line of business and division;
e REMBRITEELW- . Decide to use the title of the Bank to report, compliment,
RENMETEE BA and grant honors to group(s) or individual(s); and
ERBTER
e HMEEFSEREE . Other matters assigned by the Board of Directors for
S EBFNEIE - review or handling.
REREZEFHIIEMRA - ZEGHH According to the terms of reference of the Committee, the Committee
ﬁ%%&% BERIRE A - ZEER shall be executive directors and all executive vice presidents of the
1OEHBR-_T—REH - Bank. The Committee held twenty-one meetings in 2019.
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(o)

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee

The Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible
to the Board of Directors and the main duties and powers of the
Committee are:

- Preparing the Bank's strategy and development plan,
supervising and evaluating the implementation of plan, and
providing suggestions to the Board of Directors;

- Examining the Bank’s annual operation plan and fixed asset
investment budget, and submitting them to the Board of
Directors for consideration;

- Examining the report on implementation of annual operation
plan and fixed asset investment budget;

- Evaluating coordinative development of various businesses,
and providing suggestions to the Board of Directors;

- Examining significant organisational adjustment and
institutional scheme of the Bank, and providing suggestions to

the Board of Directors;

- Examining major investment and financing plan of the Bank,
and providing suggestions to the Board of Directors;

- Supervising the implementation of the relevant resolutions of
the Shareholders’ General Meetings and board meetings;
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3 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conminuep)

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee

(continued)
The main duties and powers of the Committee are: (continued)

- Regularly receiving and reviewing the reports of senior
management and making suggestions on operation
management, as well as formulating rules for implementation
to facilitate execution;

- Ensuring that the Bank has committed adequate efforts, time
and resources according to compliance requirements;

- Formulating and regularly reviewing whether the Bank is in
compliance with the laws, regulations and codes on corporate
governance, and making suggestions to the Board of Directors;
and

- Other matters authorised by the Board of Directors.

According to the terms of reference of the Committee, the Committee
shall be composed of at least three directors. The Chairman of
the Committee shall be taken by the Chairman of the Board of
Directors. Members other than the Chairman of the Committee shall
be appointed by the Board of Directors. The Committee held four
meetings in 2019.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee serves as the “eyes and ears” to the Board of
Directors in monitoring compliance with the Group's policies and
other internal and statutory regulations. It provides oversight of the
Group's internal and external auditors and thereby assists the Board of
Directors in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group.
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3 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conmivuep)

(d)

Audit Committee (continued)
The main duties and powers of the Audit Committee are:

Supervising financial reports of the Bank, and examining the
Bank’s accounting information and disclosure of its major
events;

Supervising and evaluating internal control of the Bank,
including internal rating systems related issues of the Bank;

Supervising and evaluating external audit work of the Bank,
proposing to the Board of Directors on engagement or
replacement of independent audit firm, and responsible for the
communication and co-ordination between external auditors
and internal auditors;

Approving the appointment or dismissal of the head of internal
audit division;

Approving the internal audit charter prepared by the internal
audit division and its regular updates;

Receiving and reviewing the work report of the person in
charge of the internal audit division; inspecting, monitoring and
assessing the internal audit function;

Reporting to the Board of Directors its work, and maintaining
communication and co-operation with other special
committees;

Discussing the problems faced in the financial audit and
suggestions, and any matters proposed by the auditor for
discussion (without the presence of the management at the
meeting);

Reviewing and approving the scope of audit and its frequency;

Reviewing the audit report and ensuring that the senior
management (together with the monitoring division) take
actions as necessary to tackle the internal control weaknesses,
areas that do not comply with the laws, regulations and
policies, or issues identified by other auditors/internal auditor in
a timely manner;
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Audit Committee (continued)
The main duties and powers of the Audit Committee are: (continued)

- Reporting to the Board of Directors significant audit findings,
and making relevant suggestions;

- Approving the internal audit plan and the needs for human and
financial resources after identifying the coverage of business
risks; and

- Other matters authorised by the Board of Directors.

According to the terms of reference of the Committee, the Committee
shall consist of at least three directors, shall only be composed of
non-executive directors, the majority of whom shall be independent
directors, and as a whole shall have adequate experience in audit
practices, financial reporting and accounting and shall possess a
collective balance of skills and expertise. Members of the Committee
shall be appointed by the Board of Directors. The Chairman shall
be appointed for the Committee to take charge of the work of the
Committee. The Chairman shall be an independent director with
a background in accounting, banking, or other relevant financial
industry. To ensure independence, the Chairman shall not be the
Chairman of the Board of Directors or of any other committee. The
Chairman shall be elected by more than half of the members of the
Committee. The Committee held four meetings in 2019.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible to the
Board of Directors and the main duties and powers of the Committee
are:

- Organising the formulation of standards and procedures for the
election of directors and senior management members of the
Bank, and submitting the proposed procedures and standards
to the Board of Directors for approval;

- Proposing to the Board of Directors on candidates for directors
and chief executive officer of the Bank;

- Proposing to the Board of Directors on candidates for members
of special committees of the Board of Directors;

- Examining the candidates for senior management members
of the Bank in accordance with the shareholders’ requirements
and making suggestions to the Board of Directors;



3
(e)

AREERHAMBER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

#HZE2019%F 12 A31 HIEFE | For the year ended December 31,2019

(BRHFFRIZERASN + LAABHE T IL5I7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

A )

RERFMESS(E)
HIXZBEERS - (#)

B SREREABNERGE
REREEAS NIBEE

MEFEZIEHABHMBERER
B 7% 77 T O 2 35 DA RE R 37 B X
REREDIREEER

MR ESMEEZ A
MEEFMOE HE 128X

GEE

BT RITEREREAEDN
E R ) bl
A RREBEBRERT

MBEENFEEZ  RBHY
EEFMoRTRNER 12
REFGER

ﬁ%$ﬁm&aﬁA;m¥%
Ef mEHSRERBAS
HARAEMBEEERENE
EFID MEKML R
i%ai&ﬂi '

EBARITEUE RS EHTT
B

HRAITH MG E REEE R
BWUYREREMNTAETER
(BLBF-R)RE - WERE
KAEAERMEEBREIRS
HER

EHIME =& (& A B
EMERER :

2BEES IR RNDER
FEEE FERCEEZENE
Mﬂ%&zﬂﬁ@i'%ﬁﬂ

SRESHE R AR
m%%%wm*lﬁ“iim
=4t

3 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conmivuep)

(e)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)
The main duties and powers of the Committee are: (continued)

- Formulating development plans for the senior management
members of the Bank and fostering plans key backup talents;

- Making recommendations in respect of the Bank's remuneration
policy and practices to the Board of Directors to ensure the
remuneration policy is consistent with the legal and regulatory
requirements;

- Organising the preparation of performance evaluation methods
and remuneration plan for directors of the Bank, and submitting
them to the Board of Directors for review;

- Organising the preparation of performance evaluation methods
and remuneration plan for senior management members and
submitting them to the Board of Directors for approval;

- Organising performance evaluation on directors, proposing the
distribution of remuneration for directors, and submitting it to
the Board of Directors for review;

- Organising performance evaluation on the senior management
members, proposing the plan for distribution of remuneration
for senior management members, key personnel and heads of
control functions, and submitting it to the Board of Directors for
approval;

- Supervising the implementation of the Bank's performance
evaluation system;

- Ensuring a regular (at least annual) review of the Bank's
remuneration system and its operation is conducted
independently of management and the result is submitted to
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority as required;

- Reporting to the Board of Directors any material issues in
relation to the remuneration system on a regular basis;

- Reviewing corporate level’s remuneration adjustments and
performance-based bonus with reference to the corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board of Directors from
time to time, assessing whether such bonus involves any
unidentified business interests, and submitting it to the Board
of Directors for approval;
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)
The main duties and powers of the Committee are: (continued)

- Proposing to the Board of Directors on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and the succession plan of directors;

- Examining and approving relevant compensation to the
executive directors and senior management members for
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure such
compensation is consistent with provisions of relevant
contracts; if it fails to abide by the relevant agreements, relevant
compensation shall be proper and reasonable;

- Examining and approving compensation for dismissing or
removing relevant directors due to their misconduct to ensure
such arrangement is consistent with provisions of relevant
agreement; if it fails to comply with the relevant agreements,
relevant compensation shall be reasonable and proper;

- Reporting its decisions or suggestions to the Board of Directors
unless such report is not allowed by laws or supervisory
regulations;

- Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
of Directors (including skills, knowledge and experience), and
putting forth recommendations on proposed adjustment of the
Board of Directors to implement corporate strategy of the Bank;

- Regularly reviewing the contribution required from a director
to perform his/her duties and powers to the Bank, and whether
he/she is spending sufficient time performing them;

- Advising and assisting the Board of Directors in establishing the
Bank’s culture and behavioural standards that promote prudent
risk-taking and fair treatment of customers; and

- Other matters authorised by the Board of Directors.
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(e)

(f)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)
According to the terms of reference of the Committee, the Committee
shall be composed of at least three directors, majority of whom
shall be independent directors. Members of the Committee shall be
appointed by the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Committee
shall be taken by an independent director, and shall be elected by all
members of the Committee and reported to the Board of Directors for
approval. The Committee held four meetings in 2019.

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee is responsible to advise the Board of Directors in
carrying out its risk management responsibilities, in order to ensure an
adequate oversight of the Bank’s overall risk management framework
and to promote regular and transparent communications within the
organisation in respect of bank-wide risk management issues.

The main duties and powers of the Committee are:

- Examining the Bank's key risk management policies according
to the overall strategy of the Bank, and supervising and
evaluating implementation and effect of these policies;

- Reviewing and recommending the risk appetite framework,
the narrative, risk appetite thresholds of the Bank's risk appetite
statement to the Board of Directors for approval; reviewing the
performance of the Bank relative to the established thresholds
on a quarterly basis;

- Reviewing and recommending the recovery plan to the Board
of Directors for approval;

- Approving the key policies of internal rating systems, ensuring
compliance with regulatory requirements on the design and
procedures of internal rating systems, quantification of risk
parameters, IT system and data management, validation and
application of internal rating; and exercising the oversight in
implementation of these policies;

- Approving the implementation plan of internal rating
systems with full understanding of the relevant policies and
procedures, and ensuring sufficient allocation of resources to
the development of internal rating systems;
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Risk Committee (continued)
The main duties and powers of the Committee are: (continued)

Reviewing the effectiveness of internal rating systems on an
annual basis;

Approving other key matters in relation to internal rating
systems;

Providing guideline to the formulation of risk management
system of the Bank;

Supervising and evaluating the setting, organisation and effect
of risk management division, and making recommendations for
improvement;

Reviewing the Bank's risk report including strict compliance
with any related prudential, statutory and regulatory limits
and relevant requirements, as well as material risk exposures
approved by the senior management members/Committee
members; carrying out regular evaluation on the Bank's risk
position; and giving opinions on the improvement of the Bank’s
risk management;

Evaluating relevant work of senior management of the Bank in
charge of risk management;

Supervising the compliance of core businesses, management
systems and major operation activities of the Bank;

Discussing the risk management strategies of the Bank based
on the existing laws/regulations/regulatory requirements with
due regard to its own business scale, nature and complexity
etc., and making suggestions to the Board of Directors;

Ensuring that comprehensive and integrated management
is adopted with respect to the definition, identification and
management of major risks:

. Formulating a set of definitions applicable to the whole
entity with respect to different types of risks faced by the
Bank;
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(f)  Risk Committee (continued)
The main duties and powers of the Committee are: (continued)

. Comprehensively monitoring existing risks across the
entity where the entity covers all branches under the
Group where the Bank has management rights; and

. Ensuring that potential risks involved in the Bank’s
existing and new businesses are effectively identified,
understood and assessed.

- Approving the risk management framework that is in line
with the Bank's business objectives, risk appetite and profile,
and ensuring that the framework is duly implemented and
maintained by the senior management members:

. Monitoring and reviewing the risk governance structure
of the Bank and approving the key risk management
policies; ensuring the sound operation of risk
management and various internal control functions;
whether in terms of decision-making or reporting
structure, maintaining effective independence from the
business divisions that involve risks; possessing adequate
power, resources, professional knowledge and expertise
to perform its duties;

. Approving the policy level limits; and

. Ensuring that the Bank has a sound stress-testing system
and reviewing the results of stress-testing program.

- Regularly reviewing the risk management framework to ensure
the Bank has a suitable structural system to manage its risks
arising in the course of business development and arising from
the changes in external market environments;

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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Risk Committee (continued)
The main duties and powers of the Committee are: (continued)

- Ensuring that the information system and its infrastructure are
provided with adequate resources to cope with the Bank's risk
management and reporting needs;

- Receiving and reviewing the report on the implementation
of compliance policies to ensure that compliance risks are
effectively managed; and

- Other matters authorised by the Board of Directors.

According to the terms of reference of the Committee, members
of the Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.
The Committee shall be composed of at least three directors and
collectively possess relevant technical expertise and experience in
risk disciplines, the majority of whom shall be independent directors.
The Chairman shall be an independent director with a background in
accounting, banking or other relevant financial industry or expertise
in risk management. The Chairman shall not be the same person as
the Chairman of the Board of Directors or of any other committee.
The Chairman shall be elected by all members of the Committee and
reported to the Board of Directors for approval. Other than members
of the Committee, the Executive Vice President overseeing risk
management, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Compliance Officer, Head
of Risk Management, Head of Legal and Compliance, and Head of
Internal Audit of the Bank shall sit in on meetings of the Committee as
ex officio members. The Committee held four meetings in 2019.

Compliance Sub-Committee under Risk Committee

The Compliance Sub-Committee under Risk Committee (“Sub-
Committee”) is responsible to the Risk Committee and the main duties
and powers of the Sub-Committee are:

- Reviewing and approving the compliance policy of the Bank;
- Receiving and reviewing the report on the implementation
of compliance policies to ensure that compliance risks are

effectively managed;

- Providing guideline to the formulation of the compliance risk
framework of the Bank;
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(9)

(h)

Compliance Sub-Committee under Risk Committee

(continued)
The main duties and powers of the Sub-Committee are: (continued)

- Supervising and evaluating the setting, organisation and
effect of Legal and Compliance Division, and making
recommendations for improvement;

- Approving the appointment of the Head of Compliance;

- Reviewing the on-site examination report of the HKMA and
reporting the significant findings to the Risk Committee;

- Reviewing the Bank's legal and compliance report including,
but not limited to, reporting of (a) regulatory incidents, (b)
regulatory developments, (c) regulatory examinations, (d)
progress of compliance reviews, (e) progress of the HKMA
driven control self-assessments, (f) anti-money laundering
activities and related controls, and (g) progress of litigation
cases affecting the Bank;

- Ensuring that the compliance function is provided with
adequate resources; and

- Other matters authorised by the Risk Committee.

According to the terms of reference of the Sub-Committee, the Sub-
Committee shall be composed of three directors, all or majority
of whom shall be non-executive directors. Members of the Sub-
Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Risk Committee.
The adjustment and replacement of members of the Sub-Committee
shall be decided by the Risk Committee. The Chairman of the Sub-
Committee shall be appointed by the Risk Committee to take charge
of the work of the Sub-Committee. The Committee held four meetings
in 2019.

Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO") is a functional committee
under the Executive Committee. Its main function is to base on the
annual business plan, financial budgets, strategic development targets
and risk appetite approved by the Board to formulate strategies over
the Bank's asset and liability structure and capital allocation, and to
ensure the Bank's business is operated within the acceptable risk
tolerance level, so as to achieve the annual and strategic development
goals approved by the Board.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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(hy BEEBZEE(#E) (h) Asset and Liability Committee (continued)
EEBBZESHEREEEREL ALCO members include Deputy Chief Executive overseeing Finance
DEBBHETE TR K Division as the Chairperson, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
TRKEIITR  REIRERBITES Officer, President & Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief
BEeBERLEERB BT Executive of CCB Hong Kong Financial Markets Centre, the Head of
B &M BREEDS  RER Finance Division, Risk Management Division, Credit Division, Treasury
HE B2 RAIBTFE - HKE Division, Corporate Banking Division, Institutional Banking Division,
HEGE - HERTH EmE T Commercial Banking Division, Products Division, Consumer Banking
ERITEBE - LARTHNER Division, Private Banking Division and Credit Card & Consumer Finance
TRIEANEREBIDBZEE ° Division.

(i) EEEWEZEES® ()  Information Technology Committee
FEERMEZEEERNITZEEE TR The Information Technology Committee is set up to act as a
VHBELZES  HaFRHk B functional committee under the Executive Committee. The scope and
0T responsibilities are as follows:

- EEATREMOHNEER - Overseeing the development of the Bank's long-term and near-
MR RS - SRR term information technology strategic plans, including strategy
E o REREREERES formulation, risk management and resource planning;
-  WRESEMEEEAITRE - Ensuring the IT strategy is co-operating and synchronised with
—B Head Office;
—  HEERBHEIEEERMEE - Formulating and approving major information technology
HEERE policies and processes;
- BTEEEENMEBEERR - iTE - Prioritising and monitoring major information technology
FlEARERMABRREZK projects and allocation of resources, assessing the effectiveness
R AT{R ERTE B AR R BE of information technology budgeting, planning and resourcing
processes;
- FHAFEEERWIEREEN - Major information technology activities project monitoring and
BERAE resource allocations:
e BBVIEEH BEMR . Overseeing the IT project portfolio management in terms
B A R IE B R A K of project initiation approval and prioritization as well as
By BEEEEENIE project delivery performance metrics;
BHAEERE
e HELKBHIZEER . Formulating and approving IT project governance
fir 8 B )a BB MR framework and processes;
2
o EHEBNIZFFEMA . Reviewing and approving Project Requests, which may
RETESRMERAE be submitted by business and supporting units as well as
NIRRHIEE K other IT function of Head Office;

@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED - 2019 Annual Report
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(i)  Information Technology Committee (continued)
The scope and responsibilities are as follows: (continued)

. Providing complementary approval on project initiatives
approved by the Senior Management/Executive
Committee or Head Office;

. Formulating Project Request approving process for
minor projects;

. Prioritizing approved Project Requests and live projects;
and

. Appraising project delivery performance result.

. Monitoring project progress status, budget of

commitment & actual P/L booking as well as in-house
manday utilisation;

. Providing a platform to assess project delivery capacity
and capability in relation to respective business needs;

. Assessing the project post-implementation review
result (including the stated benefits) for the projects as
requested by the Committee; and

. Assessing the effectiveness of IT project planning,
budgeting of investment & P/L booking, project cost
allocation and project resources allocation processes.

- Appraising major accomplishments in the application of
technology and the overall IT service performance;

- Ensuring an adequate information technology control
environment in place, which is in compliance with regulations,
guidelines, and governance set by regulatory bodies and Head
Office; and

- Providing a platform to disseminate information technology

related policies and processes to business units, as well as to
solicit their inputs and support.

FREIERRERTT (M) BRI AR AT - 2019F F 4 @
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Information Technology Committee (continued)

Membership of the Information Technology Committee is appointed
by the Senior Management. Currently, the Committee consists of
seventeen members with the Deputy Chief Executive overseeing
Information Systems Division as the Chairperson. Other members are
Head of Information Systems Division, Head of Corporate Banking
Division, Head of Commercial Banking Division, Head of Consumer
Banking Division, Head of Credit Card and Consumer Finance Division,
Head of Treasury Division, Head of Finance Division, Head of Risk
Management Division, Head of Operations Division, Head of Legal &
Compliance Division, Head of Products Division, Head of Cross-Border
Financial Services Division, Head of Institutional Banking Division,
Head of eBanking Division, Head of Private Banking Division, Head of
Marketing Division, and Credit Card and Consumer Finance Division
- Head of Operations & Services. Representative from Audit function
and IT related functions of CCB,and Information Systems Division —
Head of Technology Risk Management are invited as advisor in the
Committee while Information Systems Representative is the secretary
to the Committee.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee is set up as a functional committee
to assist both the Executive Committee and the Risk Committee in
the oversight of risk management matters. The Risk Management
Committee acts as a central forum for overseeing the Bank's
overall asset quality as well as resolving all important risk related or
governance issues on credit risk, operational risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk, strategic risk and reputation risk. In addition,
a working committee and a working unit namely Special Assets
Management Committee and Operational Risk Unit are established
under the Risk Management Committee. The major responsibilities of
the Risk Management Committee include:

- Ensure a comprehensive and integrated management
approach is adopted within the Bank with respect to the
definition, identification and management of major risks;

- Ensure the Bank's risk profile is in line with the risk appetite and
strategies set under the direction of the Executive Committee
and the Risk Committee;

- Ensure the risk management framework is properly established
and maintained and is adequate considering the scale and
complexity of the Bank's business operation;
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Risk Management Committee (continued)
The major responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include: (continued)

- Approve or review new or major changes in risk policies
and processes to ensure they adequately accommodate the
updated market conditions and economic trends, as well as
due compliance of any relevant laws and regulations;

- Approve or review various risk limits, parameters and
thresholds, as well as risk assessment tools to ensure pertinent
risks are addressed/mitigated;

- Act as a central forum to review, discuss and resolve matters
across different risk areas;

- Approve or review major risk assessment/monitoring reports;

- Approve credit programs with legal and compliance
considerations;

- Approve or review the results of the stress-testing programme
and contemplate on any necessary mitigating actions;

- Approve the Annual Business Continuity Report;

- Approve or review operational risk issues including operational
risk management tools, results of monitoring of key operational
risk controls and other critical operational risk management
related matters as reported by the Operational Risk Unit and
respective operational management functions; and

- Review material issues relating to impairment allowances as
reported by the Special Asset Management Committee.

The Risk Management Committee is chaired by the Deputy Chief
Executive overseeing Risk Management or Chief Risk Officer (also
Head of Risk Management Division), and members include the Head
of Legal and Compliance Division, Head of Finance Division, Deputy
Head of Risk Management Division supervising Operational Risk and

Head of Market Risk.
AR IRTT (M) IR BBR A A - 20195F F 5] @
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Credit Committee

The Credit Committee acts as a functional committee to assist both
the Executive Committee and the Risk Committee on loan quality
maintenance, authority delegation, credit related policy-making and
maintenance, credit approval and credit risk management issues. The
major responsibilities of the Credit Committee include:

- Oversee overall credit quality of the Bank;

- Ensure that the Bank's credit risk profile is in line with the risk
appetite and strategies set under the direction of the Risk
Management Committee, the Executive Committee and the
Risk Committee;

- Approve or review new or major changes in credit related
policies and processes to ensure that they adequately
accommodate the updated market conditions, economic
trends as well as due compliance of any relevant laws and
regulations;

- Approve or review various credit related risk limits, parameters
and thresholds, as well as credit programs, products, risk
assessment tools to ensure pertinent risks are addressed/
mitigated;

- Approve new and changes in delegation of approval authorities;
and

- Review and approve credit actions or applications.

The Credit Committee is chaired by the Deputy Chief Executive
overseeing Risk Management or the Chief Risk Officer (also Head
of Risk Management Division), and members include the Head of
Credit Division, the Deputy Head of Risk Management Division and
designated individual credit approver(s).
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Product Innovation and Approval Committee

The Product Innovation and Approval Committee is established to
oversee product development and management. The Committee
provides an independent risk and compliance forum in the form of the
Product Risk and Compliance Approval Meeting to conduct the review
and approval of products and services as defined in the New Product
Approval Policy. This committee is charged with the responsibility for:

- Reviewing and approving new product development and the
requests regarding the engagement in new products as well as
modified products that fall into the definitions as stated in the
New Product Approval Policy;

- Ensuring that the major risk dimensions of new products are
properly identified and analysed by the product owners in
accordance with the New Product Approval Policy and relevant
law, regulations and supervisory guidance, and effective control
measures are properly proposed to address the risks;

- Reviewing and approving the New Product Approval Policy;

- Reviewing and approving investment and insurance products
and third party product providers; and

- Facilitating the regular reporting of respective risk areas to the
Risk Committee.

According to the terms of reference of the Product Innovation
and Approval Committee, the members of the Product Risk and
Compliance Approval Meeting include the Chief Executive Officer
as the Chairperson, the Deputy Chief Executive overseeing Risk
Management and the Chief Risk Officer (also the Head of Risk
Management Division) as Co-chairpersons. Members include heads
of the Legal and Compliance Division, Finance Division, Operations
Division, Credit Division as well as Information Systems Division.
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Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee
The Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee is the
functional committee under the Executive Committee and the Risk
Committee to assist both the Executive Committee and the Risk
Committee to identify and assess the risk of compliance, internal
control function and adequacy of operations of the Bank. This
committee is charged with the responsibility for:

- Providing advice and proposal to the Management regarding
major compliance and internal control issues;

- Identifying and evaluating the Bank's overall compliance risks or
significant internal control defects so as to monitor and control
the identified risks and defects;

- Reviewing and approving the annual compliance plan, annual
reports concerning the implementation of the plans, main
rules and regulations that affect the Bank, and significant non-
compliance matters and/or suspicious transactions or activities;

- Reviewing the adequacy and efficiency of the internal control
system and ensuring fit and proper rectification measures;

- Approving membership and Terms of Reference for the AML
Committee and Investment and Insurance Working Unit;

- Approving Annual Plan for Investment and Insurance Quality
of Assurance of Consumer Banking and Investment Products
Risk Rating Model submitted from the AML Committee or the
Investment and Insurance Working Unit;

- Define responsible parties to set up operational policies,
procedures and guidelines pertaining to all business activities
of the Bank to ensure on-going operational efficiency, cost-
effectiveness and adequate controls, as well as compliance
with all applicable regulatory and operational risk management
requirements and standards;
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(m)

Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee

(continued)
This committee is charged with the responsibility for: (continued)

- Review delegation of operational authorities to staff of different
levels so as to ensure responsible staff will discharge daily duties
and responsibilities in a legitimate and adequately controlled

manner;

- Reviewing and approving standard service charges and fees in
relation to payments, products and services offered by the Bank
to ensure fairness and market competitiveness;

- Formulating and approving management policy and guidelines
to ensure the effective operation and sufficient monitoring of
outsourced activities to ensure due compliance with all relevant
regulatory and corporate guidelines and standards;

- Approving the account opening at the third party financial
institutions and the highest trading limit of all the Bank's
channels; and

- Facilitating regular reporting of important matters monitored
and discussed to the Risk Committee.

According to the terms of reference of the Internal Control,
Compliance and Operations Committee, the Deputy Chief Executive
in charge of Compliance and Operations shall be appointed as the
Chairman of the Committee. Other members of the Committee
shall be comprised of Head of Corporate Banking Divisions, Head
of Institutional Banking Division, Head of Treasury Division, Head of
Consumer Banking Division, Head of Commercial Banking Division,
Head of Private Banking Division, Head of Cross-Border Financial
Services Division, Head of Operations Division, Head of Information
Systems Division, Head of Finance Division, Head of Risk Management
Division, Head of Legal and Compliance Division, Head of Credit Card
and Consumer Finance Division, and Head of Marketing Division.
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3 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminue)

New Capital Accord Steering Committee

New Capital Accord Steering Committee is set up as a functional
committee under the Executive Committee and the Risk Committee.
The New Capital Accord Steering Committee is mainly responsible
for the management, approval of resolutions, decision making and
supervision of the project related duties for the implementation of
Internal Ratings-based Approach in the Bank. In addition, New Capital
Accord Implementation Committee is set up as a working committee
under the New Capital Accord Steering Committee, mainly responsible
for the implementation, guidance and execution of project related
duties. Upon the implementation of the Internal Ratings-based
Approach, both the New Capital Accord Steering Committee and the
New Capital Accord Implementation Committee shall be dissolved
and, the residual oversight tasks shall be exercised by the Executive
Committee and the Risk Management Committee respectively. The
major responsibilities of the New Capital Accord Steering Committee
include:

- Allocate resources for the development, promotion, operation
and maintenance of the Bank's internal rating systems
according to the implementation plan approved by the Board
or the special committee under the Board;

- Organise the development and operation of internal rating
systems, define the respective requirements on quantification
of risk parameters, performance and monitoring measures;

- Provide guidance on the design, operation, enhancement,
reporting, and the setting of policies and procedures for internal
rating systems, and ensure effectiveness and continuity of the
operation of internal rating systems;

- Supervise the project implementation carried out by the New
Capital Accord Implementation Committee;

- Approve the Terms of Reference of the working committee
under the Steering Committee, namely New Capital Accord
Implementation Committee;

- Review the implementation progress on a regular basis; receive
and review reports on the performance and enhancement of
internal rating systems;
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(n) New Capital Accord Steering Committee (continued)
The major responsibilities of the New Capital Accord Steering
Committee include: (continued)

- Review the results of validation of internal rating systems on a
regular basis;

- Supervise and manage the functioning and performance of
internal rating systems which are to be supported by the Bank's
people, policies and processes. Ensure the proper integration
of internal rating systems into the daily credit risk management
processes; and

- Facilitate the regular reporting to the Executive Committees
and/or the Risk Committee.

The New Capital Accord Steering Committee is chaired by the Chief
Executive, and the other members are senior management of the
Bank.

4 RISK MANAGEMENT

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events. The Group
recognises the risk as a distinct risk which is inherent in every aspect of the
Group's businesses and activities which should be managed in a structured
and systematic manner.

The Group implements a centralised risk management framework and
formulates operational risk management policy to provide a bank-
wide definition of operational risks and set out the requirements on
the identification, assessment, reporting, monitoring and mitigation of
operational risk. The Board level Risk Committee is responsible for the
oversight of risk matters including operational risk. The Risk Management
Committee is the executive body to assist the Risk Committee in the daily
management of operational risk related issues including the review and
approval of operational risk management policies, discussion and resolution
of operational risk matters as well as the supervision of the Bank's business
continuity process.
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Operational risk management (continued)

The Group implements the “Three Lines of Defence” in its operational risk
management framework. Every unit, business and supporting units alike, are
functioning as the first line of defence responsible for its own operational risk
management in carrying out their daily activities. Operational Risk under Risk
Management Division, Legal and Compliance Division together with certain
units involved in management of internal process, people and system are the
second line of defence responsible for the design and implementation of the
operational risk management policies, mechanism, tools and methodologies
in their responsible areas. Internal Audit is the third line of defence which
conducts periodic reviews and independent audits of the Group's operational
risk management process. The purpose is to ensure due compliance with
established operational risk management policies and procedures, and to
evaluate the effectiveness of the operational risk management process and
control mechanism. The results of these reviews and audits are regularly
reported to the Board level Audit Committee for effective oversight and
monitoring.

The Group regularly reviews and enhances the Business Continuity Plan of all
critical banking services. It also maintains data processing back-up sites and
facilities to support business operations during disastrous events. To ensure
practicality of the plan, drills on contingency plans for certain critical business
functions are performed annually with satisfactory results.
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. =
BERRITHER COMMERCIAL BANKING OFFICES
y-22 Wanchai
FIRFFE 139 ABIEINNE 20 CE Unit C, 20/F, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road

FEEh 0 39186708 Tel: 3918 6708
RAPIE Tsimshatsui
BERENFEHEAEESNE-_TRER=1=%  25/F and 33/F, Tower 6, The Gateway, 9 Canton Road
FEE ¢+ 2903 8366 Tel: 2903 8366
hEEE Kowloon Bay
B ERRITH O =+ 26/F, CCB Centre
ERE £ 37183422 Tel: 3718 3422

N\ = N
NEERBAEEHD SMALL ENTERPRISE AND PERSONAL LOAN CENTERS
FiEE ] Causeway Bay
HRFEN N \NGR#LES o hE 25/F, Causeway Bay Plaza 1,489 Hennessy Road
TEaE 37187928 Tel: 3718 7928
RPIE Tsimshatsui
MEFE20\WMESES 1618 1603 F Unit 1603, 16/F, Carnarvon Plaza, No.20 Carnarvon Road
TG 1 39186388 Tel: 3918 6388
A Mongkok
BT L EsemmmmER L0 1017-18F Room 1017-18, 10/F, Park-in Commercial Centre, 56 Dundas Street
BiE 39186766 Tel: 3918 6766
hEEE Kowloon Bay
PR IRITHR LM T G/F, CCB Centre
BERE 1 37183422 Tel: 3718 3422
zxE Tsuen Wan
HEFRLNENAMAE Room 945, 9/F, Nan Fung Centre
TEE 1 37183940 Tel: 3718 3940
=
FAANERIT PRIVATE BANKING
':F'fg Central
ER =R EERRITAE 10/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road Central

ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ 3718 3779 Tel: 3718 3779
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CONSUMER BRANCHES

Central
6 Des Voeux Road Central
Tel: 3918 6666

Central CCB Tower
1/F CCB Tower
Tel: 3918 6800

Central Des Voeux Road
99 Des Voeux Road Central
Tel: 3718 7690

Sheung Wan Des Voeux Road
237 Des Voeux Road Central
Tel:3718 7040

Sai Wan
Shop 1, G/F, 489 Queen’s Road West
Tel: 3718 3640

Wanchai Hennessy Road
139 Hennessy Road
Tel: 3718 7233

Wanchai Great Eagle Centre
Shop 121, 1/F, Great Eagle Centre
Tel: 3718 3900

Wanchai Johnston Road
150 Johnston Road
Tel: 3718 7300

Causeway Bay Plaza
G/F, Causeway Bay Plaza 1
Tel:3718 7680

Causeway Bay Jardine’s Bazaar
51 Jardine's Bazaar
Tel:3718 3520

Happy Valley
37 Sing Woo Road
Tel:3918 6600

North Point
382 King's Road
Tel: 3718 3500

Taikoo Shing
Shop 001, G/F, Cityplaza I
Tel:3718 7380

Shau Kei Wan
2 Po Man Street
Tel: 3718 7000

Aberdeen
Shop 7, G/F, Site 4, Aberdeen Centre
Tel: 3918 6836
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CONSUMER BRANCHES

Tsimshatsui Humphreys Avenue
3 Humphreys Avenue
Tel:3718 7166

Jordan
316 Nathan Road
Tel: 37183999

Yaumati
556 Nathan Road
Tel:3718 7200

Mongkok Chun Yee Building
G/F, Chun Yee Building, No. 733 Nathan Road, Mongkok
Tel: 3918 6620

Mongkok Nathan Road

788 Nathan Road

Tel:3718 7128

Tai Kok Tsui Olympian City

Shop 109, 1/F, Olympian City 2

Tel: 3718 3920

Cheung Sha Wan

Unit G02, G/F Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Tel: 3718 3600

Mei Foo
Shop N46, G/F, Mei Foo Sun Chuen, Stage 6
Tel: 3918 6630

Hunghom Whampoa
Shop A3, G/F, Yuen Wah Building, Whampoa Estates
Tel: 3718 3180

Hunghom Ma Tau Wai Road
G/F, 100 Ma Tau Wai Road
Tel: 3718 3580

Kwun Tong Hoi Yuen Road
56 Hoi Yuen Road
Tel: 3718 7082

Kwun Tong Hip Wo Street
191 Hip Wo Street
Tel:3718 7333

Kowloon Bay Amoy Gardens
Shop 181, G/F, Phase IIA, Amoy Gardens
Tel: 3718 7366

Kowloon Bay CCB Centre
G/F, CCB Centre
Tel:3718 7900

Tsuen Wan
282 Sha Tsui Road
Tel: 3718 7199

REERRIT (B R BR AT - 2019FF5H @



AR 5 48 4%

SERVICE NETWORK

EZER 202053 A 198 | Asof March 19,2020

7,
ZEEDIT
ELy5
ZOBEIGH T A23 5548
T :E 1 39186575
DHES
WHES LB
Tk 1 37183160
B&IL
Bwr L &S0 B 297 5548
T :E 0 37183560
KE
AEEE+ =5
FEaE 1 3918 6599
kiﬁ
B — SR b T OB SR 4R
*% 3718 7022
ok
e N5
T iE 1 37183620
JUER
FHILRAEE SN+ E
T 5% 0 37183543
RIKE
AR — 2 11105748
E:E 039186618
H P
TP ES S B T 9574
Tk 37183118
1 PR 4= B
CHE7EH T 65548
FEEE 1 3918 6565
;‘#E;x
FEBW PO = HAR 5 — 12 190 5748
T :E 037183120

BRI E EE O

ok
FIKES 1148 1103A-06 =
EEE 1 39186790

CONSUMER BRANCHES

Kwai Chung
Shop A23, G/F, Kwai Chung Plaza
Tel: 3918 6575

Shatin Plaza
Shop 5, Level 1, Shatin Plaza
Tel: 3718 3160

Ma On Shan
Shop 297, Level 2, Ma On Shan Plaza
Tel:3718 3560

Tai Wai
42 Tai Wai Road
Tel: 3918 6599

Tai Po
Shop 9B, G/F, 1 On Chee Road
Tel: 3718 7022

Sheung Shui
67 San Fung Avenue
Tel:3718 3620

Yuen Long
68 Castle Peak Road
Tel: 3718 3543

Tin Shui Wai
Shop 1110, 1/F, One Sky Mall
Tel: 3918 6618

Tuen Mun
Shop 9, G/F, Tuen Mun Town Plaza 2
Tel: 37183118

Tuen Mun Yan Ching Street
Shop 6, G/F, 7 Yan Ching Street
Tel: 3918 6565

Tseung Kwan O
Shop 190, Level 1, Metro City 3
Tel: 37183120

CROSS BORDER WEALTH MANAGEMENT CENTER

Sheung Shui
Units 1103A-06, 11/F, Landmark North, 39 Lung Sum Avenue
Tel: 3918 6790
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